
March 29, 2007 

Ms. Blanca S. Bay0 
Commission Clerk 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

RE: Docket No. 050630-GU, Consummation Report of Securities Issued by Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chesapeake”) respectfully files this Consummation Report (original and 

three copies) on the issuance of securities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, in compliance with 

Rule 25-8.009, Florida Administrative Code. In satisfaction of the Consummation Report requirements, 

Chesapeake sets forth the following information: 

1. On November 3, 2005, the Florida Public Service Commission (“FPSC”) issued Order No. 

PSC-O5-1103-FOF-GU, which authorized Chesapeake to issue up to 918,069 shares of 

common stock for the purpose of administering Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan, 

Performance Incentive Plan, Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, the conversion 

of Chesapeake’s Convertible Debentures, Directors Stock Compensation Plan, Employee 

Stock Awards Plan and to satisfy Stock Purchase Warrants. The Order further approved the 

issuance by Chesapeake of up to $40 million in secured and/or unsecured long-term debt with 

an estimated interest rate of up to 300 basis points above U S .  Treasury rates with an 

equivalent average life. The Order also authorized Chesapeake to issue up to 4,281,931 

shares of common stock and an additional $40 million in secured and/or unsecured debt for 

possible acquisitions. In addition, the Order authorized Chesapeake to issue up to 800,000 

shares of common stock or an equity-linked instrument equivalent in value to permanently 

finance the Company’s ongoing capital expenditures program. Chesapeake was also 

authorized to issue up to 1,000,000 shares of Chesapeake preferred stock for possible 

acquisitions, financing transactions, and other general corporate purposes, including potential 

distribution under the Company’s Shareholder Rights Agreement adopted by the Board of 

Directors on August 20, 1999. Lastly, Chesapeake received authorization pursuant to the 
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Order to enter into agreements for Interest Rate Swap Products in an amount, in the aggregate 

not to exceed $40 million. 

In 2000 and 2001, the Company entered into agreements with an investment banking firm to 

provide consulting services to the Company. Under the agreements, the Company issued 

warrants to the investment banking firm to purchase shares of Company common stock. On 

March 31, 2000, the Company issued warrants to the investment banking firm to purchase 

15,000 shares of Company stock at a strike price of $18.00 per share, and on March 31, 2001, 

the Company issued warrants to the investment banking firm to purchase another 15,000 

shares of Company stock at a strike price of $18.25 per share. The warrants were exercisable 

during a seven-year period after the date granted. Upon exercise, the investment banking firm 

was required to surrender each warrant along with payment in full, by cash, check or wire 

transfer of the purchase price payable, in respect of the number of shares of stock purchased 

upon such exercise. The Company received the FPSC approval to issue 30,000 shares of the 

Company’s common stock to satisfy the outstanding stock purchase warrants in 2006 pursuant 

to Order No. PC-05-1103-FOF-GU, issued on November 3, 2005. On August 2, 2006, the 

respective investment banking firm exercised the 30,000 outstanding warrants. The firm 

requested a cashless exercise and a “net cash” settlement of the warrants by issuing cash in 

lieu of shares of stock, to which the Company’s management agreed. On September 14, 

2006, the Company finalized the agreement and paid $233,271 net of tax to the firm (based 

upon a share price of $31.405). The Company recorded the payment, net of tax, as a 

reduction to additional paid-in capital. As of December 31, 2006, the Company had zero (0) 

outstanding warrants. 

3. The Company’s Board of Directors, on May 2, 2006, authorized the Company to proceed with 

the preparation and filing of a registration statement on Form S-3 for use in connection with a 

shelf registration to issue Company common stock and/or debt securities. On July 5, 2006 the 

Company filed a shelf-registration statement on Form S-3 with the Securities Exchange 

Commission (SEC) to issue up to $40,000,000 in common stock and/or debt securities. As a 

result of filing the shelf-registration statement and the SEC declaring the shelf registration 

effective, the Company would be able to sell portions of the issue over a three-year period, 

subject to filing the required supplements with the SEC. The shelf-registration statement was 

declared effective by the SEC on November 9, 2006. Under the shelf-registration statement, 
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the Company sold 600,300 shares of common stock on November 21, 2006. In addition, on 

November 30, 2006, an additional 90,045 shares were sold pursuant to the underwriters’ 

exercise of their over-allotment option in connection with the public offering. The average 

issuance price for the 690,345 shares was $30.10. The equity issuances generated total net 

proceeds of $19.7 million which were used for repayment of the Company’s outstanding short- 

term borrowing. Underwriter commissions and expenses associated with the public offering 

were approximately $777,000 and $304,000, respectively. At the time of the equity issuances 

of the 600,300 and 90,045 shares, the Company was not required to obtain authorization from 

the FPSC since the Company had been pre-approved for the issuance of 800,000 shares. 

On October 12, 2006, Chesapeake issued a long-term private debt placement of 5.50% 

Unsecured Senior Notes due October 12, 2020 in the principal amount of $20,000,000 to three 

institutional investors, The Prudential Insurance Company of America, Prudential Retirement 

Insurance and Annuity Company, and United Omaha Life Insurance Company. The original 

note agreement was executed on October 18, 2005 allowing the Company to lock-in the 

interest rate at 5.50% pursuant to the Company issuing the notes, and funding to occur on or 

prior to December 28, 2006. In addition, the terms of the Notes require annual principal 

payments of $2,000,000 beginning on October 12, 201 1. The $20,000,000 proceeds from this 

long-term debt placement were used to repay a portion of the Company’s outstanding short- 

term debt. Expenses associated with this issuance included a structuring fee of $15,000. As 

of December 31, 2006, the principal balance for the 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes was 

$20,000,000. 

Of the above-mentioned securities, and for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 

2006, Chesapeake also issued the following: 

4. 

5. 

(a) 29,705 shares of common stock were issued for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Retirement Savings Plan. The average issuance price of these 

shares was $30.80 per share. Expenses associated with this issuance were 

negligible. 



23,666 shares of common stock were issued for the Performance Incentive Plan. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $30.23 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

38,392 shares of common stock were issued for the purpose of administering 

Chesapeake’s Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan. The 

average issuance price of these shares was $30.39 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

16,677 shares of common stock were issued for the conversion of debentures. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $17.01 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

5,850 shares of common stock were issued for the Directors Stock 

Compensation Plan. The average issuance price of these shares was $30.02 

per share. Expenses associated with this issuance were negligible. 

350 shares of common stock were issued for the Employee Stock Award Plan. 

The average issuance price of these shares was $31.00 per share. Expenses 

associated with this issuance were negligible. 

6. Schedules showing capitalization, pretax interest coverage and debt interest requirements as 

of December 31, 2006, are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

7. A copy of the Application to the Delaware Public Service Commission requesting the 

authorization for the issuance of up to $40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s 

common stock and/or debt securities is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

8. A copy of the Order of the Delaware Public Service Commission authorizing the issuance of up 

to $40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s common stock and/or debt securities is 

attached hereto as Exhibit C. 



9. A copy of the Shelf-Registration Statement relating to the issuance of up to $40,000.000 of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s common stock and/or debt securities is attached hereto as 

Exhibit D. 

10. Copies of the signed Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of the issuance of up to 

$40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation common stock and/or debt securities are 

attached hereto under Exhibit E. 

11. Copies of the signed Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of the issuance of 

$20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% Unsecured Senior Notes are attached 

hereto under Exhibit F. 

12. Except for those agreements provided as Exhibits to this document, copies of all Plans, 

Agreements, registration filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and Orders of 

the Delaware Public Service Commission authorizing the issuance of the above securities 

have been previously filed with the FPSC under Docket Nos. 050630-GU, 030942-GU, 

931 112-GU, 961 194-GU, 981213-GU, and 991631-GU, and are hereby incorporated by 

reference. 

13. Signed copies of the Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of all other securities 

issued have been previously filed with the FPSC as exhibits to the Consummation Reports of 

Securities issued by Chesapeake Utilities, Docket Nos. 931 112-GU, 961 194-GU, 991631-GU, 

and 041263-GU dated April 1, 1994, March 27, 1998, March 29, 2001, and March 28, 2006, 

respectively, and are hereby incorporated by reference. 

14. A copy of Chesapeake’s most current Form 1 O-K as filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission is attached hereto as Exhibit G. 



We respectfully submit this Consummation Report on the issuance of securities by Chesapeake Utilities 

Corporation, Florida Public Service Commission Docket No. 050630-GU, this 29th day of March 2007. 

Sincerely, 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

Beth W. Cooper 
Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary 
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Exhibit A 

Exhibit B 

Exhibit C 

Exhibit D 

Exhibit E 

Exhibit F 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Summary of Exhibits 

DescriDtion 

Schedules showing capitalization, pretax interest coverage and 
debt requirements as of December 31, 2006 

Delaware Public Service Commission Application authorizing 
the issuance of up to $40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation’s common stock andlor debt securities 

Delaware Public Service Commission Order authorizing 
issuance of up to $40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation’s common stock andlor debt securities 

Shelf-Registration Statement relating to the issuance of up to 
$40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s common 
stock and/or debt securities 

Opinions of Counsel regarding the legality of the issuance of 
up to $40,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s 
common stock andlor debt securities 

Opinions of Counsel with respect to the legality of the issuance 
of $20,000,000 of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 5.50% 
Unsecured Senior Notes 

Exhibit G December 31,2006 Form IO-K 



EXHIBIT A 
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Capitalization Ratios Actual & Pro Forma as of December 31, 2005 

TYPE OF CAPITAL 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

COMMON STOCK 

PAID IN CAPITAL 

RETAINED EARNINGS 

ACCUMULATED OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
OBL I GAT1 ON 

TREASURY STOCK 

PREFERRED STOCK 

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

FIRST MORTGAGE BONDS 

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 

SENIOR NOTES 

OTHER 

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL PERMANENT CAPITAL 

CURRENT PORTION OF LTD 

SHORT-TERM DEBT 

TOTAL CAPITALIZATION 

UNAUDITED 

ACTUAL 
BEFORE ISSUANCE 

PRO FORMA 
AFTER ISSUANCE 

AMOUNT % OF PRO FORMA AMOUNT Yo OF 
OUTSTANDING TOTAL ADJUSTMENT OUTSTANDING TOTAL 

$2,863,212 

$39,619,849 

$42,854,894 

($578,151 ) 

$794,535 

(S797,156) 

$.!2 

$84,757.1 83 

$0 

$2,254,000 

$56,636,363 

$1 00.000 

$58,990,363 

$143,747.546 

$4,929,091 

$35,482,241 

$184.158.879 

1.55% $391,786 

21.51 % $22,340,371 

23.27% $0 

-0.31 % $0 

0.43% $0 

-0.43% $0 

o.oo% $2 

46.02% $22,732,157 

0.00% 

1.22% 

30.75% 

0.05% 

32.03% 

78.06% 

2.68% 

19.27% 

100.00% 

$0 

$0 

$20,000,000 

$2 

$20,000.000 

$42,732.1 57 

$2 

($35,482,241 1 

$7.249.916 
(4 

$3,254,998 

$61,960,220 

$42,854,894 

($578.1 51 ) 

$794,535 

($797,156) 

$3 

$1 07,489,340 

0 

$2,254,000 

$76,636,363 

$1 00,000 

$78,990,363 

$1 86,479,703 

$4.929,091 

($0) - 

1.70% 

32.37% 

22.39% 

-0.30% 

0.42% 

-0.42% 

o.oo% 

56.16% 

0.00% 

1.18% 

40.04% 

0.05% 

41.27% 

97.42% 

2.58% 

o.oo% 

100.00% 

(a) The Company's short-term borrowing continued to increase in 2006 because of its capital expenditure program. 



EXHIBIT A 
PAGE 2 of 3 

CHESAPEAKE UTlLTlES CORPORATION 

Notes to Capitalization, Income and 
Pretax Interest Coverage Schedules 

As of December 31,2006 

The following adjustments have been made to capitalization: 

1. Common Stock - Number of shares (804,985) times par value ($0.4867 per share), with the 
shares issued for the following purposes: 

29,705 shares for the Retirement Savings Plan 
23,666 shares for the Performance Incentive Plan 
38,392 shares for the Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan 
16,677 shares for the conversion of debentures 
5,850 shares for the Directors Stock Compensation Plan 

690,345 shares for the November 2006 Public Equity Offering 
350 shares for the Employee Stock Award Plan 

2. Additional Paid in Capital - Total cash value less the associated Common Stock amount for the 
following issuances: 

29,705 shares at $30.80 per share 
23,666 shares at $30.23 per share 
38,392 shares at $30.39 per share 
16,677 shares at $17.01 per share 
5,850 shares at $30.02 per share 

350 shares at $31 .OO per share 
690,345 shares at $30.10 per share 

*Note: Total proceeds from the Company's equity issuance were $19,698,509 net of underwriter commissions 
and expenses. In addition, $233,271 net of tax was also recorded against Additional Paid in Capital for the 
exercise of the stock warrants. 

3. Short-Term Debt - 

Short-term borrowing continued to increase in 2006 because of the Company's capital 
expenditure program. The short-term borrowing declined as a result of the $20,000,000 
long-term debt placement, the equity issuance and proceeds from the Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, the Retirement Savings Plan, the Performance 
Incentive Plan, the conversion of certain debentures, Directors Stock Compensation 
Plan, and Employee Stock Award Plan. 



EXHIBIT A 
PAGE 3 of 3 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
Statement of Income and Pretax Interest Coverage 

Actual & Pro Forma for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2005 (a) 

UNAUDITED 

Annualized Twelve Months 
Actual 
Before Pro Forma 

Issuance Adiustment 

Statement of Income 

1 Operating revenues 

2 Operating expenses before income taxes 

3 Income taxes (including Deferrals) 

4 Operating Income (1-(2+3)) 

5 Other Income, Net 

6 Income Before Interest Charges (4+5) 

7 Interest Charges 

8 Income from Continuing Operations (6-7) 

9 Preferred stock dividends 

10 Earnings available to common equity (8-9) 

11 Pretax Interest Coverage ((3+6)/7) 

$229,629,736 

$208,099,237 

$6,312,016 

$1 5,218,483 

$382,627 

$15,601,110 

$5,133,495 

$10,467,615 

$0 

$0 

($495,119) 

$495,119 

$2 

$495,119 

1$840.879) 

$1,335,997 

$0 $0 

$10,467,615 $1,335,997 

4.27 NIA 

Pro Forma 
After 

Issuance 

$229,629,736 

$208,099,237 

$5.81 6.897 

$15,713,602 

$382.627 

$16,096,229 

$4,292,616 

$1 1,803,612 

$0 

$1 1,803,612 

5.10 

(a) Excludes discontinued operations. 
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Exhibit B 

BEFORE THE PUBLK; SERVICE COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF PEtAWARE 

IM THE MATTER OF THE APPUCATION O f  
CHESAPEAKE UTILFilES CORPORA’I10N 1 
FOR APPROVAL OF WE ISSUANCE OF 
COMMON STOCK ANDIOR DEBT SECURITIES } 

} 

1 PAC. DOWET NO. 06- 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporatlon ( h e r e l n h r  met imes  d i e d  

“Chesapeake” or ‘ApplimnP) pursuant to 26 Dei. C- section 215, makes the 

following appliation toor appmwl by the Delaware Pubk Service Commission 

(“Commisslan~ of the issuance of up to $40,~00,000 @i40 million”) in mmmon stock 

and/or debt securities. 

fdlowing: 

t ,  

In support of this Application, Chesapeake shks 

Chesapeake is a Defaware public utility with its pn’ncjpat place af 

business at 909 Silvw Lake Boulevard, Dover, &taware 19904. Ail 

i;ommunic;atiPns PrhQuld be addremed to Applicant at fhe fbflwving address, 

Attention: Jennifer A. Cfawslus, Manager of Pricing and Regulation, 350 South 

Queen Street, P.0. BOK 1769, Dover, Delaww 19904 or at ths following e-mail 

address: &a.usius@chpk.com. The respective tekphme number and facsimile 

number are 302.73t3,7818 end 302.734.801 I. 

2. Counsel for the! Applicant is William A. Denman, Esquire, Parkowskl, 

GuQrke & Swayze PA., -?16 West Wafer Sired, P.0, Box 598, Dover, Delawm 

‘I 9903. Cbrrsspondbnce and ather communications concerning this Application 

ID: 
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should be directed to counsel at the foregoing a d d r w ,  or at the fol lhng e - m d  

address; wdenmanm-les al.com. The respective telephone number and facsimlk 

number are 302.878.3262 and 3O2.678.9415. 

3. Chesapeake is a corporation incorporated Under the laws of We Stab 

of Delaware. The voting stock of Chesapeake is publicly owned. Shares Of 

mmmon stock, par value 80,4867, 5,a!57,719 of which were eutSUnding as of June 

30, 2006, are the onIy vetlng securities of Chesapeake. Eeoh share is entitled to 

one vote. 

4. On February 23, 2006, the Board of Directors of Chesapeake 

authorized the officers of Chesapeake to prepare and file the registration statement 

for a $40 million ehetf offering for  common stock andlor debt securltles. 

5.  On June 21, 2006, Chesapeake flied a sheff registration statement with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission (the 'SECT notifying b e  SEC of the 

possibilii of Chesapeake issuing up to $40 million in common stock and/or debt 

securities. The shelf registration statement is effective for a "+year period from 

the effective date. Filing a sheW registration statement provides the SEC with 

notice of the possibility of sscurity im~ances- As a result of the filing OF the shelf 

registration, the Company may conwmmate multiple transactions under the shelf 

registration statement over the three-year period, as long as the transections in the 

aggregate do not exceed $413 million. Each transaction would require the 

preparation and submission of a prospectus supplement w'%h the SEC, outlining the 

specific detaik regatding t he  securitiee to be isued. 

a 



6. Far m y  securities that are issued, Chesapeake expeck to Utifih? *e 

proweds to mpoy ehort-term debt, whkh is being ut[llzed ta temporiarily finance the 

Company's capital expehditure program. For the ten-wr perid from January 

1996 through December 31, 2005, the Company's average annual Cap'bl 

oxpenditurrrs were $18.8 milllan. "The Company's capital expenditures budget for 

2006 Is $54.4 million. 

7. In terms e$ e u " m  stock, the Campanfs articles of incorpomtion 

aufharjze t h s  Company to issue up & 12,QOO,OOO shares of " t n o n  8bck. Any 

csmmon stock Isaued under the shelf registration stakment, &er taking into 

account the &hares d Common stock of the Company that have heretofore been 

lasued, would be well blow the authorized amount. Ih this application, the 

Company is requesting authority to issue common stwk aF up to $40 mlltkrn, 

8. In terms of debt, the form of the saclrtities has not bean debtmined. 

The Company has historical!y camplet& p M t e  placements of unsecured Senior 

Mates. The Company desires the flexibility of issuing up ta $40 million of Iong-km 

debt in the farm that is most advantageous from the Company's standpoint in 

regaxb ta t;erms and cgnditiuns, as welI as, cost The possible forms of debt 

include, but are not limited to3 unsecured Senior Notes, pubh debt securities Issued 

under 8 prospectus supplement and the shsff registration statemnt, and taxexempt 

financing. Regardless of the farm crf the debt securities, the Company is requesting 

authority to issue debt securities that have a mup~n  E& of no more than 7 percent. 

9. In summary, the  Company is requestlng authority from the 

3 

ID: 
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Commission to isue common stock and/or debt securities in an amount not to 

hereto as Attachment A 

11. Attached hereto as Attachment B and incorporated herein by refe?f:renW 

is a schedule setting forth Chesapeake's balance sheet and h o m e  statement for 

the twelve (12) month ended June 30, 2006, before the issuance of th8  common 

5t(S~k andht debt securities;. Attachment B also show the jmpad on the balance 

sheet and .income statwnent under three assumptions: (a) the issuance of 

$4(3,9OU,OOU of common $bok, at a market prim of $30.00 p&r share Iess an 

unsecured Senior Notis, with terms and conditions campatable to the Company's 

outstanding un&.ecured Senior NO-) {Scenario 2); and (G) the issuance of 

$20,OQO,OOQ of new debt at a cuwent market inbrmt rate of 6.5U percent (for 

unsecured Senior Notes with terms and cbndftitions camparable to the Company's 

outs.tandinQ unsecured Senior Notes) and $20,000,QQO of -"on Stock, st a 

market price of $30,00 per share !e88 m estimated discaunt of 5 percent (Scenario 

3). Attachment S Is being pmserttE?d to illustrate the potential rahge of the impad 011 

the Company's earnings and capital &ucbte 18 a result af issuing the SeuJfieS 

under the assumptions provided In the variousi soenatios. 

4 

ID: 
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12. Attached hereto as Attachment C is a mpy d Chesapeake's annual 

r4prtrt on Form 10-K for the cakndar year ended DE"-her 31, 2005. Attached 

hereto ag Attachment D is Chwapcake's most remt quarWy report on Form I ' O - Q b  

Aleu attached hereto as Attachment E is a mpy of Chesamke's oheF regi$tratiOn 

&&"tt. All three rapo& have been fired with the Securib'es and Exchange 

Commission. 

13. Pursuant to the Cammission'a Minimum Filing Requirements - Part 

foil attached herefa and incarporated herein by reference are the follclwing 

Schedule No. 1 - Capitalization ratios, actual and pm fama as 

of Juns 30, 2006, for each of the swnarios described in 

partrgreph I I  above, 

gchedule No. 2 - Rate of' return, a&al and pro hma for the 

twelve (12) months ended June 30, 2606, for each of the 

scenarios described in paragraph I I above. 

Schedule No. 3 - Fixed charge coverage rat\- for the twelve 

(12) month ended June 30, 2005, for eaeh of the soenariOS 

d6"ibBd fn paragraph 3 above. 

14. C h e s a p a  mpnsents that the proposed issuanoe Olf common sbck 

and/or debt securities is In accardance wlth law, for a proper purpose, and 

Eonsbtent with tho public interest. 

5 

ID: 
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WHEREFORE, Chesapeake prays as foWouvs: 

A. That the Cammlssian file this Application and 

make such investigation In this matter as it 

deems necessary; 

That the Commlssbn authorizes the Company to 

issue up to $40,000,000 of mmmon stock and/or 

debt securities consistent with the terms and 

mnditiorls descn'bed Rerein. 

B, 

MkR-30-288? 07:31AM FRX:B27=061 

6 

ID: 



CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPQWTION 

By: _. W d b  
Beth W. Cooper 
Vice President, Treasurer, and Corporate 
seIxe&ry 

PARKOWSKI, GUERKE & SWAGE, P.A. 

16 West Water Street 
Dover, DE 19903 
Attorney for Applicant 

ID: 
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Exhibit c 

when the proposed flnanckgs are to be W e  in accordance w i t h  l a w ,  f a r  

proper purpewm, anel are coasisterac with ahs public intereat; and 

W€CEREA81, under the prwisicma of 26  Del. C .  S 3 U ( t l [ 2 3 ,  the 

ID : 
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2. That, nukhing iP U s  Order shalt be ccmstrued as a g~aranLee, 

warrmty, or represtfitation by+ the Stat;e of Delaware or by any agency, 

c"ifsion, or department thereof with respect t o  the i"&ness af 

Chesapeake utilities Carporation, which m y  be issued tar inmarred under 

the financing pLaa hercia approved. 

2 '-__.- 
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, 

3. That Chasapeake Utilities Corporation, shall ,  no laker than 

u riftman (151 days after the issuance of any indabcsdrrorfi~ or equity under 

the approval h e s e h  granted, file with cbe a report describing 

i n  detail the exact nature OS the isme8 fQnanr?.ln ’ 9, includhg the amaunt, 

tcm, rake, ifistlance costs, the date of lamancia, rev&-sed capitaLization 

 ratio^^ and an opidon of counsel that aaid Fmauace was made for a 

proper prpase, in accordance w i t h  l a w ,  an8 emmiatant w i t h  the autbrity 

granr ed herein. 

4 .  !%at the a m v a 2  of this appllcatiarr by the Comission i s  not 

to be construed RB wproving a ~ y  capitalization ratioa Wch remu2t; I, 

therefrom for  any gutposes or Sn any proceedings bveluPtrg the rates of 

t h i s  utility, nor Le the bmden af proof as imposed by statute upon the 

ert1lFc.y affected by this approval. 

5 .  That the C ~ s s i o n  resexves the ju&$dictiat and authority t o  

‘ L A  enter such further Orders in this matter aa m y  be deemed aecsssary or 

groper - 

ER OF TEX co 

3 



PSC Docket NO. 06-339, Order NO. 7065 Cont’d. 
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3 1 s3 .htm CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES C O W  - SHELF REGISTRATION STATEMENT 
EXHIBIT D 

As filed with the Securit ies a n d  Exchange  Commiss ion  on Ju ly  5 , 2 0 0 6  

Regis t ra t ion No. 333- 

U N I T E D  S T A T E S  
S E C U R I T I E S  AND E X C H A N G E  C O M M I S S I O N  

Washington,  D.C. 20549 

FORM S-3 

R E G I S T R A T I O N  S T A T E M E N T  
U N D E R  

T H E  S E C U R I T I E S  A C T  OF 1933 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its churterj 

Delaware  
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 

909 Silver L a k e  Bou leva rd  
Dover,  De laware  19904 

(302) 734-6799 
(Address, inclziding zip code, and telephone number, including area code, 

51 -00641 46 
(I. R.S. Employer IdentiJication hio.) 

of registrant 's principal executive ojfices) 

Michael P. McMas te r s ,  S e n i o r  Vice Pres ident  & 
Chief F inancia l  Off icer  

Chesapeake  Util i t ies C o r p o r a t i o n  
909 Silver L a k e  Bou leva rd  

Dover,  De laware  19904 

(A ame address including zip code, and telephone nuiizber, including areu code of ugeni for service) 
(302) 734-6799 

Copies to: 

Jeffrey E. Decker ,  Esq. 
Baker  & Hoste t le r  L L P  
2300 S u n T r u s t  C e n t e r  
200 S. O r a n g e  Avenue  

O r l a n d o ,  F lor ida  32801 
(407) 649-4000 

Approx ima te  da t e  of c o m m e n c e m e n t  of proposed sale to  the  public:  From time to time after the effective date of this Registration 
atem en t . 

If the only securities being registered on this form are being offered pursuant to dividend or interest reinvestment plans, please check the 
llowing box. [ 3 

If any of the securities being registered on this form are to be  offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 41 5 under the 
xuri t ies  Act of 1933, other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest reinvestment plans, check the following box. 

[I 
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If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, please check the 
lowing box and list the Securities Act  registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. [ ] 

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the 
:urities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. [ ] 

If this form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction I.D. or a post-effective amendment thereto that shall become 
ective upon filing with the Commission pursuant to  Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the following box. [ ] 
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Title of each class of 
securities to be registered 

ommon Stock, par value per share $0.4867 
ebt Securities 
OTAL 

If this form is a post-effective amendment  to a registration statement filed pursuant to General Instruction I.D. filed to register additional 
x r i t i e s  or additional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box. [ ] 

be maximum offering aggregate offering registration 
registered price per unit price fee 

(1) (1) (1) (1) 

$40,000,000.00 $4,280.00 

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE 

I Amountto I Proposed I Proposed maximum I Amount of 

) The Registrant is registering an indeterminate aggregate initial offering price and number of shares of common stock, par value per 
share $0.4867,  and an indeterminate aggregate amount of debt securities, as may from time to time be offered at indeterminate prices. 
The maximum aggregate offering price for all securities that the Registrant is registering is $40 million. Separate consideration may or 
may not be received for securities that are issuable on exercise, conversion or exchange of other securities. In accordance with Rule 457 
(o), the Registrant is required to specifq. only the maximum aggregate offering price for all classes of securities being registered. 

The Registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the 
Registrant shall file a further amendment  which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in 
accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the 
Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine. 
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tOSPECTUS 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

C o m m o n  Stock  a n d  D e b t  Securi t ies  

We may offer, from time to time in one or more offerings, in amounts, at prices and on terms that we will determine at the time of 
fering, shares of  our common stock, par value per share $0.4867 (the “Common Stock”), and/or debt securities. We will provide the specific 
ms of any offering of  Common Stock and/or debt securities in supplements to this prospectus. The prospectus supplements will also describe 
2 specific manner in which we will offer these securities and may also supplement, update or amend information contained in this prospectus. 
IU should read this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement, and any documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus 
refully before you invest. 

We may sell Common Stock and/or debt securities on a continuous or delayed basis directly, through agents, dealers or underwriters 
designated from time to  time, or through a combination of  these methods. If any agents, dealers or underwriters are involved in the sale of 
y securities, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth any applicable commissions or discounts. Our net proceeds from the sale of 
curities also will be set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. 

Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol, “CPIC” The last reported sale price of our common 
ares on the New York Stock Exchange on [ 1,2006 was $[ ] per share. 

These  Securi t ies  have  not  been a p p r o v e d  o r  d i sapproved  by t h e  Securi t ies  a n d  Exchange  Commission o r  any  s ta te  securit ies 
“mission,  n o r  has  the  Securi t ies  a n d  Exchange  Commission o r  a n y  s t a t e  securit ies commission passed upon the  accuracy  o r  
lequacy of this prospec tus .  Any representa t ion  to the  con t r a ry  is a  c r imina l  offense. 

T h e  da te  of this prospec tus  is [ 1, 2006. 

W e  have not au thor ized  a n y  dealer ,  salesman o r  o the r  person  t o  give a n y  informat ion  o r  to  m a k e  a n y  representa t ion  o the r  
a n  those  conta ined  o r  i nco rpora t ed  by re ference  in this prospec tus  o r  a n y  appl icable  supplement  to this  prospectus.  You must  not 
ly upon  any  informat ion  o r  r ep resen ta t ion  not  contained o r  i nco rpora t ed  by reference in this prospec tus  o r  a n y  appl icable  
ipplement  to this prospec tus  as if we h a d  au thor ized  it. This  p rospec tus  a n d  a n y  applicable prospec tus  s u p p l e m e n t  d o  not consti tute 
I offer  to  sell o r  t he  solicitation of an  offer to  buy a n y  securit ies o t h e r  t h a n  t h e  registered securit ies to  which they  relate. Nor  do  this 
-ospectus a n d  a n y  accompany ing  prospec tus  supplement  const i tute  a n  offer  to  sell o r  t he  solicitation of a n  offer to  buy  securit ies in 
iy jurisdiction to any  person to  whom it is unlawful  to m a k e  such offer  o r  solicitation in such jur isdict ion.  You should  not assume 
a t  t he  informat ion  conta ined  in this prospec tus  o r  any  appl icable  prospec tus  supplement  is correct  on  a n y  da te  a f te r  its da te ,  even 
ough  this prospec tus  o r  a  s u p p l e m e n t  is delivered o r  securit ies a r e  sold on a  la te r  date.  

I 
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

This prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplements include and incorporate by reference forward-looking statements within 
le meaning of  Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E  of the Securities Exchange Act 
f 1934, as amended (the ”Exchange Act”). We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for 
irward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of  1995, Forward-looking statements are generally 
kntifiabie by use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” ‘*anticipate,” “plan,” “esrimate,” “project” or simiiar expressions. Our ability to 
redict results or the actual effect of  future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Actual results could differ materially from those in 
irward-looking statements because of, among other reasons, the factors described under the caption “Risk Factors” in the periodic reports that 
/ e  file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We undertake no obligation to  publicly update or revise any forward-looking 
;atements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS 

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we  filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission using a “shelf’  
gistration process. Under this shelf process, w e  may sell any combination of our Common Stock a n d o r  debt securities described in this 
rospectus in one or more offerings up to a total amount of  $40,000,000.00. This  prospectus only provides you with a general description of the 
xur i t ies  we  may offer. Each time w e  sell securities, we  will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the 
:rms of that offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read 
0th this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement together with additional information described under the headings, “Where You 
‘an Find More Information” and “Incorporation of Certain hformat ion  by Reference.” 

Unless otherwise indicated or unless the context requires otherwise. all references in this prospectus to ‘ w e , ”  “us.” “our.” the 
Company,” the “Registrant” or “Chesapeake” mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and all entities owned or controlled by Chesapeake 
Jtilities Corporation. When we refer to our ”Certificate of Incorporation,” we mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Amended Certificate of 
icorporation, and when we refer to our “Bylaws,” we mean Chesapeake Utilities Corporation’s Amended Bylaws.  

ttp://sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/19745/00000 1 974506000024/s3 .htm 3/29/2007 
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION 

We file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
le  “SEC”) pursuant to the Exchange Act. Such filings are available to the public from the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov. You may 
50 read and copy any document w e  file with the SEC at the SEC‘s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. 
3u may obtain copies o f  any document  filed by us at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at that address. 
DU may obtain information about the operation of the SEC‘s Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. You may 
spect reports and other information that we  file at the offices of  the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., 20  Broad Street, New York, New York 
)005. Information about us, including our filings, is also available on our website at http://www.chpk.com; however, that information is not 
i r t  of this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement. 

We  have filed a registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, and related exhibits with the SEC under the Securities Act. 
iat  registration statement contains additional information about us and the Common Stock and debt securities. You may inspect the 
gistration statement and exhibits without charge at the SEC’s Public Reference Room or at the SEC’s web site set forth above, and you may 
)tain copies f rom the SEC at prescribed rates. 

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE 

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by reference” the information contained in documents we file with the SEC, which means that we 
!n disclose important information to  you by referring to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of  
is prospectus. Any statement contained in a document that is incorporated by reference in this prospectus is automatically updated and 
iperseded if information contained in this prospectus, or information that we later file with the SEC. modifies or replaces that information. 
ny statement made in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement conceming the contents of any contract, agreement or other document is 
ily a summary of  the actual contract, agreement or other document. If we  have filed or incorporated by reference any contract, agreement or 
her document as an exhibit to the registration statement, you should read the exhibit for a more complete understanding of the document or 
atter involved. Each statement regarding a contract, agreement or other document is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual 
)cument. 

We incorporate by reference the following documents we filed, excluding any information contained therein or attached as exhibits 
ereto which has been furnished to, but not filed with, the SEC:  

(a) Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1 ,2005 ,  filed on March 7 >  2006; 

(b) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 11 .2006,  filed on March 16 ,2006:  

(c) Our definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed on March 3 1 ~ 2006;  

(d) Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 2 , 2 0 0 6 ,  filed on May 3, 2006; 

(e) Our Current Report on Form 8-I< dated May 1 2006, filed on May 5, 2006; 

(0 Our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 5 , 2 0 0 6 ,  filed on May 5 .2006 ;  

3 
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(8) Our Quarterly Report on Form IO-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2006, filed on May  10 ,2006 ;  

(h) Our Current Report o n  Form 8-K dated May 3 1 ,2006,  filed on June 2 ,2006 ;  

(i) Our Current  Report o n  Form 8-K dated June 13 ,2006,  filed on June 19 ,2006:  

(j) The description of  our  preferred stock purchase rights contained in our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on August 24, 
1999, and all amendments  or reports filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating such description, and further described in the 
section, .‘Description of  Common Stock”; and 

(k) The description of  our  Common Stock contained in our registration statements filed pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 
and all amendments or reports filed with the SEC for the purpose of updating such description, and further described in the 
section, “Description of  Common Stock.” 

Any documents w e  file pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c). 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus and prior to 
e termination of the offering of  the securities to which this prospectus relates will automatically be deemed to be incorporated by reference in 
is prospectus and a part of this prospectus from the date of filing such documents; provided however, that w e  are not incorporating, in each 
ise, any documents or information contained therein that has been furnished to, but not filed with, the SEC. 

To receive a free copy o f  any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus (other than exhibits, unless they are 
,ecifically incorporated by reference in any such documents), call or write Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 909 Silver Lake Boulevard, 
over, Delaware 19904, Attention: Michael T. McMasiers, Senior Vice President and Cnief Financiai Officer, relephone number (3GSj 734- 
799, We also maintain a web site that contains additional information about us (http:l/www.chpk.com). 

You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or set forth in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus 
ipplement. We have not authorized anyone else to provide you with different information. We may only use this prospectus to sell securities 
it is accompanied by a prospectus supplement. We are offering these securities only in states where the offer is permitted. 

You should not assume that the information in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other 
an the dates on the front pages of  these documents. 
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THE COMPANY 

We are a diversified utility company engaged directly or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing, 
.opane distribution and  wholesale marketing, advanced information services and other related businesses. W e  are a Delaware corporation that 
as formed in 1947. Our  three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximately 54,800 residential, commercial  and industrial customers 
central and southern Delaware,  Maryland’s Eastem Shore and parts of Florida. Our natural gas transmission subsidiary, Eastem Shore 

atural Gas Company,  operates a 33 l -mile  interstate pipeline system that transports gas from various points in Pennsylvania to our Delaware 
Id Maryland distribution divisions, as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in southem Pennsylvania, Delaware and on the 
astem Shore of Maryland. Our propane distribution operation serves approximately 32,900 customers in central and southem Delaware, the 
astem Shore of Maryland and Virginia, southeastem Pennsylvania, and parts of Florida; and our wholesale propane marketing subsidiary 
[arkets propane to large independent and petrochemical companies, resellers and retail propane companies in the United States. Our advanced 
Iformation services segment provides domestic and international clients with information technology-related business services and solutions 
)r both enterprise and e-business applications. 

Our principal executive office is located at 909 Silver Lake Boulevard,  Dover, Delaware 19904, and our  telephone number is (302) 
34-6799, Our website address is http:/ /www.chpk.com. Information on our website does not constitute part of this prospectus. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

Unless otherwise specified in a prospectus supplement, the net proceeds from the sale of Common Stock and/or debt securities will be 
Aded to our general corporate funds and may be used for general corporate purposes including, but not limited to, financing of capital 
qpenditures, repayment of short-term debt, funding share repurchases, f inancing acquisitions, investing in subsidiaries and general working 
2pital purposes. Prior to such application, all or a portion of the net proceeds may be invested in short-term investments. 

DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK 

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes us to issue up to 12,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par value per share $0 4867. As of 
larch 3 1 , 2 0 0 6 ,  we had 5,931,487 shares of Common Stock outstanding. In addition, as of March 3 1,2006, we have reserved 572,373 shares 
f Common Stock for issuance under our  equity-based compensation plans and  30,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance upon the exercise 
f warrants. Our Certificate of Incorporation also authorizes us to issue up to 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value per share $0.01; 
owever. no shares of preferred stock are outstanding. Our Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol, 
CPK.” The transfer agent and registrar of the Common Stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A., P.O. Box 430 I O ,  Providence, Rhode 
;land 02940-3010. 

The following descriptions of our Common Stock and preferred stock set forth certain of their general terms and provisions. The 
i l lowing descriptions are in all respects subject to and qualified by reference to the applicable provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation 
nd our Bylaws. 

5 
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Holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as and if declared by our Board of Directors, out of funds 
;ally available therefor. If we are liquidated, dissolved or involved in any winding-up, the holders of our Common Stock are entitled to 
;eive ratably any assets legally available for distribution to holders of Common Stock. Holders o f  our Common Stock possess ordinary 
lting rights, with each share entitling the holder to one vote. Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the holders of our 
)"on Stock present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote for the election of directors. Holders of our 
"on Stock do  not have preemptive rights, which means that they have no right to acquire any additional shares of Common Stock that we 
ay subsequently issue (other than pursuant to the Rights, described below). Holders of our Common Stock also do not have conversion or 
bscription rights, and  the Common Stock is not subject to redemption by the Company.  

All of our shares of Common Stock currently outstanding are, and any shares of Common Stock offered hereby when issued will be, 
Ily paid and nonassessable.  

We may issue preferred stock from time to time, by authorization of our Board of Directors and without the necessity of further action 
authorization by our  stockholders. in one or more series and with such voting powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating, 

jtional or other special rights and qualifications as our Board may, in its discretion, determine, including, but not limited to (a) the distinctive 
s ignat ion of such series and the number of shares to constitute such series; (b) the dividends, if any, for such series; (c) the voting power. if 
iy, of shares of such series; (d) the terms and conditions (including price), if any, upon which shares of such stock may be converted into or 
:changed for shares o f  stock of any other class or any other series of the same class or any other securities or assets; (e) our right. if any, to 
deem shares of such series and the terms and conditions o f  such redemption; (0 the retirement or sinking fund provisions. if an), of shares of 
ich series and the terms and provisions relative to the operation thereof; (g) the amount, if any, which the holders of the shares of such series 
iall be entitled to receive in case of our liquidation, dissolution or winding-up; (h) the limitations and restrictions, if any, upon the payment of 
vidends or the making of other distributions on, and upon our  purchase, redemption, or other acquisition of, our Common Stock; and (j) the 
mditions or restrictions, if any, upon the creation of indebtedness or upon the issuance of any additional stock. 

Under our Certificate of Incorporation, the affirmative vote of not less than 75% of the total voting power of all outstanding shares of 
i r  stock is required to approve our merger or consolidation with, or the sale of all or substantially all of our assets or business to, any other 
irporation (other than a corporation 50% or more of the common stock of which we own),  if such corporation or its affiliates singly or in the 
g r e g a t e  own or control directly or indirectly 5% or more of our outstanding shares of Common Stock, unless the transaction is approved by 
i r  Board of Directors prior to the acquisition by such corporation or its affiliates of ownership or control of 5% or more of our outstanding 
lares of Common Stock.  In addition, our Certificate of Incorporation provides for a classified Board of Directors under which one-third of the 
[embers are elected annual l j  for three-year terms. The supermajority voting requirement for certain mergers and consolidations and our 
assified Board of Directors ma) have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of the Companj .  

6 
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On August 25, 1999, w e  filed with the SEC a Registration Statement on Form 8-A with respect to Rights (defined below) to purchase 
ir Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value per share $0.01 (the “Preferred Shares”). On August 20, 1999, our Board of 
irectors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right (a “Right”) for each outstanding share of our Common Stock. 
ie dividend was payable to the stockholders of record on September 3, 1999 (the “Record Date”). One Right will also be issued with each 
are of Common Stock issued thereafter until the Distribution Date (defined below) and, in certain circumstances, with each share o f  Common 
ock issued after the Distribution Date .  Except as set forth below, each Right, when it becomes exercisable, entitles the registered holder to 
irchase from the Company one-fiftieth of a Preferred Share at a price of $54.56 (the “Purchase Price”), subject to adjustment. The description 
Id terms of the Rights and the definition of the “Distribution Date” are set forth in a Rights Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”) between the 
srporation and Computershare Trust Company,  N.A. ,  successor to BankBoston, N.A., as Rights Agent (the “Rights Agent”), dated as of 
ugust 20,  1999. The Rights are not exercisable until the Distribution Date and will expire at the close of business on August 20. 2009, unless 
rlier redeemed by the Company.  The Registration Statement on Form 8-A, and t‘he Rights Agreement attached thereto as an exhibit, are 
corporated herein by reference. This description of the Rights, the Rights Agreement and the Preferred Shares is in all respects subject to and 
ialified by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 8-A, the Rights Agreement attached thereto as an exhibit and the applicable 
ovisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and our Bylaws. 

The Preferred Shares purchasable upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemable. Each Preferred Share will be entitled to a 
inimum preferential quarterly dividend payment equal to the greater of (i) $13.00 per share (or $0.26 per 1/50th of a Preferred Share) and (ii) 
t aggregate dividend per share of 50 times (subject to adjustment) the dividend declared per share of Common Stock. In the event of 
y ida t ion ,  the holders of the Preferred Shares will be entitled to a minimum preferential liquidation payment of $900.00 per share (or $1 8 .00 
:r 1!50th of a Preferred Share); thereafter, and after the holders of the Common Stock receive a liquidation payment of $1 8.00 per share, the 
)Iders of the Preferred Shares and the holders of the Common Stock will share the remaining assets in the ratio of 50 (subject to adjustment) 
one for each Preferred Share and share of Common Stock so held, respectively. In the event of any merger,  consolidation or other transaction 
which Commor, Steck is exchanged, each Preferred Share wil! be entit!ed to receive 50 times (subject to adjjustment) the amount received 

:r share of Common Stock. The  holders of Preferred Shares will be entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Common Stock 
iith the Preferred Shares being entitled to 50 votes per share). In the event that the amount of accrued and unpaid dividends on the Preferred 
lares is equivalent to six full quarterly dividends or more, the holders of the Preferred Shares shall have the right, voting as a class, to elect 
10 directors in addition to the directors elected by the holders of the Common Stock until all cumulative dividends on the Preferred Shares 
ive been paid through the last quarterly dividend payment date. These rights are protected by customary anti-dilution provisions. 

Because of the nature of the dividend, liquidation and voting rights of the Preferred Shares, the value of a one-fiftieth interest in a 
.eferred Share purchasable upon the exercise of a Right should approximate the value of one share of Common Stock. 

The Rights approved by the Board of Directors of the Company were designed to protect the value of the outstanding Common Stock 
the event of an unsolicited attempt by an acquirer to take over the Company in a manner or on terms not approved by the Board of Directors 

l e  Rights were not intended to prevent a takeover of the Company at a fair price and should not interfere with any merger or business 
)mbination approved by the Board of Directors. The Rights have no dilutive effect, nor do they affect reported earnings per share or change 
e way in which the Common Stock is traded. 
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The Rights m a y  have the effect of rendering more difficult or discouraging an acquisition of the Company deemed undesirable by the 
ird of  Directors, If a person or group attempts to acquire the Company on terms or in a manner not approved by the Board of Directors, then 
Rights may cause such person’s or group’s ownership interest to  become substantially diluted unless the offer includes, as a condition to the 
uisition, a provision that the Rights will be purchased, redeemed or otherwise effectively eliminated. 

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES 

A description of the debt securities that we  may offer will be included in an applicable prospectus supplement. 

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

Our ratios of  earnings to fixed charges for the fiscal years ended December 3 1 ,2001  - 2005, were as follows: 

ne Period Ratio 
31 3.23 
32 3.26 
33 3.66 
34 3.73 
35 4.10 

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the quarterly period ended March 3 1 2006, was 7.38 

The ratio of  earnings to fixed charges is computed by dividing fixed charges into earnings plus fixed charges. For purposes of 
nput ing  this ratio, earnings have been calculated as pretax income from continuing operations before adjustment for minority interesrs in 
nsolidated subsidiaries. Fixed charges include a portion of rents representative of the interest factor, interest on indebtedness and the 
lortization of debt discounts and expenses. 

PLAN OF DiSTRIBUTION 

We may sell securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement to one or more underwriters for public offering and 
e by them or we  may sell such securities to investors directly or through agents, some of which may be dealers. We may also sell the 
x r i t i e s  through a combination of these methods. The name of any underwriter or agent involved in the offer and sale of  such securities will 
included in the applicable prospectus supplement. 

The distribution of  securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement may occur: 

(a) at a fixed price or prices. which may be changed; 

(b) at market prices prevailing at the time of sale; 

(c j  at prices related to prevailing market prices; or 

(d) at negotiated prices. 
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From t ime to time, we may also authorize underwriters acting as our agents to  offer and sell securities upon the terms and conditions 
:t forth in an applicable prospectus supplement. Underwriters may be deemed to have received compensation from us in the form of  
ndenvriting discounts or commissions in connection with the sale of  securities offered pursuant to any applicable prospectus supplement. 
iderwr i te rs  m a y  a l so  receive commissions from purchasers of securities for whom such underwriters may act as agent. Underwriters may sell 
xur i t ies  offered pursuant  to any applicable prospectus supplement to or through dealers. Such dealers may receive compensation in the form 
f discounts, concessions from the underwriters or commissions from the purchasers for whom such dealers may act as agent. 

We may  enter into derivative transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in 
rivately negotiated transactions. If the applicable prospectus supplement so indicates, in connection with those derivatives, the third parties 
lay sell securities covered by this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement, including short sale transactions. If so, the third party 
lay use securities pledged by us or borrowed from us or others to settle those sales or to  close out any related open borrowings of common 
lares,  and may  use securities received from us in settlement of  those derivatives to close out any related open borrowings of common shares. 
h e  third party in such sale transactions will be an underwriter and, if not identified in this prospectus, will be identified in the applicable 
rospectus supplement  or a post-effective amendment to  this registration statement. 

We will describe in the applicable prospectus supplement any underwriting compensation w e  pay to underwriters or agents in 
mnection with any offering of securities. Likewise, we will also describe any discounts, concessions or commissions allowed by underwriters 
) participating dealers in the applicable prospectus supplement. Underwriters, dealers and agents participating in the distribution of the 
xur i t ies  may be  deemed to be underwriters, and any discounts and commissions received by them and any profit realized by them on resale of 
ie securities may  be  deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions. We may enter into agreements to indemnify underwriters, dealers 
Id agents against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and to reimburse these persons for certain expenses. We 
t i l l  describe any indemnification agreements in the applicable prospectus supplement. 

If indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, we may authorize dealers acting as our agents to solicit offers by certain 
istitutions to purchase the securities from us at the public offering price set forth in such prospectus supplement pursuant to delayed delivery 
mtracts providing for payment and delivery on the date or dates stated in the prospectus supplement. Each delayed delivery contract will be 
)r an amount not less than the respective amounts stated in the applicable prospectus supplement. Likewise, the aggregate principal amount of 
ie securities sold pursuant to delayed delivery contracts will not be less or more than the respective amounts stated in the applicable 
rospectus supplement .  We may make delayed delivery contracts with various institutions, including commercial  and savings banks, insurance 
ampanies, pension funds, investment companies, educational and charitable institutions, and other institutions. Delayed delivery contracts will 
lways be subject to our approval. Delayed delivery contracts will not be subject to any conditions except the following: 

(a) The  purchase by an institution of the securities covered by its delayed delivery contracts shall not at the time of delivery be 
prohibited under the laws of an) jurisdiction in the United States to which such institution is subject; and 

(b) If the securities are being sold to underwriters, we shall have sold to such underwriters the total principal amount of the offered 
securities less the principal amount covered by the delayed delivery contracts. 
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Certain o f  the underwriters or their affiliates may,  but will not necessarily, be customers of,  engage in transactions with or perform 
mrvices for us or one or more of our  subsidiaries in the ordinary course of our and/or their business. It is also possible that certain of the 
idenvriters or their affiliates may be affiliates of banking institutions or other financial services firms with which we or one or more of our 
ibsidiaries has a pre-existing business relationship. 

EXPERTS 

The consolidated financial statements and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting 
vhich is included in Management’s Report on Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting) incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the 
nnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1,2005, have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of 
-icewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and 
:counting. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

The validity of the Common Stock and debt securities will be passed upon for the Company by Baker & Hostetler LLP, Orlando, 
lorida. Any underwriters will also be advised about the validity of the securities and other legal matters by their own counsel. which will be 
imed in the prospectus supplement.  

10 
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PART I1 

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS 

em 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution. 

The following table sets forth the fees and expenses in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities being 
bgistered hereunder. Except for the SEC registration fee, all amounts are estimates. Certain amounts that cannot be presently estimated will be 
-ovided in amendments  to this registration statement. 

EC registration fee 
Y S E  listing fee 
ccounting fees and expenses 
egal fees and expenses (other than Blue Sky) 
lue Sky fees and expenses (including counsel fees) 
rinting and engraving expenses 
ransfer agent‘s and registrar’s fees and expenses 
.ating Agency fees 
liscellaneous expenses 

Total 

$ 4.280.00 
5,000.00 

70,000.00 
50,000.00 

5,000.00 
20,000.00 
10,000.00 
50,000.00 
10,000.00 

S 224.280.00 

tem 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers. 

Under the Company’s  Bylaws, each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to  be made a party to any action, suit or 
roceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact he is or was a director or officer of the Company, or is 
r was serving at the request of the Company as a director or officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other 
nterprise (including employee benefit plans), is entitled to  indemnification and to be held harmless by the Company to the fullest extent 
e m i t t e d  by the General Corporation Law of the State of  Delaware (the “DGCL”) against all expense, liabilities and loss (including attorneys’ 
:es, judgments, fines or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person in connection therewith, 
icluding liabilities arising under the Securities Act. These indemnification rights include the right t o  be paid by the Company the expenses 
icurred in defending any action: suit or proceeding in advance of  its final disposition, subject to the receipt by the Company of  an undertaking 
y or on behalf of  such person to repay all amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to  be indemnified. 
‘hese indemnification rights under the Bylaws are not exclusive of  any other indemnification right which any person ma)) have or acquire 
nder any law, bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders, disinterested directors or otherwise. 

Under Section 145 of the DGCL? a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party, 
I any action, suit, or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a director or officer of such corporation if such person acted in good 
iith and in a manner  he reasonably believed to be in and not opposed to the best interest of the corporation and, with respect to a criminal 
ction or proceeding, such person had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful, except that, in the case of any action or suit 
y or in the right of  the corporation (such as a derivative action), n o  indemnification is permitted if the person shall be adjudged liable to the 
orporation (other than indemnification for such expenses as a court shall determine such person is fairly and reasonably entitled). 

.. . 
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Article Eleven o f  the Company's Certificate of Incorporation provides that a director o f  the Company shall not be personally liable to 
le Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except for liability (a) for breach of the 
irector's duty of loyalty to the Company or its stockholders, (b) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional 
iisconduct or a knowing violation of law, (c) under Section 174 of the DGCL, or (d) for any transaction from which the director derived an 
nproper personal benefit.  

The Company has in effect liability insurance policies covering certain claims against any director or officer of the Company by 
:ason o f  certain breaches of duty, neglect, error, misstatement, omission or other act committed by such person in his capacity as director or 
fficer. 

:em 16. Exhibits. 

A list of exhibits filed herewith or incorporated by reference is contained in the Exhibit Index, which is incorporated herein by 
:ference. 

;em 17. Undertakings. 

I) The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes: 

( 1 )  To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment  to this Registration Statement: 

(i) To include any prospectus required by Section 1 O(a)(3) of the Securities Act;  

(ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the Registration Statement (or the most 
recent post-effective amendment thereof) which individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the 
information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of 
securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation 
from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the 
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate. the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 
percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calczilation ofRegistration Fee" table in  the 
effective Registration Statement; and 

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration 
Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement;  

Povided, however,  that paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) do not apply if the Registration Statement is on Form S-3 and the information required to 
: included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in reports filed with or furnished to the Commission by the 
egistrant pursuant to Section 13 or Section l j ( d )  of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the Registration 
tatement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the registration statement. 
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(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of  1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be 
deemed t o  be  a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of  such securities at that time 
shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. 

(3) To  remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at 
the termination of  the offering. 

(4) That. for the purpose of determining liability under  the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser: 

(i) (A) Each prospectus filed by the Registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the registration statement as 
of  the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the registration statement; and 

(B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2). (b ) ( j )  or (b)(7) as part of a registration statement in reliance 
on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(1), (vii) or (x) for the purpose of providing the 
information required by Section lO(a) of the Securities Act shall be deemed to  be part of  and included in the registration 
statement as of the earlier of  the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract 
of sale of  securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule  430B, for liability purposes of the 
issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to  be  a new effective date of the 
registration statement relating to the securities in the registration statement to which the prospectus relates, and the offering 
of  such securities at that time shall be deemed to  be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no 
statement made in a registration statement or prospectus that is part of the registration statement or made in a document 
incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the registration statement or prospectus that is part of the 
registration statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify 
any statement that was made in the registration statement or prospectus that was part of  the registration statement or made 
in any such document immediately prior to such effective date; and 

(5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of  the Registrant under the Securities Act to any purchaser in the initial distribution of 
the securities, in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned Registrant pursuant to this registration statement, regardless of 
the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered o r  sold to such purchaser by means 
of any of  the following communications, the undersigned Registrant will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer 
or sell such securities to such purchaser: 

( i )  Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned Registrant relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant 
to Rule 424: 

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned Registrant or used or referred 
to by the undersigned Registrant; 

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the 
undersigned Registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of  the undersigned Registrant; and 
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(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned Registrant to the purchaser. 

) The undersigned Registrant undertakes that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each filing of the 
Registrant’s annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) o f t h e  Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in 
the Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering 
of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. 

) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers, and controlling persons of 
the Registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Registrant has been advised that, in the opinion of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, 
unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the Registrant of expenses 
incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the Registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) 
is asserted by such director, officer, or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the Registrant will, unless in 
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question 
whether such indemnification by it IS  against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final 
adjudication of such issue. 

I )  The undersigned Registrant hereby undertakes to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under 
subsection (a) of Section 3 10 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the Commission 
under Section 305(b)(2) of the Trust Indenture Act. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it 
:ets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the 
dersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the City of Dover,  State of Delaware, on June 15, 2006.  

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: Is1 John R. Schimkaitis 

John R. Schimkaitis 

President and Chief Executive Officer 

KNOW ALL M E N  BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints John R. 
:himkaitis, Michael P. McMasters and Beth W. Cooper,  or any of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full 
lwer of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name? place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all 
iendments to this Registration Statement, and to file same,  with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the 
immission; granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act 
d thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, 
reby ratifying and confirming all that the attomeys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or 
use te be dene  b;, virtue hereof. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this Registration Statement has been signed by the following persons in the 
pacities and on the dates indicated. 

' Ralph J .  Adkins 
ilph J .  Adlcins. Chairman of the Board 
d Director 
iite: June 15. 2006 

Michael P .  McMasters 
ichael P. McMasters.  Senior Vice President 
d Chief Financial Officer 
rincipal Financial and Accounting Officer) 
Ite: June 15, 2006 

Richard Bemstein 
chard Bemstein,  Director 
2te: June 15, 2006 

Walter J .  Coleman 
alter J .  Coleman, Director 
3te: June 15, 2006 

' J. Peter Martin 
Peter Martin 
Ite: June 15, 2006 

' Calvert A. Morgan, Jr. 
ilvert A.  Morgan, Jr.,  Director 

i s /  John R.  Schimkaitis 
John R. Schimkaitis, President, 
Chief Executive Officer and Director 
Date: June 15. 2006 

is/ Eugene H.  Bayard 
Eugene H. Bayard, Director 
Date: June 15. 2006 

is/ Thomas J .  Bresnan 
Thomas J. Bresnan. Director 
Date: June 15 ,2006  

is/ Thomas P .  Hill. Jr. 
Thomas P. Hill, Jr., Director 
Date, June 15 .2006  

1 s '  Joseph E. Moore 
Joseph E. Moore. Esq.. Director 
Date: June 15, 2006 
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CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibit No. Description 
1 . 1  
1.2 
4.1 

4.2 

4.3 
4.4 
5.1 
12.1 

Form of Underwriting Agreement for Common Stock * 
Form of Underwriting Agreement for debt securities * 
Amended Certificate of Incorporation of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 
of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 1998, File No. 001-1 1590. 
Amended Bylaws of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, effective February 2 4 , 2 0 0 5 ,  are incorporated herein by reference to  
Exhibit 3 of the Company’s  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 1 ,2004,  File No.  001 -1 1590. 
Form of Trust Indenture between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and the trustee for the debt securities * 
Form of debt securities * 
Opinion of Baker & Hostetler LLP * *  
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 12  of each of the 
Company’s  Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the years ended December 3 1 , 2 0 0 5 , 2 0 0 4  and 2003. File No. 001-1 1590. 
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges for the quarterly period ended March 3 1. 2006. is filed herewith. * *  
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  * *  
Consent of Baker & Hostetler LLP (included in Exhibit 5.1) 
Power of Attorney (set forth on the signature page hereto) 
Statement of Eligibility on Form T-1 of [ 1, as trustee for the Chesapeake Utilities Corporation debt securities * 

23.1 
23.2 
24.1 
25.1 

To be filed by amendment  or as an exhibit to a document incorporated by reference into the registration statement. 

i; Filed herewith 
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EXHIBIT E 

Baker Hostetler 

&ker ti Ha smie r JP 

312 Walnu; Street 
Suite 3200 
Cincinnati, OH 45202-4C74 

T 513 9251 3400 
513 3 2 9  0303 

w f  bakerla& COT 
November 30,2005 

Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated 
A.G. Edwards & Sons, inc. 
c/o Robert W. Baird & Co. incorporated 
777 East Wisconsin Avenue 
Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202 

Re: Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

Dear Sirs: 

haye acted 2.s counse! io Ghesaoeake CJWes Cerporaticn, a Deiaware corpopation 
(the “Company”), in connection with ihe sale to you (the “Underwriters”) of 90,045 
shares of the Company’s common stock, $.4867 par value per share (the “Shares’lj, by 
the Company. This opinion is delivered to you at the request of the Company and 
pursuant to Sectiorr 5(c) of the Underwriting Agreement, dated November 15,  2006, 
between the Company and the Underwriters (the “Underwriting Agreement”). The 
Shares are being purchased pursuant ro an option gianted io the Underwriters unaet 
the Underwriting Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not defined herei6 are used 
as defined in the Underwriting Agreement. 

As such counsel, we have examined such documenrs and records as we aeemea 
necessary to render the opinions containea herein, including thc following: 

I. The 3egistratior Sratement, tne Time of Sale Prospectus ana tne ProsPecrus, 

2 R cooy of the Restatea Certificate oi InmrDoiation of the Campany, as 
amendecf (the “Certificate of Incorporatior”) as presently o r  file iri tne 3Rc9 of the 
Secreiary of State of the State of Delaware and as certified ~y said Secrerary of Slate, 

3 
by the Secrerary of the Company and as in effect no% and aT tne time of tne aaootion 0- 
each of tne resolutions referred to in paragraph 4 below, 

A copy of the B y i a ~ s  of the Company, as amenaea (the “3yiaws”) as certified 

4. A copy of the resolutions adapted by the Company’s Boara of Directors and tns 
Pricing Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, as certified by the Secretary of 
the Company, relating IO the registration and sale of the Shares; 

5. 
thereto : 

An executed counterpart of the  Underwriting kgreement, includinE al! scheauies 

Cmonna t ,  ,^/eve:and Coiuno~.s Costs Mesa Denver Houston  i o s  k rge ies  New Y o r r  Or12,idc Wasq in_c !oc ,  DC 
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6. 
standing of the Company and the Company’s Significant Subsidiaries; and 

Certificates of, or other communications with, public officials as to the good 

7 .  
necessary to render the opinions herein (the “Officers’ Certificates“), a copy of each of 
which is attached hereto. 

Certificates as to such matters of fact of officers of the Company as we deemed 

We have assumed for the purpose of this opinion, without independent verification or 
investigation, that (i) the signatures by all parties other than the Company on all 
documents examined by tis are genuine, ( i i )  all documents submitted to us as originals 
are authentic, and (iii) all documents submitted to us as copies conform with the 
originals. 

We have relied on the Officers’ Certificates with respect to the factual matters stated 
th e rein . 

Based upon the foregoing and subject to tne qualifications hereinafter set forth. we are 
of the opinion that: 

(i) the Company is validly existing as a corporation in good standing 
under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, has the corporate power and 
authority to own its property and to conduct its business as described in the Time of 
Sale P:ospectgs and is duly qu.!ified to transact business 2nd is in good staxjing j r i  

each jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its ownership or leasing of 
property requires such qualification, except to the extent that the failure to be so 
qljalified or De in good standing would not have a material adverse effect (as definea ir. 
the Underwriting Agreement, “Material 4dverse Effect”) or! the Company and its 
subsidiaries. taken as a whole; 

. .  

(ii) each Significani Subsidiary of the Company is validly existing as 
a corporation in good standing under the jaws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, has 
the corporate power and authority to own its prom* and to conduct its business as 
described in the Time of Sale Prospectus and is duly qualified to transact business and 
is in good standing in each jurisdiction in which the conduct of its business or its 
Dwnership or kasing of property requires such qualification, except to the extent that 
the failure to be so qualified or be in good standing would no1 have a Material Adverse 
Effsct or: the Company and its subsidiaries, taker; as a whole; 

iiii) the Company nas a r  authorized capilalization as set Fortn in the 
Time of Sale Prospectus and the Prospecrus, and the authorizeo capital stock of the 
Sompany conforms as to legal matters to the descriDtion thereof contained in eacn 3; 
the Time of Sale Prospectus ana the FrcsDecrus 

(iv, the snares of ‘Zommon Stock outszanding prior to the issuance os 
the Shares to De sold by the Company nave been duly authorized and are validly 
issued, fully paid ana non-assessable; 

(v) all of the issued shares of camal srock of eacn Significant 
Subsidiary of the Company have been duly and validly authorized and issued, are fully 
paid and non-assessable and are owned directly or inairectiy ~y the Company, free and 
clear of all liens, encumbrances, eauities or claims, 
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(vi) the Shares to be sold by the Company have been duly 
authorized and, when issued and delivered in accordance with the terms of the 
Underwriting Agreement, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and the 
issuance of such Shares will not be subject to any preemptive or similar rights; 

(vii) the Underwriting Agreement has been duly authorized, executed 
and delivered by the Company; 

(viii) neither the execution and delivery by the Company of, nor the 
performance by the Company of its obligations under, the Underwriting Agreement will 
conflict with, contravene, result in a breach or violation of, or imposition of any lien, 
charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries, or constitute a default under (i) any statute, law, rule or regulation, or, to 
our knowledge, any judgment, order or decree of any governmental body, regulatory or 
administrative agency or court having jurisdiction over the Company or any Significant 
Subsidiary; (ii) the Certificate of incorporation or Bylaws of the Company or any 
Significant Subsidiary; or (Hi) any contract, agreement or instrument filed as an exhibit 
to the Company’s most recent Annual Report on Form IO-K (including those exhibits 
incorporated by reference); and no consent, approval, authorization or order of, or 
qualification with, any governmental body or agency is required for the performance by 
the Company of its obligations under the Underwriting Agreement, except such as may 
be required by the securities or “blue sky” laws of the various jurisdictions in connection 
with the offer and sale of tne Shares or by the DFSC or the FPSC; 

(ix) no approval, authorization, consent or order of or filing with any 
federal, state, local or foreign governmental or regulatory commission, board, body. 
authority or agency, or of or with any self-regulatory organization or other non- 
governmental regulatory authority (including, without limitation, the NYSE, assuming 
the due delivery by the Company’s transfer agent to the NYSE of a notice of issuance), 
or approval of the shareholders of the Company, is required in connection with the 
issuance and sale of the Shares or the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
by the underwriting Agreement, other than (i) registration of the Shares under the 
Securities Act, which has been effected; (ii) any necessary qualification under the 
securities or blue sky laws of the various jurisdictions in which the Sbares are being 
offered by the Underwriters; (iii) under the NASD Conduct Rules; (iv) the approval of 
the DPSC; and iv) the approval of the FPSC; 

i x )  the srarements reiating to iegai matters, documen?s or 
proceedings inciudeb ir; (A) the Base Prospectus under “Description of Commori Stock” 
and “?Ian of Distribution,” (5) the Time of Saie Prospectus and the Prospectus under 
the caption “Description of Common Stock,’’ and (Cj the iiegistration Statement in 
Items 14 and ?5, in each case fairly and accurately summarize in al! materiai respcts 
sucn rnatters, documents or proceedings; 

(xi) after due inquiry, we do not know of any iegal or governmental 
proceeding pending or threatened to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a 
party or to which any of the properties of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is 
subject that are required to be described in the Registration Statement or the 
Prospectus and are not so described or of any statutes, regulations, contracts or other 
documents that are required to be described in the Registration Statement or the 
Prospectus or to be filed as exhibis to the Registration Statement that are not 
described or filed as required; 
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(xii) the Company is not, and after giving effect to the offering and 
sale of the Shares and the application of the proceeds thereof as described in the 
Prospectus will not be, required to register as an “investment company” as such term is 
defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended; and 

(xiii) each document filed pursuant to the Exchange Act and 
incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement, the Time of Sale Prospectus 
and the Prospectus (except for the financial statements and financial schedules and 
other financial and statistical data included therein, as to which we do not express any 
opinion) appeared on its face to be appropriately responsive as of its filing date in all 
material respects to the requirements of the Exchange Act and the applicable rules and 
regulations of the Commission thereunder; and the Registration Statement, the Time of 
Sale Prospectus and the Prospectus (except for the financial statements and financial 
schedules and other financial and statistical data included therein, as to which we do 
not express any opinion) appear on their face to be appropriately responsive in all 
material respects to the requirements of the Securities Act and the applicable rules and 
regulations of the Commission thereunder. 

In passing on the form of the Registration Statement, the Time of Sale Prospectus, and 
the Prospectus in subdivision (xiii) above, we necessarily assumed the correctness and 
completeness of the statements made or included therein by the Company and do not 
take any responsibiiity therefore except insofar as such statements relate to us or to the 
description of the Underwriting Agreement or the Company’s Common Stock. in the 
course of the preparation of the Registration Statement, the Time of Sale Prospectus, 
and the Prospectus, however, we had conferences with certain officers of the Company 
and its independent accountants, with you as underwriters, and with your counsel. As 
a result of our examination of the Registration Statement, the Time of Sale Prospectus 
and the Prospectus and our discussions in the above-mentioned conferences, nothing 
has come to our attention that causes us to believe that (1 1 the Registration Statement 
or the prospectus included therein (except for tne financial statements and financial 
schedules and other financial and statistical data included therein, as to which we 
express no belief) at the time the Wegistratiori Statement became effective for purposes 
of Section 11 of the Securities Act (as such section relates to the Underwriters) 
contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact 
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not 
misleading, (2) the Time of Sale Prospectus (except for the financial statements and 
financial schedules and other financial and statistical data inciuded therein, as to which 
we express no beiief) as of the Time of Sale or. as amended or supplemented, if 
applicable, as of the Option Closing 3ate contained or contains any untrue statement of 
a material fact o i  omitted or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make 
the statements tnerein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading or (3) the Prospectus (except for the financial statements and financial 
schedules and otner financial and statistical data included therein, as to which we 
express no belief) as of its date or, as amended or supplemented, if applicable, as of 
the Option Closing Date contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact 
or omitted or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements 
therein. in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

The issuance of the Shares has been approved by the Delaware Public Service 
Commission (the “Commission”) in PSC Docket 06-339 by Order Number 7065 dated 
October 31, 2006 (the “DPSC Order”). Delaware law provides that any “public utility 
affected by any final ordeT or any other “originai party to or any intervenoi‘ in the 
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proceeding before the Commission in which an order was issued may appeal from the 
order of the Commission within thirty days after the service of the order. No public 
utility other than the Company is affected by the DPSC Order, and no third party 
intervened in the proceeding pursuant to which the DPSC Order was issued. The Staff 
of the Commission recommended approval of the Company’s application, and no third 
party lodged any objection to the proposed issuance of the Shares. If the Staff of the 
Commission is considered a “party“ to the proceeding and as a result has standing to 
appeal, it is our opinion that any such appeal would be without merit because the Staff 
of the Commission recommended approval of the Company’s application to issue the 
Shares and did not object to the entry of the DPSC Order. Accordingly, it is our opinion 
that the Shares may be issued by the Company prior to the expiration of the thirty-day 
appeal period. 

In expressing our opinion with respect to the matters referred to in subdivision (iv) and 
the paragraph immediately preceding this one relating to the DPSC Order, we have, 
with your approval, relied soiely upon the opinion rendered to us concurrently herewith 
of Parkowski, Guerke & Swayze, special counsel to the Company (“PGS”). The opinion 
of PGS states that you, as Underwriters, may rely on such opinion. We believe that 
PGS is a reputable firm upon which you and we may properly rely. We have examined 
a copy of such opinion and it is in form and substance satisfactory to us. We have 
made no independent review of or investigation in connection with the matters referred 
to in subdivision (iv) above other than a review of the documents referred to in the 
Officers’ Certificates and discussions with the Company and PGS, nor did we make any 
such review or investigation in connection with the matters referred to in the paragraph 
relating to the DPSC Order other than discussions with the Company and PGS and a 
review of the record, submitted to us by PGS, of the proceedings before DPSC and of 
t i e  DPSC Order. 

Any reference herein to our “knowledge” or use of the word “know” means the actual 
knowledge of the attorneys in this firm who have given substantive attention io the 
transactions contemplated by the Underwriting Agreement. 

This opinion is limited io matters of federal law, Qhio law and, with respect to the 
matters set forth in subdivisions (i) through (ix) above, the Delaware General 
Corporation Law. Accordingly, we express no opinion as to the law of any other 
jurisdiction. We are not iicensed tc practice law in the State of Deiaware. 

Tnis opinion !s intenaed soieiy for your use as Linderwrirers As such, it may no: ~e 
relied upon by any 3ther ~ e r s o ~  or for any Durpose other than the legat conclusions 
expressed nerein 

Yours very truly, 

Baker & Hostetier LLP 

701575532.1 



EXHIBIT E 

Noveniber 2 1 .  3006 

Baker & Hostetler LLP 
3 12 Walnut Street 
Suite 3200 
Cincinnati. OH 45202-4074 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We ha\e acted as special counsel to Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. a Deiauare 
corporation (the -'Company") in connection u i th  the sale b! the Company of 60O..30O shares i the 
"Shares") of its Common Stock. $ 3867 par 1 alue per share (the -'Common Stock") to Robert V,' 
Baird Sr Co. Incorporated and A.G.  Ed-ards & Sons. Inc. (the '-Undermriters") pursuant to the 
17nderwriting Agreement dated November 1 5 .  2006. betv+een the Coinpan> and the iTnder\\riterc 
(the "Vnderwriting Agreement"). We understand that 1 ou are. as counsel to the Company. 
rendering your opinion to the L'nderwriters on the date hereof pursuant to Section S i c )  of the 
U 11 de rw r i ti 11 g Agree m en t . 

In rendering the opinions set forth below. M e  have examined such certificates of public 
officials. certificates of officers of the Company and copies certified to our satisfacrion of 
corporate documents and records of the Company and of other papers. and have made such other 
investigations as we have deemed releLant and necessary as a basis for our opinion hereinafter 
set forth. We have relied upon such certificates of public officials and of officers of the 
Company with respect to the accuracy of material factual matters contained therein which we 
have not independently established. We have assumed the genuineness of all si,onatures. the 
legal capacity of natural persons, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals. 
the conformity to original documents of all documents submitted to us as duplicates or certified 
or conformed copies. and the authenticity of the originals of such latter documents. 

Based on the foregoing, it is our opinion that: 

a. The shares of Common Stock outstanding prior to the issuance of the Shares to be 
sold by the Company (which in the aggregate total 5,993,237 shares) (the 



b. 

"Outstanding Shares") have been duly authorized and are validl> issued. ful ly  
paid and non-assessable. 

The issuance of the Shares has been approved by the Delaware Pubiic Service 
Cominission (the "Commission") i n  PSC Docket 06-339 by Order Number 7065 
dated October 3 1. 2006 (the "DPSC Order"). Delaware law provides that any 
"pubiic utility affected by any final order" or any other "original party to or any 
intervenor" in the proceeding before the Commission in which an order was 
issued may appeal from the order of the Commission within thirty days after the 
service of the order. No public utility other than the Company is affected by the 
DPSC Order. and no third parry intervened in the proceeding pursuant to \\'liich 
the DPSC Order was issued. The Staff of the Commission recommended 
approval of the Company's appiication. and no third parry lodged any objection to 
the proposed issuance of the Shares. If the Staff of the Commission is considered 
a "party" to the proceeding and as a result has standing to appeal. it is our opinion 
that any such appeal would be without merit because the Staff of the Commission 
recorn~nended approLsai of the Company's application to issue [he Shares and did 
not object to the entry of the DPSC Order. Accordingly. it is our opinion that t h e  
Shares may be issued by the Company prior to the expiration of the thirt).-da]i, 
appeal period. 

, .  

Our opinion. insofar as it reiates to the Outstanding Shares being fully paid. is based 
solely on a certificate of the Senior Vice President and Chief Financiai Offic2r and the Vice 
President. Treasurer. and Corporate Secretaqr of the Company confirming. arnong other things. 
the Company's receipt of the consideration cailed for by the appiicable resolutions authorizing 
L I K  ! s h u d l ! c e  01 ~ U C I I  U U L ~ L ~ L I I U I I I ~  J I M ~ ~ .  A copy of such certificate is a::acl;ed hereto. . I--  I _ _ _ r _ _  i- I- n . . & - , - - A : . - ,  C L  -_- -  

Our opinion may  no^ be relied upon by an! person or entity other than the UnderLvriters 
and > ou i n  :onnection with the matters referred to herein. 

Our opinions are iimited to %he laMs of the State of Delaware. 

S inc ere! y >.ours. 



EXHIBIT F 
LAW OFFICES 

P. MICHAEL PARKOWSKI 
1. BARRY GUERKE 
DAVID S. SWAYZE 
CLAY T. JESTER 
JEREMY M. HOMER 
JOHN C. ANDRADE 

WILLIAM A. DENMAN 
MICHAEL U ARRlNGTON 
CHRISTIVL P. SCHILTZ 

BASIL C. KOLLIAS 

M A R h  F. DIINKLE 

MICHAEL VI. TEICHMAh 

AhVE H A R T U E T T  RLIGLE 

PARKOWSKI, GUERKE & SWAYZE 
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION 

116 WEST WATER STREET 
P 0. Box 598 

DOVER. DELAWARE 19903 

FAX 302-678-94!5 
302-678-3262 

GEORGE F. GARDNER, I11 
OF COUNSEL 

WILMINGTOM OFFICE 
800 KING STREET, SUITE 203 

WILMmCTOh. E)E 19801-0369 
302-654-3300 

TAX:  302-654-3033 

October 12: 2006 

The Prudential Insurance Company of America 
C/o Prudential Capita; Group 
3300 Ross Avenue. Suite 4200E 
Dallas, TX 75201 

Prudential Retiremenr insurance and AnnuiQ- Company 
C/o Prudential Investment Management. Inc. 
Frixwe Placement Trade Management 
PMAC Administration 
Gatewa) Center FOLK, / 

'I00 Mulberry Street 
Kewark, NJ 07 IO3 

7 t h  - i- loor 

United of Omaha Life Insurance Company 
00 Prudential Private Placement investors, 2 .P 
Gateviay Center Three. 1 sti1 Floor 
106 Mulberq- Street 
5ewarlc  N.T 07 103 

L adi c s and Gent I em en : 

We 1ias.e acted as special 3elaware couzsei for Zhesapeake Utilities Corporation 
itlie -'Company") in connection with the Vote Agreement. dated as of October 18. 2005. between 
the Companq and each of you (the "Note PLgreemenr"j, pursuant to which the Company has 
issued to zach of you today 5.50% Senior Notes due October 12. 2020 of the Companq. which in 
the aggregate, are in the principal amount of $20.000.000. ,411 tenns used herein that are defined 
in the Sote  Agreement hasre the respective meanings specified in the Note Agreemelit. This 
letter is being delivered to each of you in satisfaction of the condition set forth in Section !.4jcj 
of the Note Agreement and wifh the understanding that each of you is purchasing the Kotes in 
reliance on the opinions expressed herein. 



In this connection, we have examined such certificates of public officials, 
certificates of officers of the Company and copies certified to our satisfaction of corporate 
documents and records of the Company and of other papers, and have made such other 
investigations, as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a basis for our opinion hereinafter 
set forth. W-e have relied upon such certificates of public officials and of officers of the 
Company with respect to the accuracy of material factual matters contained therein which were 
not independently established. With respect to the opinion expressed in sub-paragraph "b" 
below. we have also reIied upon the representations made by each of you in Sections 9.4 and 9.5 
of the Note Agreement. 

Based on the foregoing, it is our opinion that: 

a. The Company nas the corporate power and authority to c a m  on the business 8s 
nom- being conducted. 

b. The execution and delivev of the Note Agreement and the Notes. the offering. 
issuance and sale of the Notes and fulfillment of and compliance with the respective previsions 
of the Note Agreement and the Notes will not require any authorization, consent, approvai. 
exemption or other action by or notice t G  or filing with aiq' Delaware CQUM. Delaware 
administrative or Delaware governmental body (other than the State of Delaware Public Service 

Coininission and/or State Blue Sky authorities pursuant to, any applicable Delaware law 
(including any securities or Blue Sky law), statute, rule or regulation of the State of Delaware. 
The Public Service Commission of the State of Delaware has dull entered Order No 6708 in 
2SC Docket No 05-390 dated Septcmber 6. 2005. such Order is final and in full force and effect. 
no appeal. reviev or contest Thereof is pending, and no further action b j  the Public Sen% 
Commission of the State of Delaware is a requirement to execution and deliveq of the Nore 
Agreement or the Notes or the offering, issuance or sale of the Xotes or the fulfillment of 
mnpliance with the requisite provisions of the Note Agreement and the %ores 

. .  
f- .,v11111113~1vlI nm-1 m n r  n- and rezt;:inc f i i i~gs  after date hereof -:&h the Securities and r:xchange 

Our opinions inaj no: be relied upon b j  any person or entiq other than eazk of 
you. transferees of each of you and Schiff Hardin LLP. your special counsel. in coimecrion with 
file matters referred to herein. 

Our opinions are limired to the laws of the State of Deiawarn 

Sincereiy >.ours. 

P 

William A. Denman: Esq. 
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EXHIBIT F 

DtA Piper US LLP 
The Marbury Building 
6225 Smith Avenue 
Baltimore, Maryland 21206-3300 
www.dlapiper.com 

Marta D. Hafling 
marta harting@dlapiber.com 
T 413 580.4771 
F 41D.580.3171 

October 12, 2006 

The Prudential Insurance Company cF America 
cio Prudential Capital Group 
2200 Ross Avenue Suite 420QE 
Dallas, TX 75201 

Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company 
c/o Prudential Investment Management, lrrc 
Drivate Placement Trade. Management 
PRIAC Administration 
Sateway Center Four, 7th Floor 
100 Mulberry Street 
Neward, NJ 07102 

ilnited of Omaha Life insurance Company 
clo Prudential Private Placement Investors LP 
Gateway Center Three, 18th Floor 
100 Mulberry Street 
Newark, NJ 071 02 

Ladies and Gentiemcn: 

We have actea as special Maryland regulabory counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Eorporaiion (the 
'Comaany") in connection with the Note Agreement, baIed as of October 18, 2005, beween t k  
2:ompany and clam of you (the "Nota hgrwm""), pursuant tc whicl. the CDmDany has issued to each of 
you taday 5.50% Senior Notes due October -I2 2020 of the Company in the aggregate principal amount 
of $20,000,000 All terms used herein that are defined tn the Nbte Agreement have the respective 
meanings specified in the Note Agreement This letter is m n g  ueiiversd tc. each of you with the 
understanding fiat eacn of y3u IS purchasirg the Notes in reiiance D T ~  the opinions axoressed hereln 

tiased on t i e  foregoing and assuming approval of the Subject iransactro; by tne Delaware Public Scruiee 
Con"ssion in DocKet No. 05-290 It is OWF mpiniorr that 

The nxecudor and delivery of the Note Agreemen: and tne Notes, the affering, issuance and saie of tne 
Notes and fulfillment of and compilance with the respective provisions of t h e  Note Agreement and tne 
Notes do not require any 8UthO~lZatiQn, cowent, approval, exsmDfion or other action by or notice to 5r 
fi'ing with any Maryland state administrative or governmental ooay including, wth5ut limitation, the Pcblic 
Service Commission of Maryland pursuant to any apphcabla law (including any securities or Blue Sky 
iawj, statute, ruih, regulation or other requirement 3f the Stare of Maryiand 

This opinion  concern^ only the effect of the laws of the State 5f Mayland as currently in effect We 
assume no abligation to supplement this cpinim if any applicable laws change affer the  date kreof 
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The Prudential insurance Company of America 
Pruaential Retirement insurance and Annuity Cwmpany 
United of Omaha Life Insurance Company 
October 12, ZOO6 
Page 2 

Our opinion may not be relied upon by any pgrson or entity other than each of you, transferees 3f each CJF 
you and Schiff Hardtn LLP your special counsel in connection with the matters referred b herein, ana 
neither this cpinim not; this opinion iettsr may be cirzulated, quoted, or reiied upon by any other person 
for any other purpose withcut prior written consent (except to regulatory authorities having jurisdiction 
over you, including the National Association of tnsurance Commissioners). 

Very truly yours, 

DLA Piper U S L P  

Marta D. Harting 

M D H:C BC: VC 

IC; : 



IT I= 
Baker Hosteler 

October 12,2006 

BakerslHostetkr UP 
E66 FRh Avenue 
New Ywk, NY 10t03-0EOl 

T 212.569.4200 
F 2f2.539.4201 
w.b&e?law.oom 

The Prudential Company of America 
al Retirement Insurance and 

Annuity Company 
United of Omaha Life Insurance Company 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as special counsel for Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, 
a Delaware corporation (the ti e Agreement, dated 
as of October 18, 2005, between the Company and each of you (the "Note 
Agreement')), pursuant ta which the Company has issued to each of you on the date 
hereof its 5.50% Senior Nates due October 12, 2020 in the a regate principal amount 
of $20,000,000, Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein hsve 
the respective meanings specified in the Note Agreement. This letter is being delivered 
ta each of you pursuant to Section 1.4(c3 of the Note Agreement. 

In rendering the opinions set forth herein, we have reviewed (i) the Note 
(li) the Notes and (iii) such corporate records, certificates and other 
and such questions of law, as we have deemed necessary or appropriate 

pany"), in connection with the 

for the purposes of this opinion. 

We have assumed that all signatures are genuine (other than, in the 
case of the Note Agreement and the Notes, those of the Company), that all documents 
submitted to us as originals are authentic and that all copies of documents submitted to 
us conform to the originals. We also have assumed: 

(i) as to factual matters, the accuracy of the warranties and 
representations contained in the Note Agreement, including the representations of the 
Purchasers in Section 9.4 of the Note Agreement and in the certificates delivered by 
officers of the Company pursuant to Section 1.4(d) of the Note Agreement; 

(ii) that any authorization, consent, approval, exemption or other 
or notice to or filing with, any court, administ ve or governmental body that 

d for the execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes or the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby in accordance with the terms 
thereof (other than to 6 below) has been duly 
obtained or made or shall be timely and duly obtained or made; 

e extent addressed in paragra 
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(iii) that, other than to the extent addressed in paragraph 7 below, 
the execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes, the offering, issuance 
and sale of the Notes and the consummation by the Company of the transactions 
contemplated in the Note Agreement and the Notes in accord with the terms 
thereof do not violate or contravene any statute, law, rule or regulation or any judgment, 
order, decree Or permit issued by any court, arbitrator or governmental or regulatory 
authority; and 

(iv) that the Note Agreement is a binding and enforceable agreement 
of each party thereto other than the Company. 

We have made no investigation for the purpose of verifying these 
assumptions, 

Where statements in this opinion are quafifi pression "known 
to us,' such statements refer to the actual knowledge, but not constructive or imputed 
knowredge, of the attorneys in our firm who have given substan 
transaction that is the subject 5f this opinion, without any representation or 
that any inquiry has been made with resped to such statements. 

Based on the foregoing, d subject to the qualifications and 
ion that, insofar as the law of the State 
Law (the "DGCLn) end the Federal taw 

ptions set forth herein, we are of the 
of New York, the Delaware General Gorp0 
of the United States of America are concerned: 

I. The Company is a corporation duly incorporated, validiy existing and in 
good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware. 

2. The Company has the corporate power and authority to execute, deliver 
and perfarm its obligations under the Note Agreement and the Notes. 

3. The Note Agreement and the Notes have been duly authorized by all 
requisite corporate action and duly executed and delivered by authorized officers of the 
Company and constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable 
against the Company in accardance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, 
fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws of general 
applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general equity principles. 

It is nut necessary in connection with the offer, issuance, sale and 
delivery of the Notes to the Purchasers under the circumstances contemplated by the 
Note Agreement to register the Notes under the Securities A d  of 1933, as amended, or 

an indenture in respect of the Notes under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as 

4.. 

5. Neither the issuance and the sale of the Notes by the Campany nor the 
use of the proceeds thereof as described in the Note Agreement violates Regulation X 
of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or will cause any of the 
Purchasers to violate Re lation T or U of the Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System to the extent any of them may be subject thereto. 
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6. No consent, approval, autharisation or other action by or filing with any 
governmental agency or instrurnentality of the State of New York or the United States 
of America or under the DGCL is required on the part of the Company for the exec 
and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes or for the consummation by the 
Company of the transactions contemplated thereby, or the performance of its 
obligations thereunder, in accordance with the terms thereof. 

7. The execution and delivery of the Note Agreement and the Notes, the 
ance and sale of the Notes and the consummation by the Company of the 
contemplated thereby, and the performance of its obligations the 

ce with the terms thereof (i) do not violate the DGCL, any New 
Federal statute, law, rule or regulation 20 which the Go is subject, or the usury 
laws d the State of New Yo& or (ii) do not conflict with, the terms, conditions or 
provisions of, or constitute a default under, violate, or result in the creation of any Lien 
upon any of the properties or assets of the Company pursuant to (A) the Certificate of 
incorporation or Bylaws of the Company or (B) any of the instruments or agreements 
listed on Schedule 6.7 of the Note Agreement. 

The foregoing opinion is subjed to the fallowing qualifications: 

(a) We express no opinion as to: 

waivers of the rights to object to venue or other rights or benefits 
bestowed by aperation of law; 

provisions for liquidated damages and penalties, penalty interest, 
interest on interest and certain indemnifitxition provisions, it 
being understood that the provisions of Section 2.2 and 5.2 of the 
Note Agreement are not excluded under this ctause (ii); 

provisions purparting to require a prevailing party in a dispute to 
pay attomeys' fees and expenses, ar other costs, to a non- 
prevailing party; 

provisions purpoding ta supersede equitable principles, including 
provisions requiring amendments and waivers to be in writing, or 
retieving a party from liability for any negligence or misconduct of 
such party; 

provisions purporting to make a party's determination conclusive; 
or 

exclusive jurisdiction or venue provisions, or any consent to 
service of process by mail. 

(b) We express no opinion with regard to (i) any state securities or Blue Sky 
laws, (ii) any commodities, insurance or tax laws or (iii) the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974, or any comparable state laws, 



EXHIBIT G 

UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-K 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF 
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF f934 

For the Fiscal Year Ended: December 31,2006 Commission File Number: 001-11590 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

State of Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of 

incorporation or organization) 

51-0064146 
(I.R.S. Employer 

Identification No.) 

909 Silver Lake Boulevard. Dover. Delaware 19904 
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code) 

302-734-6799 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

Title o f  each class 
Common Stock - par value per share S.4867 

Name of each exchange on which registered 
New York Stock Exchange, Inc. 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 
8.25% Convertible Debentures Due 2014 

(Title of  class) 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer. as defined in Rule 405 ofthe Securities 4ct. I'es [ . I .  \ o  1x1. 
Indicate b! checic mark if the registrant is nor required to fiie reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section ! 51 d I ofthe Act, Yes [ 1. So jX j .  

indicate b> check mark w,hether the registrant i 1 ) has fiied all reports required to be filed b!, Section I 3  or 15 i d )  of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1Y34 during the preceding 12 months lor for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such repoi-rs:. 
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PART I 
References in this document to "Chesapeake," '.the Company." "we." "us" and "our" mean Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation and/or its M holly owned subsidiaries. as appropriate. 

Safe Harbor for Forward-Looking Statements 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation has made statements in this Form 10-K that are considered to be "forward-looking 
statements'' within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are not matters 
of historical fact and are typically identified by words such as, but not iimited to, "believes." '.expects." "intends,'' 
'Lplans." and similar expressions. or future or conditional verbs such as "may.'' "will," "should." "would." and "could". 
These statements relate to matters such as customer growth. changes in revenues or gross margins, capital expenditures, 
eni,ironmental remediation costs. regulator!, trends and decisions. market risks associated with our propane operations. 
the competitive position of the Companq and other matters. It is important to understand that these forward-looking 
statements are not guarantees. but are subject to certain risks and uncertainties and other important factors that could 
cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. The factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materialll from the Compan!.'s expectations include. but are not limited to those discussed in Item 1.4 
.'Risk Factors." 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS, 

(a) General Development of Business 
Chesapeake is a diversified utilit! company engaged directlb, or through subsidiaries in  natura! gas distribution. 
transmission and marketing. propane distribution and ivholesale marketing. advanced information services and other 
related businesses. Chesapeake is a Delaware corporation that was formed in 1947. 

Chesapeake's three natural gas distribution divisions serve approximatel!, j?.! 00 residential, coninierciai and industria! 
customers in central and southern DeIaLvare. Maryland's Eastern Shore and parts ofFlorida. The Conipan! 's natural gas 
transmission subsidiar) , Eastern Shore Natural Gas Conipan? ("Eastern Shore" or "ESNG"). operales a 366-mile 
interstate pipeline system that transpoi+ts gas from \.arious points in Pennsyivania to the Compan!-'s Ddaware and 
Maryland distribution diyisions. as well as to other utilities and industrial customers in southern Pennsykania. Delawax 
and on the Easterc Shore of M a p  land. Our propane distribution operation serves approximatel!. 33.300 customers ii: 

central and southern Delaware. the Eastern Shore of Maryland and Virginia. southeastern Penns!,ivaiiia. and parts 0:' 
Florida. The advanced information services segment provides domestic and international clients u'ith information 
technolog!' related business serbices and solutions for both enterprise and ?-business applications. 

(b) Financial Information about Industry Segments 
Financial information b> business segment is iiicluded in Item 8 under the heading "Notes to Consolidated Financia: 
Staremenrs - Kote C." 

(e) Nariative Description of Business 
Chesapeake is engaged in three primary business activities: natural gas distiibutioc. transmission and marketing. propane 
distriburion and \vhoiesaie marketing and advanced informatioi: services. i n  addition to the primal? grouos. Chesapeake 
has subsidiaries in otner related businesses. 

(i) (a) Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission and Markefing 
General 
Chesapeake distributes natural gas to residential. commercial and industrial customers in central and southeri: 
Delaware. the Saiisbut?~ and Cambridge. Maryland areas on Maryiand's Eastern Shore and parts of Florida. These 
activities are conducted through three utilit! divisions. one division in Deiaware. another in Mapiano and a third 
division in Fiorida. The Company also offers natural gas suppi!, and suppl! management senices in the state of 
Florida through its subsidiary. Peninsula Energy Services Cornpan:.. lnc, ('.?ESCO"). 
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Delaware and Marviand. Chesapeake's Delaware and Maryland utilip divisions serve approximately 45.400 
customers, of which approximately 45.200 are residential and commercial customers purchasing gas primarily for 
heating purposes. The remaining customers are industrial. For the year 2006. residential and commercial customers 
accounted for approximately 77% of the volume delivered by the divisions and 75% of the divisions' revenue. 

Florida. The Florida division distributes natural gas to approximately 13.630 residential and commercial and I00 
industrial customers in the 13 Counties of Polk, Osceola. Hillsborough, Gadsden, Gilchrist, Union, Holmes. Jackson, 
Desoto, Suwannee. Liberty, Washington and Citrus. Currently, the industrial customers, which purchase and 
transport gas on a firm basis, account for approximately 92% of the volume delivered b!, the Florida division and 
43% of the revenues. These customers are primarily engaged in the citrus and phosphate industries and in eiectric 
cogeneration. 

PESCO provides natural gas suppi!, and supply management services to commercial and industriai end users in  
Florida. During 2005. Chesapeake formed a wholly owned subsidiary. Peninsula Pipeline Compan:, , Inc. to provide 
natural gas transportation services to industrial customers b!) an intra-state pipeline. 

Eastern S h o w  The Compan!,'s \vholl> owned transmission subsidiar),, Eastern Shore. owns and operates an 
interstate narural gas pipeline and provides open access transportation services for affiliared and non-affiliated 
companies through an integrated gas pipeline extending from southeastern Pennsylvania through Delaware to its 
terminus on the Eastern Shore of Maryland. Eastern Shore also provides swing transportation setvice and contract 
storage services. Eastern Shore's rates and services are subject to regulation b!. the Federal Energ) Regulator? 
Commission ("FERC"). 

Adequacy of Resources 
Getierai. The Delaware and Mar!.land divisions have both firm and interruptible contracts with four interstate "open 
access" pipelines including Eastern Shore. The divisions are directi! interconnected with Eastern Shore and services 
upstream of Eastern Shore are contracted with Transcontinental Gas Pipeline Corporation i"Transco"j, Columbia 
Gas Transmission Corporation i"Co1umbia"i and Columbia Guif Transmission Conipan!. ( '*Gulf ' i .  None  of the 
upstream sen ice  providers are affiliates of  the Compan!,. The di\,isions use their firm transportation suppl! 
resources to meet a significant percentage of their projected demand requirements. I n  order to meet the difference 
between firm suppi!, and firm demand. the divisions purcnase narura! gas suppi) on the spot market from various 
suppliers. This gas is transported by the upstream pipelines and delivered to the divisions' interconnects with Eastern 
Shore. The divisions also have the capabilit!, to use propane-ai: peak-shaving to suppiement or displace the spoi 
market purchases. The Compan! believes that the availabilit! ofgas suppi). and transportarion to the Deiaware an3 
Map land divisions is adequate under esisting arrangements to meet the anticipated needs of  their custoniers. 

Dciaware. The Delaware division's contracts with Transco inciude: i a) firm transportation capacit!, oi' 9.0?_9 
dekatherms i"Dt"i per da! . with provisions to continue from year to year. sub.iect to 18ci da1.s notice for terniinatioii: 
iii) firm transportation capacit! o f 3  I i Di per da!, for Eeceniber tnrough Februac . with prwisions to continue suci! 
contract on a year to Fear basis. sub,ject to I80  da!,s notice for termination: ic )  firm transportation capacity of I74 D: 
per da) . bvhich expires in 2008: id )  firni transportarion capacit!, of i.842 Dt. which expires ir, 2009: iei firm storage 
senjice. proijiding a peal; day entitiemem of 1.680 Dr and a total capacit! of 142.830 Dt. ivith provisions to continu: 
such contract on a year to year basis. subjec: to 180 da! s notice for rermination: and i f ;  firm storage serxjice. 
prol'iding a peak daj ,  entitlement of  1 .786 Dt and a total capacit!' of17.967 D:. which expires i n  2013. 

The Delaware division's contracts M . i t h  Columbia include: (a) firm transportation capacit! of880 Dt per da!.. whicn 
expires in 201 4: (b) firm transportation capacit!, of 1 .1  32 Dt per cia!,. which expires in 201 7; icl firm transportation 
capacity of549 Dt per da),. which expires in 201 8: (d) firm transportation capacir!, of 899 per da! . uhich expires i n  
201 9; (e) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of6.193 Dt and a total capacit! of298. I95 D?. which 
expires in 201 5: (9 firm storage service. providing a peak dal- entitlement of 635 Dt and a total capacit! of 57.139 
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Dt. which expires in 201 8; (g) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total capacity of 
52.460 Dt. which expires in 201 9: ih) firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 583 Dt and a total 
capacity of52.460 Dt: which expires in 2020; ( i )  firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of I5  Dt and 
a total capacity of 3,350 Dt. which expires in 201 8: and ( j )  firm storage service providing a peak day entitlement of 
215 Dt and a total capacity of  10.646 Dt, which expires in 201 0. Delaware's contracts with Columbia for storage- 
related transportation provide quantities that are equiv den t  to the peak day entitlement for the period of October 
through March and are equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the peak day entitlement for the period of April through 
Septem her. The terms of the storage-related transportation contracts mirror the storage services that they support. 

The Delaware division's contract with Gulf, which expires in 2009, provides firm transportation capacit). of880 Dt 
per day for the period November through March and 809 Dt per da) for the period April through October. 

The Delaware di\,ision's contracts with Eastern Shore include: ( a j  firm transportation capacit?' of 53.637 Dt per da!' 
for the period December through Februaq 52,415 Dt per day for the months of Xovember. March and April. and 
43,339 Dt per da), for the period May through October. with various expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2017: i b ~  
firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 2.655 Dt and a total capacit? of 13 1.370 Dt. which expires 
in 2013: ( c )  firm storage capacit). providing a peak day entitlement of 580 Dt and a total capacit! of29.000 Dt, 
which expires in 2013: ( d )  firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of91  i Dt and a total capacit) of 
5.708 Dt. with p r o h i o n s  to continue such contract on a year to year basis. subject to 180 days notice for 
termination. 

Tile Delaware division currently has contracts for the purchase of firm natural gas suppi!, with several suppiiers. 
These suppi!, contracts pro\/ide the availabilit) oi'a maximum firm daili entitlement of37.500 Dt and deliisered on 
Transco. Columbiz. and/or Gulf systems to Eastern Shore for redeli\ery under firm transportation contracts. The gas 
purchase contracts have various expiration dates and dail!, quantities may vary from da)- to da), and month to month. 

hfUWiUT7d The Maryland divisior's contracts with Transco include: ( a )  firm transportation capacit!, ofl.738 Dt per 
day. with provisions to continue such contract on a! ear to year basis. sub,iect to I80 da!,s notice for termination: i b j  

firm transportation capacit! of  I55 Dt per da!, for December through Februan.. with provisions to continue such 
contract on ayear  to year basis. subject to 180 days notice for termination: (c )  firm transportation capacity of973 Dt, 
wnich expires in 2009: id )  firm storage service providing a peak day entitlemeni of 390 Dt and a total capacit! or 
33.129 Dt. w,ith provisions to continue such contrac: on a year to year basis. sub.iecL 10 180 days notice for 
termination : and i s )  firm storage senice.  providing a peak da), entitlement of546 Dt and a total capacit! of 5.489 
Dt. \vhich expires in 2013. 

The Ciac land division's contracts with Columbia include: I a) firm transportation capwit!, 01'442 3 t  per dah, which 
eupires in 2014: i b )  firni rransportation capacir!, of908 Dt per dab ~ which expires in  201 7: I C )  firm rransportatioii 
capacity of350 Dt per dal . which expires in 201 8: i d )  firm storage service providing a peak cia!. entitlement of 3.1 17 
Dr and a rotai capacit! of  154.756 Dt. \vliich expires in 20i5: (el firm sroiagc service providing a peak da! 
entitlement of521 Dt and a total capacir! of 46.881 Dr. \vhich expires in 201 8: and (i'i  firm transportation capacir: 
of 1.832 Dt per da! for the period April through September. The Manland division's contracts with Columbia for 
storage-related transportation provide quantities that are e q u i d e n t  t O  the peak da! entitlenient for the period 
October through hiarch and  are equivalent to fit?> percent (509")  of  the peak aa) entitlement for the period April 
through September. The terms o f  the storage-related transportattoii contracts mirror the storage services that the! 
sup p 0 n , 

The Maryland division's contract with Gulf. which expires in 2009. provides firm transponation capaciry of590 Dt 
per da!, for the period November through March and 543 Dt per day for the period April through October. 

The Mar! land division's contracts wi th  Eastern Shore include: ( a )  firm transportation capacit) o i l  8.982 Dt per da! 
for the period December through February. 18.254 Dt per da! for the months ofNovember. March ana April and 
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13,674 Dt per day for the period May through October, with various expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2015: (b)  
firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 1,428 Dt and a total capacit!, of 70.665 Dt. which expires 
in 201 3; [c) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 309 Dt and a total capacity of 15.500 Dt. 
which expires in 2013: and (d) firm storage capacity providing a peak day entitlement of 569 Dt and a total capacity 
of 3,560 Dt, with provisions to continue such contract on a year to year basis. sub,ject to 180 days notice for 
termination. 

The Maryland division currently has contracts for the purchase of  firm natural gas suppl>, with several suppliers. 
These supply contracts provide the availability of a maximuni form daily entitlement of 1 1.500 Dt delivered on 
Transco, Columbia. and/or Gulf systems to Eastern Shore for redeliverq under the Maviand division's 
transportation contracts. The gas purchase contracts have various expiration dates and dail!, quantities may vap  
from day to day and month to month. 

Norida. The Florida division receives natural gas from Florida Gas Transmission Company ("FGT") and Gulfstream 
Natural Gas System ("Gulfstream"). The Florida division has firm transportation agreements with both of tnese 
interstate pipelines. All of the capacity under these agreements has been released to various tnird parties and 
PESCO. our natural gas marketing subsidiary Under terms of these capacit) release agreements. Chesapeake is 
contingently liable to FGT and Gulfstream should the part!' that acquired the capacit!, through release fail to pay for 
the service. 

Chesapeake's contracts with FGT include transportation service for: (a, dail> firm transportation capacit!, of27.5 I9 
Dt inNovember through April: 21.123 Dt in May through September. and 27.105 Dt in October. which expires in  
2010: and ( b i  daily firm transportation capacity of 1.000 Dt daii) . which expires in 2015. 

Chesapeake's contracts with Gulfstream include transportation service for dail) firm transportation capacit! of 
10.000 DL daii) . The contract with Gulfstream expires Ma> 3 I .  2023, 

PESCO currenti) has contracts with Eagle Energ), Partners and Prior Energ). for the purchase of firni natural gac 
suppi>,. The Eagle Energ) Partners' contract provides the availabiliry o f a  maximum firm daily entitlement of 10.000 
MMBtus and has an expiration date of May 2007. The Prior Energq contract probides the a\,aiiabilit! o f a  masimum 
firm daily entitlement of 7.500 MMBtus and has an expiration date of Ma! 2007. 

Eastern Shore Eastern ShoTe also has contracts u i t h  Transco for ia) 7.046 Mcf of firm peak da! itorage 
entitlements and total storage capacrt) o f278264  Mcf uhich  expires i n  2013 

Eastern Shore has retained the firm transportation capacit! and rirm storage services described above in order 10 
provide swing transportation service and storage sew ice to those customers that requested sucl: s e n  ice. 

Competition 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 unde: the heading "Managemen:'s Discussion and +.nai! sis - 
C o m per i t io I?. '' 

Rates and Regulation 
Geiwrai'. Chesapeake's natural gas distribution divisions are subject to regulation b!, the Delaware. biaryiand and 
Florida Public Senrice Commissions with respect to various aspects ofthe business. inciuding the rates for sales and 
transportation to all customers in each respective jurisdiction. All of Chesapeake's firm distribution sales rates a:.? 
subject to gas cost recovery mechanisms. which match revenues with gas costs and normali! allo\h eventual full 
recover! of gas  costs. Ad.justments under these mechanisms. which are limited to gas costs. require periodic filings 
and hearings with the reievant regulatory authorit!,. 
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Eastern Shore is subject to regulation b, the FERC as an interstate pipeline. The FERC regulates the provision of 
service, terms and conditions of service. and the rates Eastern Shore can charge for its transportation and storage 
services. 

Management monitors the achieved rate of retum in each jurisdiction in order to ensure the time11 filing of rate 
cases. 

Regulatory Proceedings 
See discussion of regulatoi? activities in Item 7 under the heading "Vanagement's Discussion and Analysis - 
Regulator! Activities '' 

(i) (b} Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
General 
Chesapeake's propane distribution group consists of ( !  1 Sharp Energ), iric. ("Sharp Energ!,"). a  holly owned 
subsidiarb of Chesapeake. 12) Sharpgas. inc. ("Sharpgas"). a wholl> owned subsidiary of Sharp Energy. and (3 j Tri- 
County Gas Co.. incorporated ("Tri-County"). a wholl! owned subsidiary of Sharp Energ!,. The propane wholesale 
marketing group consists of Xeron. Inc. ("Xeron"). a wholl). otvned subsidiary of Chesapeake. 

Propane is a form of liquefied petroleum gas. which is typicall! estracted from natural gas or separated during the 
crude oil refining process. Although propane is a gas at normal pressure. it is easily compressed into liquid form for 
storage and transportation. Propane is a clean-burning fue!. gaining increased recognition for its unironmental 
superiorit) ~ safer),. efficient),. transportabiiity and ease of use reiative to alternative forms ofenerg).  Propane is sold 
primarily in suburban and  rural areas. which are not served b!* natural gas distributors. Demand is typicaii!, much 
higher in the winter months and is significantl!, affected b), seasonal variations. particularl) the relative severit! oi' 
\?.inter temperatures. because of iis use i n  residentiai and commercial heating. 

During 2006. our propane distribution operations served approximatel! 33.300 propane customers on the Deiiiiarva 
Peninsula. southeastern Penns)-lcania and in Florida ana delivereu approximatel! 24.2 million retail and wholesale 
palions of  propane. 

I n  Ma! 1998. Chesapeake acquired Xeron. a natura! gas liquids trading compan! located in Houston. Texas. Xeroii 
markets propane to large independent and petrochemical companies, resellers and southeastern retail propan? 
companies in the Linked States. Additional information on Xeron's trading and wholesale marketing activities. 
market risks and the controls tnai limit and monitor the risks are inciuded in Iten1 - under the heading 
"Management's Discussion and Anai!,sis - Market Risk." 

The promne distribution business is affected b! man!' factors. such as seasonalit!. tne absence 0:' price rezuiar ioc.  
and competition among locai pro\ iders. The propane whoiesale marketing business is affected b!, \\,noiesale price 
\ olatilit! and the suppi> ana demand ibi propane ar a M hoiesaie iwei. 

Adequacy of Resources 
The Company's propane distribution operations purchase propant primaril! from suppliers. including major oil 
companies and independen: producers oinarura! gas liquids. Suppiies of propane from these and other sources are 
readil?, a\,aiiable for purchase b! tile Coinpan!,, Suppi! contracts generaily include minimum (nor sub,ject to take-or- 
pa!' premiums, and maximum purchase isjons. 

The Compan!,'s propane distribution operations use trucks and railroad cars t o  transpon propane from refineries. 
natural gas processing plants or pipeline terminals to its bulk storage facilities. From these facilities. propane is 
deiivered primarill b! "bobtai!" trucks. owned and operated by the Cornpan!,. to tanks located at the customer's 
premises. 
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Xeron does not own physical storage facilities or equipment to transport propane; however. it contracts for storage 
and pipeline capacity to facilitate the sale of propane on a wholesale basis. 

Competifion 
See discussion on competition in Item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis - 
Competition." 

Rates and Regulation 
The propane distribution and wholesale marketing activities are not subject to any federal or state pricing regulation. 
Transport operations are subject to regulations concerning the transportation of hazardous materials promulgated 
under the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Act. which is administered b!, the United States Department of 
Transportation and enforced b!, the various states in which such operations take place. Propane distribution 
operations are also sub,ject to state safet). regulations relating to "hook-up" and placement of  propane tanks. 

The Company's propane operations are subject to all operating hazards normall!, associated with the handling. 
storage and transportation of combustible liquids. such as the risk ofpersonal injury and propert) damage caused b!' 
fire. The Conipan!, carries general Iiabilit!, insurance in the amount of.735 million. but there is no assurance that 
such insurance will be adequate. 

(i) (c) Advanced Information Services 
General 
Chesapeake's advanced information services segment consists of Bravepoint. Inc. i'-Bra\zePoint" j. a wholly owned 
subsidiar!, of the Companjj. BravePoint. heaaquarrered in IKorcross. Georgia. provides domestic ana inieriiarioiial 
clients with information technology related business s e n  ices and solutions for both enterprise and e-business 
applications. 

Compefition 
See discussion on competition i n  item 7 under the heading "Management's Discussioii and Anal!,sis - 
Coni pe t i t  ion, '' 

(i) id) Ofher Subsidiaries 
Skipjack. inc. ("Skip,iack"). Eastern Shore Real Estate. Inc. and Chesapeake Investment Compan!, are wholl! owned 
subsidiaries of Chesapeake Sewice Compan!, Skip,iack and Eastern Shore Real Estate, Inc. owii and lease office 
buildings iii Delaware and ivlaryland to affiliates of Chesapeake. Chesapeake investment Compan!, is a Deiaivare 
affiliated ini,esument compan! , During 2004. Chesapeake formed a new cornpan!, OnSight E n e r g ,  LLC 
("OnSight",. to pro\,ide distributed energ! solutions io customers requiring reliable. uninterrupted energ!  source^ 

and/or those N ishing 10 reduce energ! costs. 

(ii) Seasonal Nature of Business 
Re\ enues from the Compan! ' s  residential and commercial natural gas sales and from its propane distribution 
acti\.ities are affected b! seasonal \,ariatiom. since tne ma.iorit! ofthese sa!es are to customers using the fueis for 
heating purposes. Revenues froni these customers are accordingl!' affected b!. the mildness or severir!, ofthe neatin! 
season. 

(iii) Capital Budget 
A discussion of capital espenditures b! business segment and capital expenditures for en\/ironmeiiia: controi 
facilities are included in  Item 7 under the heading "h4anagement Discussion and Analysis - Liquidit!, and Capiral 
Resources." 

Page 6 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2006 Form 10-K 



(iv) Employees 
As of December 3 1 ! 2006. Chesapeake had 437 employees. including 193 in natural gas, 142 in propane and 70 in 
advanced information services. The remaining 32 employees are considered general and administrative and include 
officers of the Company, treasury. accounting, internal audit. information technology. human resources and other 
administrative personnel. 

(v) Executive Officers of the Registrant 
Information pertaining to the executive officers o f  the Company is as follows: 

John R. Schimkaitis (age 59) Mr. Schimkaitis is President and Chief Executive Officer of  Chesapeake and its 
subsidiaries. Mr. Schimkaitis assumed the role of Chief Executibe Officer on January I .  1999. He has served as 
President since 1997. Prior to this, Mr. Schimkaitis sewed as President and Chiefoperating Officer. Executive Vice 
President. Senior Vice President. Chief Financiai Officer. Vice Presiden:. Treasurer. .Assistant Treasurer and 
.4ssistant Secretarq of Chesapeake. 

Michael P. McMasters (age 48) Mr. McMasters is Senior Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer of Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation. He was appointed Senior Vice President in 2004 and has served as Chief Financial Officer 
since December 1996. He has previousl!, held the posiLions ofVice President. Treasurer. Director of Accounting and 
Rates. and Controller. From 1992 to Ma! 1994. Mr. McMasters was employed as Director of operations Pianning 
for Equitable Gas Compan!,. 

Stephen C. Thompson (age 46) Mr. Thompson is President of Eastern Shore hatural Gas Company and Senior Vice 
President of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President in 2004. he served as Vice 
President of Chesapeake since Ma) 1997. He has also served as Vice President. Director of Gas Suppi), and 
Marketing. Superinrendent o f  Eastern Shore and Regional blanager for the Florida distribution operations. 

Beth L", Cooper (,age 10) Ms. Cooper is Vice President. Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation. Ms. Cooper has sen.ed as Corporate Secretary since ,luI! 2005. She iousi\, sewed as Assistant 
Treasurer and .Assistant Secretar) . Director of Internal Audit. Director of Strategic Planning. Pianning Consultant, 
Accounting Manager for Non-regulated Operations and Treasury AnaI!,st. Prior to joining Chesapeake. she was 
employed as an auditor \vith Ernst & Young's Entrepreneurial Ser\,ices Group. 

S. Robert Zola (age 54) Mr .  Zolaioined Sharp Energy in August of2002 as President. Prior tojoining Sharp Energ!. 
Mr. Zola most recentiy served as Northeasr Regional Manager of Synergy Gas. nou Cornerstone MLP. iii 
Philadeiphia. P.4. During his 26-year career in the propane industr! . Mr, Zola aiso started Biuestreai, Prouane in  
Phoenix. AZ. \j+ich after successfuii! de\,eloping the business. \vas sold to Ferrril Gas. 

(vi} Financial informafion about Geographic Areas 
.b,ll o f  tne Compan! 's  material operations. customers. and assets occur and arc iocared in the Enited Stares. 

(d) Available information 
AS a public conipan!, Chesapeake fiies annual. quarteriy and other repoi-rs. as \\ell as its annual pros!' staremenr and 
other informarion. u%h the Securities and Exchange Commission i"SEC";. The public ma!' read and cop! an!' matzrials 
thar the Compan! fiies n i t h  the SEC a: the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 7 Street. K E ,  
V\.ashingtoi-,. DC 20549-5546: and the public may obtain information on the operation oftlie Public Reference Room b! 

caliing the SEC ai I -800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports. pros!' and information 
statements and other information regarding the Compan!,. The address of the SEC's Internet website is u'\v\? .sec.go\ 
Chesapeake makes avaiiabie. fiee of charge. on its internet websi te  its Annual Report on Form IO-K. Quarterl!, R,p 0 oris 
on Form 10-0. Current Reports on Form &I; and amendmenrs to those reports. as soon as reasonabi!, practicable after 
such reports are eiectronicalf!. filed with 0: furnished to the SEC. The address of Chesapeake's Internet wehsite is 
www.chpk.com. The content of this website is not part oftlnis report. 
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Chesapeake has a Business Code of Ethics and Conduct applicable to all employees, officers and directors and a Code of 
Ethics for Financial Officers. Copies of the Business C,ode of Ethics and Conduct and the Financial Officer Code of 
Ethics are available on its internet website. Chesapeake also adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines and Chaners for 
the Audit Committee. Compensation Committee. and Governance Committee of the Board of  Directors. each of which 
satisfies the regulator\ requirements established b> the Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York Stock 
Exchange ("NY SE"). The Board of Directors has also adopted "Corporate Governance Guidelines on Director 
Independence," which conform to the NYSE listing standards on director independence. Each ofthese documents aiso is 
available on Chesapeake's Internet website or may be obtained by writing to: Corporate Secretary: c/o Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation; 909 Silver Lake Blvd.; Dover. DE 19904. 

If Chesapeake makes an> amendment to. or grants a waiver of. any provision of the Business Code of Ethics and 
Conduct or the Financial Officer Code of Ethics applicable to its principal executive officer, principal financial officer. 
principal accounting officer or controller. the amendment or waiver will be disclosed within five business days on the 
Company's Internet website. 

lTEM I A .  RISK FACTORS. 

The following is a discussion of the primal? factors that may affect the operations and/or financial performance ofth: 
regulated and unregulated businesses of Chesapeake. Refer to the section entitled "!Clamge~nen/'s Discussio/.i am/ 
,4/~a/ysis ofFinaizciui Coim'iriotz and Resukr qf0perariom " under Irem 7 of this report for an addirional discussion of 
these and other related factors that affect the Compan!. ' s  operations and/or financial performance. The principal business. 
economic and other factors that affect the opcrations and/or financial performance of  the Compan!, include: 

Fluctuations in weather have tlie potential to adverse[y affect our results nf operations, cush f lows and,financial 
condition. 
Our utility and propane distribution operations are sensirive to fluctuations in weather. and weather condirions airecti! 
influence the volume of natural gas and propane delivered h! our utility and propane distribution operations to customers. 
.A significant poi-tion of our utiiit!, and propane distribution operations' revenues are derived from the deIiLer), of natural 
gas and propane to residential and commercial heating customers during the five-month peak hearing seasoii 0.f 

biovember through March. If the weather is warmer than normal. we deliver less natural gas and propane to customers. 
and earn less revenue. in addition. hurricanes or other extreme v, eather conditions could damage produciioii or 
transportation facilities. which could result in decreased supplies oi'naturai gas and propane. increased suppi! costs and 
higher prices for customers. 

Regulaiion Qf the Compatiy, including changes in the reguiarory environment in generai, ma). adverse!tb uJfect our  
results of operations, cnsh .flows and,/irraricial condition. 
The state Public Semice Commissions of Delaware. Maryiand and Florida regulate our natural gas distributiot; 
operations. Sastern Shore. O U T  natural gas transmission subsidiary. is regulated bb, the FERC. These regularop. agencies 
set the rates in their respecti e ,jurisdictions that we can c h a y e  cusIomers for our rate-reguiated services Changes it: 
these rates. as ordered D!, regulator! commissions. affect our financial performance. Our abiiit!. to obtain rimel! futur: 
rate increases ana rate supplements to maintain current rates of return depends on regulator> discretion. and [her: can be 
no assurance that our divisions and Eastern Shore will be able IO obtain rate increases o? supplements or continu? 
receiving currentl!. authorized rates of  return. 

The umourif arid avaiiahilig, of natural gas arid propane supplies are drlfficul: to predict. which mar reduce our 
earnings. 
Natural gas and propane production can be impacted b>. factors outside of our control. such as weather and refiner!, 
closings. If we are unable to obtain sufficient natural gas and propane suppiies to meet demand. our results of operations 
niay be negativel!, impacted. 
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We re411 or? having access to interstate pipelines' transportatioit and storuge cupaciq. I f  these pipelines or storuge 
facilities were riot avai Lable, it ma.)? impair our ability to meet our customers 'full requirements. 
We must acquire both sufficient natural gas supplies and interstate pipeline and storage capacity to meet customer 
requirements. We must contract for reliable and adequate delivery capacity for our distribution system. while considering 
the dynamics of the interstate pipeline and storage capacity market, our own on-system resources? as well as. the 
characteristics of our customer base. Local natural gas distribution companies, including us. and other participants in the 
energy industry. have raised concerns regarding the future availability of additional upstream interstate pipeline and 
storage capacity. Additional avaiiable pipeiine and storage capacity is a business issue that must be managed by us. as 
our customer base grows. 

Natural gas arid propane commodi@ price changes may affect the operating costs and competitive positions of our 
natural gas and propane distribution operations, which mav adverse(v affect our results ofoperations, cash f lows and 
financial condition. 
Natural Gas. Over the last four years. natural gas costs have increased significantly and become more \<oIatile. I n  
addition. the hurricane activit! in 2005 reduced the natural gas available from the Gulf Coast region, fuur.ther contributing 
to the volatility ofnatural gas prices. Higher natural gas prices can result in significant increases in the cost of gas billed 
to customers during the winter heating season. Under our regulated gas cost recovery mechanisms. we record cost of gas 
expense equal to the cost ofgas recovered in revenues from customers. Therefore. an increase in the cost ol'gas due to an 
increase in the price o f  the natural pas cornmodit: generail! has no immediate effect on our revenues and net income. 
However. our net income ma?' be reduced due to higher expenses that ma)' be incurred for uncoliectible customer 
accounts. as well as. lower volumes of natural gas deliveries to customers due to lower natural gas consumption caused 
h! customer conservation. increases in the price of natural gas also can affect our operating cash flows. as well as the 
competitiveness of natural gas as an energy source. 

ProDane. The level ofprofitabilit), in the retail propane business is largel), dependent on the difference berween the cost 
of propane and the revenues derived from our saie of propane to our customers. Propane costs are suhjec: to volatile 
changes as a result of uroduct suppi> or othe: marker conditions. including economic arid political factors impacting 
crude oil and natural gas suppi! or pricing. Propane cost changes can occur rapid]) over a shorr period oi'time and can 
impact proiitabiiity. There is no assurance that we L v i l i  be able to pass on propane cost increases fulib or iiiimediatel) , 

pariicuiarl!, when propane costs increase or decrease rapidl! , Therefore. average retail sales prices can \ ar) signilicanti! 
from year 10 year as product costs fluctuate with propane. fuel oil. crude oil and natural gas commodiry market 
conditions. i n  addition. in periods ofsustained higher commodip. prices. retail sales volumes may be negativel! impacted 
b! customer consewation effoi-ts and increased amounts of uncollectible accounts. which ma! ad\,ersel! affect ne! 
income. 

We compete in N competitive environment and may he,fuced with losing customers co a competitor. 

competitors include til: interstate pipelines ii' distribution customer is iocated close enough to the iransniissioi: 
compan! ' s  pipeiine to make a connection economicall), feasibie. 

M'e conipete with third-part!. suppliers to sell gas to indusrrial customers. As it reiates to transportation sen i-_ res .  O L I ?  

Our propane distribution operations compete w i t h  several other propane distributors in their service territories. primarii! 
on the basis of service and price. emphasizing reliabiiit! of  sew ice and responsiveness. Some of our conipetitors have 
signiricantl!, greater resources. The retail propane industr!, is maturc. and we foresee oniy modest growth i n  total 
demand. Given this iimiled growth. we expect that !'ear-to-year indust!? volumes \t,ill be principall! affected b\, "eather 
patterns. Therefore. our abili t!' ro grow' the propane distriburion business is contingent upon execution of our communit! 
gas s!'stems strareg)' to capture market share and to empio? service pricing programs that retain and grou our customer 
base. An! failure to retain and grow our customer base would have an adverse effect on our results. 

The propane uhoiesale marketing operation competes against various marketers. man! of which have significantl? 
grearer resources and are able to obtain price or olumetric advantages. 
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The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a number of larger competitors having 
substantially greater resources available to them to compete on the basis of technological expertise. reputation and price. 

Costs of compliance with environmental laws ma.y be significant 
We are subject to federal. state and local laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution control. 
These evolving iaws and regulations may require expenditures over a long period of  time to control environmental effects 
at current and former operating sites, including former manufactured gas plant sites that w e  have acquired from third 
parties. Compliance with these legal requirements requires us to commit capital toward environmental compliance. If we 
fail to comply with environmental laws and regulations. even if such failure is caused by factors beyond our control, we 
may be assessed civil or criminal penalties and fines. 

To date. we have been able to recover through approved rate mechanisms the costs of recovery associated M i t h  the 
remediation offormer manufactured gas plant sites. However. there is no guarantee that we wil l  be able to recover future 
remediation costs in the same manner or at all. A change in our approved rate mechanisms for recovery of environmental 
remediation costs at former manufactured gas plant sites could adversely affect our results of operations. cash flows and 
financial condition. 

Further. existing environmental laws and regulations may be revised or new iaws and regulations seeking to protect the 
environment ma)' be adopted or become applicable ro us. Revised or additional laws and regulations could result in 
additional operating restrictions on our facilities or increased compliance costs which ma) not be fully recoverable bq us. 

A change in the economic conditions and interest rates may adversel[v affect our results of operations nnd cnshjows.  
A downturn in the economies of the  regions in which we operate, which we cannot accurateiy predict. might adversei! 
affect our abilit! to increase our customer base and other businesses at the same rate the!, have grown in the  recent past. 
Further. an increase in interest rates, without the recoveq of the higher cost of debt in the sales and/or rransporralioi: 
rares we charge our utility customers. could adversel!, affect future earnings. .4n increase in short-term interest rares 
would negative11 affect our results of operations. which depend on short-term debt to finance accounts receivable. 
storage gas inventories. and to temporarii) finance capital expenditures. 

Inflatiori may impact our results of opernti ons, cash .flows arzd~finaricial position. 
lnflation affects the cost 01' supply. labor. products and services required for operations. maintenance and capitai 
improvements. While the impact of inflation has remained low in recent years. natural gas and propane prices are sub.iec! 
to rapid fluctuations. To help cope with the effects ofinflation on our capital investments and returns, we seek rate relief 
from regulator!, commissions for regulated operations while monitoring the returns of our unreguiared business 
operations. There can he no assurance that we will be able to obtain adequate and tiniei! rate reliefto offset the effects of 
intlation. To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices. we ad,iust our propane selling prices to the extent alloi4'ed 
by the market. Ho\ve\,er. there can be no assurance that we will be able to increase propane sales prices sufficienti! [o 
full! compensare for such fluctuations in the cost of  propane gas to us, 

Cii anges in fechrtoiogi~ m q  adverselji affecr our advanced information services segment's results ?foperariotis, casli 
flows andjinaricial condition. 
Our advanced information services segment participates in a market that is characterized b! rapidl!, changing technolog! 
and accelerating product introduction cycles. The success of our advanced information services segment depends upoi; 
our ability to address the rapidl! changing needs of our  customers by developing and supplying high-quality. cost- 
effective products. product enhancements and services on a timel! basis. and b!, keeping pace with technological 
deveiopments and emerging industr), standards. There car, be no assurance that we will be able to keep up i h i t n  

technological advancements necessac. to make our products competitive. 
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Our enerx), marketing subsidiaries have credit risk and credit requirements that may adversely effect our results of 
operations, cash flows a n  dfinancial c o d i t i o n .  
Xeron, our propane wholesale and marketing subsidiary. and PESCO, our natural gas markering subsidiay in Florida, 
estend credit to counter-parties. While w e  believe Xeron and PESCO utilize prudent credit policies. each of these 
subsidiaries is exposed to the risk that it may not be able to collect amounts owed to it. If the counter-party to such a 
transaction fails to perform and any underlying collateral is inadequate, we could experience financial losses. 

Xeron and PESCO are dependent upon the availability of credit to bu! propane and natural gas for resale or to trade. If 
the financial condition of  these subsidiaries declines. or if our financial condition declines. then the cost of credit 
available IO these subsidiaries could increase If credit is not available. or if credit is more costly. our results of 
operations. cash tlows and financial condition may be adversel! affected. 

Our use qf derivative instruments may  adverselv affect our results of operations. 
Fluctuating commodit), prices cause our earnings and financing costs to be impacted. Our propane distribution and 
wholesale marketing segment uses derivative instruments. including foru'ards. swaps and puts. to hedge price risk. i n  
addition. we ha\,e utilized in the past, and may decide. after further evaluation. to continue to utilize derivative 
instruments to hedge price risk for our Delaware and Maryland divisions. as w e l l  as PESCO. While we  have a risk 
management polic! and operating procedures in place to controi our exposure to risk. if w e  purchase derivative 
instruments that are not properil, matched to our exposure. our results of operations. cash flows. and financial conditions 
ma!' be adversel!, impacted. 

inahiliq! to uccess the cnpital markets mnv impair our,future growth. 
b e  rely on access IO both shoil-term and longer-term capital markets as a significant source of iiquidity for capitai 
requirements nor satisfied b> the cash flow from our  operations. Currently. $55 million of the total $80 million of short- 
term lines of credit utilized to sarisfy our short-term financing requirements are discretionary. uncommitted lines of 
credit. We utiiize discrerionar! lines of credit to reduce the cost associated with these short-term financing requirements. 
%;e are committed to maintaining a sound capital srructure and strong credit ratings to proside the financial fiexibiIitJ 
needed to access the capital markets when required. However. if we are not able to access capital at competitive rates, 
our abiiit! to implement our strategic plar.. undertake improvements ana make other in\,estments required for our future 
growth may be limited. 

We m e  depenrieiit upon access to naturaigas supp[v and the construction of  new fuciiities to support,fiitare growth in 

construction ofthese facilities is subject to various resuiator) . dekelopnient ana operational risks, include hut nor iiniired 
to our  ahilitb to obtain necessary approvals and permits b!' reguiatory agencies on a tiniel! basis and on ternis that are 
acceptable IO LIS; porential changes in federal. state and local sratutes and regulations, including en\ ironmentai 
requirements. rhar pre\ ent a pro,iect from proceeding or increase tile anticipaied cost of the project: impediments on our 
ability tc acquire rights-of-v+,a> or iand rights on a timely basis on terms that are acceptable to us: lack ofanticipated 
future grolvth in  natural gas suppi!,: and iack of  rransportation or throughput comniitmenrs. 

es and the interstate pipeline. 

W'e ore subject to operating and Litigation risks that mriv tiof be covered bv irisurnrice. 
Our operations are subject to the operating hazards and risks normall! incidental tc handling. storing. transporting anc; 
orhenvise providing natural gas and propane to end users. As a resul~. Lve are sometimes a defendant in iepai proceedings 
and litigation arising in the ordinan. course of business. \'e maintain insurance policies with insurers in such amolunts 
and with such co\'erages and deductibles as we believe are reasonable and prudent. There can be no assurance: ho\?ever. 
that such insurance M i i i  be adequate to protect us from ail materia! expenses related to potential future claims fo: 
persona! in.iur! and propert!' damage or thai such ieveis ofinsurance of ill be aLaiiabie in the future ai econoiiiicai prices 

ITEM 16. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS. 

None, 
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

(a) General 
The Company owns offices and operates facilities in the following locations: Pocomoke. Salisbury, Cambridge and 
Princess Annel Maryland; Dover, Seaford. Laurel and Georgetown, Delaware; and Winter Haven, Florida. Chesapeake 
rents office space in Dover and Ocean View, Delaware: Jupiter and Lecanto, Florida; Chincoteague and Belle Haven, 
Virginia; Easton, and Salisbury, Maryland; Hone!, Brook and Allentown, Pennsylvania; Houston. Texas: and Norcross. 
Georgia. In general. the Company believes that its properties are adequate for the uses for which they are employed. 
Capacity and utilization of the  Company's facilities can var!' significantly due to the seasonal nature ofthe natural gas 
and propane distribution businesses, 

(b) Natural Gas Distribution 
Chesapeake owns over 965 miles of natural gas distribution mains (together with related service lines. meters and 
regulators) located in its Delaware and Maryland service areas and 726 miies of natural gas distribution mains (and 
reiated equipment) in  its central Florida sen,ice areas. Chesapeake also owns faciiitics i n  Delaware and Maryland fo:. 
propane-air in,jection during periods of peak demand. 

(c) Natural Gas Transmission 
Eastem Shore owns and operates approximatel) 366 miles of transmission pipelines extending from sipply interconnects 
at Parkesburg. Pennsylvania: Daleville. Pennsylvania and Hockessin. Delaware to approximately 75 deiivery points iii 

southeastern Pennsylvania. Delaware and the eastern shore of Maryland. 

(d) Propane Distribution and Wholesale Marketing 
The compan!-'s Delman~a-based propane distribution operation owns bulk propane storage facilities \vith a n  aggregate 
capacity of approximatel! 2.0 million gallons at 42 plant facilities in Delaware. Mar).land and Virginia. located on real 
estate that is either owned or leased. The Compan!.'s Fiorida-based propane distribution operarion o w i s  three h u l k  
propane storage facilities with a total capacity of 66.000 gallons. Xeroii does not o\\.n physical storage facilities or 
equipment to transport propane: however. i t  leases propane storage capacity and pipei ine capacit) . 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

(a) General 
The C o m p a q  and its subsidiaries are involved ir, various legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of 
business. The Compan) is aiso involved in certain legai and administrative proceedings before \,arious governnienta! 
agencies concerning rates. In  the opinion of management. the ultimate disposition of these proceedings i!,iii no; ha\ r 2 

material effect on our consolidated financial nosition. 

(b) Environmental 
See discussion of en\/ironmental commitments and contingencies ir, ltcni 8 unde: the heading "\ores to Consoiidarzd 
Financial Statements - k o t e  M." 

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VQTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS. 

None 

PART I I  

ITEM 5 .  MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES. 
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(a) Common Stock Price Ranges, Common Stock Dividends and Shareholder Information: 
The Company's Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "CPK." The high. low and 
closing prices of Chesapeake's Common Stock and dividends declared per share for each calendar quarter during the 
years 2006 and 2005 were as follows: 

Dividends 
Declared 

Quarter Ended High Low Close Per Share 

March 31 5 32.47 5 29.97 5 31.24 5 0.285 
June 30 31.20 27.90 30.08 0.290 
September 30 35.65 29.51 30.05 0.290 
December 31 31.31 29.10 30.65 0.290 

2006 

2005 
March 3 1 $21 59 $25 83 $2660 S 0 2 8 0  
lune 30 $30 95 $23 60 $30 5 8  Ci 285 
September 34 $35 60 $29 50 $35 16 0 285 
December 3 I $35 7s $30 32 $30 80 0 285 

Dividend payments are paq'abie at the discretion of our Board ofDirectors. Future payment ofdividends and the amount 
ofthese dividends. will depend on our financial condition. results of  operations. capital requirements, and other factors. 

5oid 110 securities diiring -,!ear 20% that \\#ere nct registered under  :he Sewrities Ac: o r  1933,  as axended. 

Indentures to the long-term debt of the Company contain various restrictions. The most srringent restrictions state thar the 
Compan!, must maintain equip of a: ieast 40 percent oftotal capitalization and the pro-forma fixed charge co\wage raiici 
niust be at ieasi I .5 times. The Company !vas in compliance u.ith these restrictions and tile other debt covenants durins 
2006. 

A[ December 3!. 2006. there were 1.978 shareholders o f  record of the Common Sroch 

(b) Purchases of Equity Securities by the issuer 
The following table sets forth information on purchases b!' or on behalf of'chesaneake oi' shares of its Coninion S~oci; 
during the quarter ended December 3 I .  2006. 

Total Number of 
Total Shares Purchased as Maximum Number of 

Number of Average Part of Publicly Shares That May Yet Be 
Snares Drice Paid Announced Plans or Purchased Under the 

Pians or Programs (2) Period Purchased oer Share Programs (21 
October ' 2006 
tnrough October 3" 2006 (!)  463 $2992 C 

through NovemDe- 3C 2006 0 $0 0c ci 

throuah December 31 2006 C $0 00 C 

tvovember 1 2006 

Decemoer 1 2006 

~~ 

Total 463 $29 92 0 0 

' Chesaoeake ourchased shares of stocn on h e  open market for the Durpose of reinvesting the divioend on snares 
held in Rabb Trust accounts for certain Senior Executives During the quaner 463 snares were purchased 
t h rough  executive aividend deferrals 
Except for tne purpose describe0 in Footnote (1) ChesaDeake has no publlcly announced plans or programs t@ 

repurcnase its shares 

'' 
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Discussion on compensation plans of Chesapeake and its subsidiaries for which shares ofChesapeake common stock are 
authorized for issuance is incorporated herein by reference to the portion of the Proxy Statement captioned “Equit! 
Compensation Plan Information” to be filed not later than March 3 1 ,  2007 i n  connection with the Company‘s Annual 
Meeting to be held on May 2 .  2007. 

(C) Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Common Stock Performance Graph 
The following Performance Graph compares the yearly percentage change in cumulative total shareholder return on the 
Company’s common stock during the five fiscal years ended December 31. 2006. with the cumulative return on ( i )  the 
S&P 500 Index and (ii) an industry index consisting of 30 Natural Gas Distribution and Integrated Natural Gas 
Companies as published by C.A Turner Utility Reports. 

The thirty companies in the C.A. Turner industry indes are as follows: AGL Resources, Inc.. Atmos Energy Corporation. 
Cascade Natural Gas Corporation, Chesapeake Utilities Corporation, Delta Natural Gas Compan)’. Inc.. El Paso 
Corporation, Energen Corporation. Energy West. Inc.. Energ).South. Inc.. Equitable Resources. Inc.. KeySpan 
Corporation. Kinder Morgan. Inc.. The Laclede Group. Inc.. National Fuel Gas Compan!,. New, Jersey Resources 
Corporation, NICOR. Inc.. Korthwest Natural Gas Compan). ONEOK. Inc.. Peoples Energ? Corporation. Piedmont 
Katural Gas Co.. Inc.. Questar Corporation. RGC Resources. Inc.: SEMCG Energy. inc.. South Jersey Industries. lnc.. 
Southern Union Compan).. Southwest Gas Corporation, Southwest Energ!, Company. UGI Corporation. WGL Holdings. 
Inc.. and The U:illiams Companies. Inc. 
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The comparison assumes $ 1  00 was invested on December 3 1.2001 in the Company’s common stock and in each of the 
foregoing indices and assumes reinvested dividends. The comparisons in the Graph belot\ are based on historical data 
and are not intended to forecast the possible future performance of the Company’s Common Stock. 

Stock Performance 

$250 

Cumulative Total Stockholder Return 
2001 zoo2 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Chesaneake $ I O 0  $9X S I 4 5  $ 1  133 - -  % I  86 1!92 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 13) 2005 2004 

Ooeratine h i  thousands of dollars1 ' I i  

Revenues 
Narural gas 
Propane 
Advanced informations s ls tems 

S170,374 $166.582 $124.246 
48,576 48.976 41.500 
12,568 14.140 12.427 

Other and eliminations (317) 168) (2181 
Torai revenues $23 1.201 $229.63 0 S I  7',955 

Operating income 
Natural gas 
Propane 
Advanced informations systems 

$19.733 $ 1  7.236 $17.091 
2.534 3,209 2,364 

76': 1.197 387 
Other and elimiiiatioiis (1031 (112) 12s 

Total operating income $22,931 $2 1.530 S l9.97(1 

\ret income from continuing operations % 1 0 , 5 0 ~  $10 46s $9 550 

Assets fin tltoustrrzds of doNarsi 
Gross propert). plant and equipmen! 
\et propert), plant and  equipment "' 
Total assets ('' 
Capital expenditures ' I  

$325,836 5280,345 $250.26: 
$240,825 $20 1.504 $177,053 
s324.994 $295.980 924 1.938 

$48,969 533.423 $I 7.830 

Caoitalization lilt  tkousnrids of dolinrs) 
Stockholders' eqt i i t i  $111.152 $84.757 $77.962 . .  
Long-term debt. net of currenr maturities 71.050 58.991 66. ! 9C 
Total capitalization $182.202 $133.748 S 144.1 52 
Current portion of long-term debt $7,656 $4.929 $2.90c, 
Short-term debt 27.554 35.482 5.002 
Total capitalization and short-term financing $21 7,412 $184. I59 $ 152.063 

( I '  These amounts exclude the results of water services due io their reclassificarion to discontinued operations The assets 
of all o f  the water businesses were soid i i i  2004 and 2003 
SFAS 14; was adopted iii the year 2001, therelore. SFAS 143 \\as not applicahie for the years prioi IO 2001. ( 2 :  

"'SFAS i23R and SFAS 158 awe  adopred in the !'ear 2006: therefore. tile!, \+ere not appii-ahi: for the >ears prior 
to 2006 
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~~ 

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

$ 1  10.247 $93,588 $107,418 $101.138 $75.637 $68.770 $88.108 
4 1,029 29,238 35,742 3 1.780 25,199 23.377 28.614 
12.578 12,764 14,104 12,390 13.531 10.33 I 7 786 

(286) 1334) ( 1 1 3 )  1131) 0 4 )  (15)  1182) 
$163,568 $135.256 $ 1  5 7 , !  51 $145,177 $1 14.353 $102.463 $124,326 

$16,653 $14.973 $14,405 $11.798 $10.388 $8.820 $9.240 
3.875 ! 052 913 2.135 2.622 965 I 137 

692 343 517 336 1 4 7 0  I 3 1 6  1.046 
359 23- 3 86 816 495 485 558  

$2 I .579 $16 605 $ 1  6.221 $16.085 6 l4.9-'5 $!!.586 $ I  1.981 

$10,079 $7.535 $7.341 $7.665 $8.372 $5.329 $5.812 

$234.9 19 $229.128 $216,903 $192.925 $ 1  72.068 $ 1  52.991 $ I  44.35 I 
$ 1  67.872 $166.846 $161.0!4 $13 1.466 $ 1  17.663 $104.266 $99.879 
$227.058 $223.72 1 $222.229 $2 I 1.764 $166,958 $135.029 5145,719 

$!  1.822 $13,836 $26,293 R?2,ni7 22 1.365 $12.5 I6 '%I3 471 

$72.939 $67.350 $67.5 I7 $64.669 %60,7 I 4  $56,356 $53.656 
69.416 73.408 48.409 50.921 33.777 37.597 38.226 

$142.355 $ 340.738 $115.926 $ 1  15.590 $94.49 I $93.953 $9 1.882 
$3.665 $3.?38 $2.686 $2.665 352.665 $520 $1,051 

3,515 10.900 12. 100 25.400 23,000 11.600 7.6011 
$149.535 $155.596 $160.71 2 S 143,655 $120. I 56 S 106.073 $100.533 
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 ( 3 )  2005 2004 

Common Stock Data and Ratios 
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations ( "  $1.74 $1 .79 $1.66 
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations ( ' I  $1.72 $ 1  77 $1.64 

Return on average equity from continuing operations 'I) 10.7% 12.90;o 12.7% 

Common equity / total capitalization 6 1 .O '/o 59 @% 54.150 
Common equity 1 total capitalization and short-term financing 51.1Y" 46.090 5 I .3Y0 

Book value per share $16.62 514.41 $13 45 

Market price 
High $35.650 $35.780 $27.550 
L o u  527.900 523 600 $20 1211 
Close $30.650 930.800 $26.700 

5,836.46; 5.335.405 Average number of shares outstanding 
Shares outstanding ai year-end 6,688.081 5.883.099 5.78.976 
Registered common shareholders 1.978 2.026 2.026 

6,032,462 

Cash divideiids declared per share S1.16 $ 1  I1 SI 13 

Payout ratio from coniin 66.7% G3 ,_. 7YG 6;,5u/; 
Dividend yield (annualized) '" 3.8% 3.70,<1 4 2% 

Additional Data 
Customers 

Katural gas distribution and traiisiiiission 59.132 51.786 50 .8X 
Propane disrributioi: 33.282 33.i I 7  34.888 

V ol unies 
Katural gas distribution and transmission deiiveries in; hlMCF) 34.321 34.981 3 i .43(; 
Propane disLributioii I in thousands of gallons! 21.243 26.178 23.9"l 

Heating degree-aays iDeiiiiarva Feninsula; 
Actual HDD 
I C: -year average H 3 D  (normal'; 

3.nq5 

Total employees r '  437 1-3 470 

7 7 . -  Propane bulk storage capacit! ( in tnousaiidc of :alioi?si 3,315 - ,3 1 ? 

"' These amounts exclude the results o i  water sen'ices due to their reciassiflcatioii IC discontinued operarions Tne assets 

' - '  Dividend yield ~ani iuai izedt  is calculated oy iiiultipiyng die fourth qtiarrer dividend b\ four (18. ther 

,.3' 

of all of the water Dusinesses were sold ii: 2004 a n d  2OC3 

dividing tnat aiiiouiir b!. the ciosing comiiioii stock price a! December 3 I 
S F A S  123R and SFAS i58 Mere adopred in the year 2006. therefore. tile!' were not applicable for the years prio' 
to 2006 

(for tn: y e x i  0).  basic earnings per snare from continuing operations 
"' The payout ratio from continuing operations is calcuiated D) dividing a s h  dividends declared per share 
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2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 

$1.80 $1.37 $1.37 $1.46 $1.63 $1.05 $1.17 
$ 1  16 $1 .37  $1.35 $I .43 $1.59 $1.04 $1 .15  

14 4% 1 1.2% 11.1% 12.2% 14.3% 9 .7% I I . l 0 / 6  

5 1 .?% 4 7 . 8 %  58.2% 55.9% 64.3% 60.O0i0 58 4% 
48 8% 43.3% 42. O o h  45.0% 50.5% 53 1% 53.4oio 

$12.89 $12 16 $12.45 $12.21 SI 1.71 $11.06 $10 72 

$2i.750 $26.700 $2 1.990 $19.900 $1 8 875 $ 19.8 13 
$18.400 $16.500 $ 1  7.375 $ 1  6.25(~  $14 875 S; 16.500 $16.2.50 
$26.050 $18.300 S I 9  800 $18 625 $ 1 8  375 E l 8 5 1 3  520.500 

5.610.592 5.489.324 5.367.433 5.249.439 5,144,449 5.060.328 4,971,086 

2.069 2.130 2.171 2. I66 2,2 12 2.77 I 2.178 

si I 0  $ 1  1 0  $ 1  IO $I 07 $ 1  03 $!.00 $0.97 

6i io/; 80,3?0 8li.3So 13.3 /u 

$20.500 

5.660.594 5.537.710 5.424.962 5.297.443 5,186346 5,093,788 5.004.07 8 

4.20,; 6 090 5 6',0 5.8% 5 . 7 %  5.59, 4 790 
E2.9YO 9.; 5 0 ,  

7 , . * / , ,  
I -  7" 03  - / u  -* l ( i ,  

47.649 45. i33 42.74 i 4rj~X54 39.029 27.128 35.797 
34.894 34.566 3 2.  >30 33.267 34.1 13 9 -  - 7  

29.375 27.935 27.264 30.x30 17.383 3 1.400 23.297 
25.14- 21.185 2 3.0 80 28.469 27.788 25.97'1 26.682 

4 . 7 1 5  161 4.368 4.730 4.082 3.704 4.430 
3,409 4.393 4.446 4.356 4.409 4-49? 4 . 5 l 4  

3.195 -. 7 i-;) 1 " :.95S i ,928 ,926 !.89('1 i.866 

439 4:5 45s 4'1 166 4 3  ! 39- 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

INTRODUCTION 

This section provides management's discussion of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries 
with specific information on results of operations and liquidit) and capital resources. It  includes management's 
interpretation of our financial results, the factors affecting these results, the major factors expected to affect future 
operating results and future investment and financing plans. This discussion should be read in conjunction nith our 
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. 

Several factors exist that could influence our future financial performance. some of which are described in Item 1.4 
above. "Risk Factors". The!, shouid be considered in connection with evaluating forward-iooking Statements contained in 
this report or otherwise made by or on behalf of us since these factors could cause actual results and conditions to differ 
materiall) from those set ou i  in such forward-lookin= 0 statements 

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 
Chesapeake is a diversified urility compan!' engaged directi! or through subsidiaries in natural gas distribution. 
transmission and marketing. propane distribution and whoiesale marketing. ad \mced  inforniation senices and other 
reiated businesses. 

The Company's strateg)' is focused on growing earnings from a stabie utilit!, foundation and investing in reiated 
businesses and services that provide opportunities for returns greater than tradirionai utilit!, retums. The key elements 01" 

this suategS include: 

Executing a capital investment program iii pursuit oi'organic growth opportunities that generate returns equal to 
or greater than our cost of capital. 
Expanding the natural gas distribution and transmission business through expansion into ne\\ geographic areas 
i n  our current serv ice territories. 
Expanding the propane distribution business in existing and new markets through ieveraging our coniniunip 
gas system sewices and our bulk deikei? capabilities. 
btiiizing the Compan),'s expertise across our various businesses to improw overall performance. 
Enhancing marketing channeis to atrract new customers and providing reiiabie and responsive customer servicc 
to retain existin= 0 cusiomers. 
Maintaining a capital srructurc that enabies the Compan!, to access capita! as needed. 
Maintaining a consistent and ionipetiri\,e dividend. 

* 

0 

i n  20013~ the Conipan!, earned 61 0.507.i)00 iri net income. or S;! ,-I per snare tdiiured:. i i i  spite of weather that \viis the 
.;econc Lvarinest i n  the last thii-t!. !.ears. I n  2005. ne: inconie \\'as $10.468.000. or 51.77 per diiuted share. Cherai:. 
operating income i n  2006 increased I;! .101.000. or 6.5 percen: iron? 2005. despite iveatner thar \?$as ! 8 percent warme:. 
tnan ir, 7005. Ho\ve\ er. the increase in operating income was offset b! a decline of $ I  94.006. or 5 1 percen:. in othe:. 
income. net of other expenses. and increases ir. interest espens: 0:' S6-14.000. or 1 1 .5  percent. and income taxes oi' 
S525.000. or 8.3 perc-nr. The net result \ \ a s  thai net income was LIP h!, on]!, S39.000. or 0,4 percent. 

;Tiie.foiiowii?g disciissioi?~ and those iaiei ii7 the dociimei7i oi? queraiing income aiid segiiieiii resuirs iiicltide zise q f i h  

ieriii "gross margiii. " Gross margin is dereri7iiiied bj deducting t he  cos/ qfsuiesj?oiri operating reveiiue Cos/ ofsaii.~c 
iiiclua'es the purchased pas cosr.for iiatuial pas aiidpro~uane a i d  the  C O S I  qf labor s,ueii/ 017 direci r e ~ ~ e i i z i ~ - , u r o a ' i i c i i ~ ~  

aciiviries Gross iizargiii si70uid 1701  be coiisiderea' ai7 dreriiarive io o,ueratiiig iiicoiize or lie: i i icoi i ie whic/i are 
deteriniiied i i i  accordaiice with Geiieral!i! Accepted , ~ C C G Z l l i / i l ? g  Piiiicipies ("GAAP ' I , .  Ciiesapeake believes iiiai gross 
iiiaigii7, G / f ~ i O l l ~ k  a iioii-GAAP measure, is ziseful aiid iiieaniiq$ui to iiivestors as a basis,for nzakiiig iiivesciiieizr o'ecisioiis. 
1; provides iizvestors with ii7f0rnz arion rha/ deiizoiisrrates / l i e  profitaoilip achieved b?: rile Coii7pai7~~ ui7a'ei irs aliowed 
r a i e ~  "?or reguiaiea' operaiioiis aiio' uizder its coiiipeiirive pricivg srructure .for iioii-repziiared segii iei i ts Cliesapeau 'r 
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nianagement uses gross margin in measuring its business units 'perfornzaizce and has historically analwed and reported 
gross tnargin information public!ii. Other con7panies mal  calculate gross margin in a df f irent  manner. 

Operating income 
The year 2006 reflects the strong year-over-year operating income growth experienced by the Company's natural gas 
operations of $2,497,000, or 14.5 percent. This growth was offset by reductions in operating income from propane and 
advanced information services. In 2006, both natural gas and propane segments were negatively impacted by weather that 
was 18 percent warmer than in 2005. The Company estimates that the warmer weather reduced gross margin by $3.4 
million i n  2006. The natural gas segment was able IO overcome the weather impact and show an increase in operating 
income due to its growth and cost containment efforts. However. as the propane segment is more weather sensitive and is 
not experiencing the high level of growth of our natural gas segment. its operating income declined when compared to 
2005. 

.Advanced information services experienced a decrease in operating income in 2006 as compared to the prior year due in 
part to the gain on the sale of Lightweight Association Management Processing System ("LAMPST"") during the fourth 
quarter of 2005. The LAMPS product was internall), developed software that was developed and marketed specificall! 
for R E 4 L T O R g  Associations. 

Ke! financial and operational highlights for fiscal )ear 2006 include the follo\hing: 

Customer growth in the natural gas and propane businesses remained strong. with the Deimarva and Florida 
natural gas distribution operations registering 9 and 8 percent increases in residential customers. respectively: 
and the D e l m a r ~ a  Coamuniry Gas $stems i*'CC-S"! generzting a 34 percent increase in propane distributior, 
customers. 

i n  June 2006, Eastern Shore Natural Gas announced that it had received approval from the Federal Energ! 
Regulatory Conimission ("FERC"! to expand its pipeline system in  the years 2006. 2007 and 2008. Tile entire 
project represents an investment of 633.6 miliion. with expected annualized revenue of $6.7 inillion after the 
full build-out of'the facilities. 

On September 26. 2006. the Company received approval for a base rate increase from the Maryland Public 
Service Commission I"PSC") for our Maryland natural gas operations. with the new base rates effecti~ e 
October I .  2006. Tne base rate adjustment results in an increase in base rates ofapproximatel! $780.000. uhich 
would result ir. an average increase in  revenues of approximatel> 4.5 percent for the ConipanJ's firni 
residential. commercial and industrial customers in Maryland. The PSC also approved the Compan!,'s proposal 
to implement a revenue normalization mechanism for its residenti ai heating and smaller commercial heating 
customers. reducing the Compan! ' s  future risk due to weather and usage changes. 

i n  November 2006. the Company conipieted a public offering of 600,30(1 snares of its common srock at a price 
per share ofS30.10. Additionall!. in November 2006. the Compan!, completed the sale of90.0Lij addirional 
shares of its common stock. pursuant to the  over-allotment option granted to the Underwriters hy the Conipar.:, 
The net proceeds of approximatel!, S13.7 million. after the deduction of underwriting commissions and 
expenses from the sale of the common stock, were added to the Compaty 's  genera! funds and priiiiaril]~ )used to 
repay a portion of the Compan!.'s shot-t-term debt. 

Total capitalization. including snort-term borrowing. increased $33.3 million at December 3 ! .  2006 coniparecl 
with December 31. 2005. The increased capitalization was obtained to fund  the $39.3 niiliion increase in  ne: 
plant and for other working capitai needs. 

For the year ended December 3 1.2006. the Conipan! generated $30.1 niiliion in operating cash f lom compared 
with $13.6 million for the year ended December 31. 2005. The higher cost ofnatural gas and propane i n  2005 
had an adverse impact on working capital in 2005. 

Net propert!', plant and equipment increased to $240.8 million at December 31. 2006 from $201.5 million at 
December 3 1 .  2005. primariiy reflecting continued capital investment to support customer growth. 

* 

* 

e 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

In June 2006. Eastern Shore announced the Bay Crossing Prqject for which it plans to develop. construct and 
operate new pipeline facilities that would transport natural gas from Calvert County: Maryland. cross under the 
Chesapeake Bay into Dorchester and Caroline Counties. Maryland. to points on the Delmarva Peninsula where 
such facilities would interconnect with its existing facilities in Sussex County, Delaware. If completed, the 
project will expand the capacity of its interstate pipeline system by approximately 33 percent. We still have 
significant obstacles to overcome on this project to make it a reality. In 2007, Eastern Shore will initiate the 
processes required to obtain the FERC and other federal. state and local permits required to construct the 
project. Eastern Shore received approval from the FERC in August 2006 to recover the pre-service costs 
associated with this pipeline prqject through its rates from two of its customers. As of December 3 1. 2006. the 
Company had deferred a total of $409.000 of  pre-service costs associated with the prqject. 

The Company's financial performance is discussed in greater detail beloaj in Results of Operations 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Chesapeake's reported financial condition ana results of operations are affected bl. the accounting methods, assumptions 
and estimates that are used in the preparation of the Compan!,'s financial statements. Because most of Chesapeake's 
businesses are regulated. the accounting methods used h! Chesapeake must compl:, with the requirements of the 
regulatoi? bodies: therefore. the choices available are limited by these regulatory requirements. Management believes 
that the following policies require significant estimates or otheriuagments of matters that are inherenti! uncertain. These 
policies and their application have been discussed with Chesapeake's Audit Committee. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
Chesapeake records certain assets and iiabiiities in accordance with Statement olFinancial Accounting Standards 
("SFAS") No. 71 "Accounting for the Effects of Cei-tain T1,pes of Regulation.'' Costs are deferred when there is 3 

probable expectation that they will ne recovered i n  future revenues as a result of the reguiarory process. At 
December 3 1. 2006. Chesapeake had recorded reguiatoy assets of $3.0 miliion. including $! ,  i million for under- 
recovered purchased gas costs. SI .3 million for tax-related repuiatop assets, $139.000 for defined postretiremen\ 
benefits. and SI 22.000 for en\,ironmental cost recovery. The Company has recorded regulator! liabilities totaling 
$23.8 million. including $ 1  8.4 million for accrued asset removal cost. S2.4 million for over-recovered purchased gas 
costs. $1.2 million for self-insurance. $ 1  2 million for cash in'casli out, and $349.000 for over-coliecred 
en\.ironmentai costs at December 3 1.2006. Ifthe Company were required to terminate application ofSFASEci. ? !  
it would be required to recognize all such deferred amounts as a charge to earnings. net of appiicabie income taxes. 
Such a charge could have a material adLerse effect on the Compan!,'s results o f  operations. 

Vaiuafion of Environmentai Assets and Liabilities 
As more full! described in Nore M to the Financial Statements. Chesapeake has completed its responsibilities reiated 
to one environmental site and is currentl!, participating in the in\,estigation. assessmenr or remediation of three omev 
former manufactured gas plant sites. Amounts ha\.e bezn recorded as en\ ironmentai iiabilities and associated 
environmental regulator! assers based on  estimates of future costs provided b! independeni consultants. There is 
uncertainty in these amounts because the En\,ironn:ental Protection Agenc! :"EP,4" or appiicab;? state 
en\.ironmentai authorit?, ma!' no! have seiected the finai remediation methods. Additionall! , there is uncertainty due 
to the outcome of legal remedies sousht from ot!ier potentiail! responsibie parties. A: December 3 ! ,  2006.. 
Chesapeake had recorded environmental regulator!, assets of $172.000 and a reglator! liabilit?, of $ 3 m m  for 
over-collections and an additional liabilit!, of $2 12.000 for en1,ironmentai cosrs. 

Propane Wholesale Markefing Contracts 
Chesapeake's propane wholesale marketing operation enters into forward and futurcs contracts that are considered 
deri\Vatives under SFAS No.  1 2 3 ,  "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." i n  accordance 
ivith the pronouncement. open positions are marked to market prices at the end of each reporting period and 
unreaiized gains or losses are recorded in the Consoiidated Statement of Income as revenue. The contracts ali mature 
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within one  year. and are almost exclusively for propane commodities with delivery points of  Mt. Beivieu, Texas. 
Conway. Kansas and Hattiesburg. Mississippi. Management estimates the market valuation based on references to 
exchange-traded futures prices. historical differentials and actual trading activity at the end of the reporting period. 
At December 31. 2006. these contracts had net unrealized gains of $8,500 that was recorded in the financial 
statements. .4t December 3 I .  2005, these contracts had net unrealized gains of $46.000 that were recorded in the 
financial statements. 

Operating Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Company are based on rates approved b!, the public 
service commissions ("PSC") of the jurisdictions in which we operate, The natural gas transmission operation's 
revenues are based on rates approved by the FERC. Customers' base rates may not be changed without formal 
approval by these commissions, However. the regulatory authorities have granted the Company's regulated natural 
gas distribution operations the ability to negotiate rates with customers that have competitive alternatives using 
approved methodologies. I n  addition. the natural gas transmission operation can negotiate rates above or below the 
FERC approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake's natural gas distribution operations in Delacvare and Mar),land each have a gas cost recover! 
mechanism that provides for the adjustmen: of rates charged to customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are 
collected or refunded through adjustments to rates i n  subsequent periods. 

The Company charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution's industrial interruptible customers to make them 
competitive with alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing. these customers can choose natural gas or altermi\  c 
types of suppi),. Neither the Company no:. the interruptible customer IS contractuall) obligated to deliver or receive 
natural gas. 

The propane wholesaie marketing operation records trading acrivit>. on a net mark-to-market basis ill thc  
C,ompany's income statement. for open contracts. The natural gas seginenc recognizes revenue on an accrual basis. 
The propane distribution. advanced inforination s e n  ices and other segments r x o r d  revenue in the period tne 
products are delivered and/or services are rendered. 

Results of Operations 
Net income & Diluted Earnings Per Share Summary 

For the Years Ended Decemaer 3'?, 
he: Income * 

Increase Increase 
2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 

Contiiiiiing operarions S10,507 $ l i { l 6 b  $34 61'146C $9 550 $918 

7 oral her lnconie SI 0,JO' S; IO 468 $311 g l O 4 6 h  39 429 3 039 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 

2006 

Discontinued operation? (121  I !?I 

Continuino operations Sl.72 S I  '7 \$C05) 6 '  -- $ 1  04 51 3 
Discontinued operarions 10 0 2 )  0 02 

Total Earnings Per Share $1.72 $ i  77 ($0 0% $ 1  77 $ 1  62 $C15 

* Dollars 117 rhousatids 

The Compan! 's net income from continuing operations increased 539.000 in 2006 when compared to 2095. he r  income 
was S10.50 million. or S1.72. per snare (diluted). for 2006. compared to a ne! income of$10.47 million. or $1.7- pe: 
share idiiuted). 

The Company's net income from continuing operations increased $91 8.000. or 10 percent. in 2005 compared to 2004. 
S e t  income from continuing operations was SI  0.5 million. or SI .77 per share (diluted). compared to a net income from 
continuing operations ofS9.6 million. or 51.64 per share (diluted) fo:. 2004. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

During 2003. Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and had sold the assets of six of seven dealerships 
by December 3 1, 2003. The remaining operation was sold in 2004. The results of water services were classified as 
discontinued operations for year 2004. Discontinued operations experienced losses of $0.02 per share (diluted) for 2004. 

Operating Income Summary (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Business Segment: 

Yatural gas S19,733 $17 236 $2497 $17236 $17091 $145 
Propane 2.534 3 209 1675) 3,209 2 364 845 

Other & eliminations (103) 11 121 9 11 12) 128 12401 
Total Operating Income $22,931 $21 530 $ 1  401 $21 530 $19970 $ 1  560 

Advanced information services 761 1 197 (430) 1197 387 810 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income in 2006 increased $1.4 million, or 6.5 percent, greater than 2005. despite adverse weather, which when 
measured i n  terms of  heating degree-days. was I S  percent warmer. The improved 2006 result?, o f  operations rvhen 
compared to 2005 were impacted b y :  

Weather on the De1man.a Peninsula was IS percent warmer in 2006 than 2005, which the Conipan!, estimates 
10 ha\,e cost approximatel!, $3.4 million in  gross margin for its Delmarva natural gas and propane distribution 
operations. 
Strong residential customer growth of 9 percent and 8 perceiil. respectihel). for the Delmarva and Florida 

The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $ 1  .S miliion. or 1 1 percent. due to  
additional capacir! contracts that \vent into effect in liovember 2005 and Kovember 2006. 
A 67 percent increase in the number of customers io! the Compan!,'s natural gas marketing operation 
Gross margin Tor the Deiniana propane distribution operations decreased $834.000, prilnarii!. from the \Yarniel' 
weather in  2006. 
The Delmarva Comniunit! Gas Systems continue tc esperience strong custonier grouth as the number ot' 
customers increased 34 percen: in 2006 compared tc 1005. 
Operating incom: tor the ad\ anced information services segment decreased $430.000 in  2006. Althoug1i 
re-venues from consulting increased $749,000 in 2006. the 2005 results contained $992.000 ofoperating income 
for the LAMPSTM produci. which was sold in the fourth quarter 2005. 

riliuiion operations in 2026. 
* 

6 

* 

e 

2005 Compared to 2004 
Tne iiiiprox'ement in results f o r  2005 versus 20114 \vas primaril) dri\ t n  5.: 

e Tne LAIvI?SThi proauci.. inciuding tne sale of its propen!' rights. contributtd %622.0!W to onerat iq  income ill 
2005 for the Conipan!.'s advanced inibrmation sen,ices segment. 
Tile Delman-a and Floriaa naturai gas disrribution operations experienced srrong rtsidentiai custonier growth of 
9 percen? and 7 percen:. respecti\ el;, . in 2005. 
Temperatures on the De1marx.a Peninsilia \vere 5 percenj. colder than 2004. \I hich ied tcl increased contributions 
irom the Compan!,'s natural gas and propane distribution operations. This increase was offse: b) consen ation 
efforts b! customers. 
The natura! gas transmission operation achieved gross niargin gro\vtk. o i  9 percen: duo to addirional 
transportation capacit! contracts :hat wen: into effect in November 2004. 
'4 100 percent increase in the number o f  customers for the Compan!.'s naturai gas markeiing operation. 
,417 increase of 1.1 million gallons sold by the Delmarva propane distribution operation. 

c 

e 

e 
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Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission, and Marketing 
The  natural gas segment earned operating income of $19.7 million for 2006. $17.2 million for 2005. and $17.1 
inillion for 2004, resulting in increases of$2.5 million. or 14.5 percent. for 2006 and $145.000. or 1 .0 percent, for 
2005. 

Natural Gas Distribution, Transmission, and Marketing (in thousands) 
Increase Increase 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue %170,374 $ 1  66.582 $3.792 $1 66,582 $124.246 $42,336 
Cost of gas 117,948 116.178 1.770 116.178 71.456 38.722 
Gross margin 52,426 50.404 2,022 50,404 46,790 3,614 

Operations & maintenance 
Deoreciation & amortization 

22,613 23,874 ( I  ,201 ) 23.874 21.129 2 745 
6,312 5,682 630 5 682 5 418 264 

Other taxes 3,708 3.6 I2 96 3.612 3.152 460 
Other operaring expenses 32,693 33.168 (475) 33.168 29.699 3.469 

Total Operating Income $19,733 $I 7.236 $2,497 $17.236 $17.091 $145 

Heating Degree-Day (HDD) and Customer Analysis 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 fdecrease) 
Heating degree-dav data - Deimarva 

increase Increase 

Actual HDD 3,931 4 792 (861) 4 792 4.553 139 
IO-vear average HDD 4,312 4 436 (64) 4 A36 4 383 53 

Estimated gross margin per HDD $2.013 $2.234 ($22 1 J $2.234 $ 1  800 $434 

Estimated dollars per residentiai customer added 
Gross margin $312 $372 $0 $372 $372 3 (1 
Other operating expenses SI11 $IO6 $5 $106 $104 $2 

Average inumher of residential customers 
Deinnana 40,535 37.346 3 189 37 346 34 352 2 9Y4 
Florida 12.663 I i.717 946 11.717 10.9 IO 80' 

Total 53.198 49.063 4.!3.s 49.063 45.262 - .  1 8 0 ;  

2006 Compared to 2005 
Cross margin for the Company's natura! gas segment increased $2.0 million. or  if percent. and other. opera:ing 
expenses decreased S475.000. or I percent. in 2006 compared to 2005. The gross margin increases o.'S1.8 million 
for the natura! gas transmission operation. S395.000 for the Florida natural gas distriburion operation and S75.0(10 
for :he natural gas markerinp operarion n ere parrially offset hy  lower gross margin of  $21 0.000 for the Deiniar\.: 
natural gas distribution operations. 

.Vaiura/ Gas Transrnissioii 
The natura! gas transmission operation achie\)ed gross margin growth o f F l . 8  million. or 1 1  perceni. Ofthe S I . S  
million increase. $ 1 .  1 niillion \vas attributed to nen tramporration capacit!, convacts implemented in Kovember 
2005 and $61 2.000 due to new' transportation capacity contracts implemented in hovember 2006. I n  2007. the nev 
transportation capacit! contracts impiemented i n  Kovember 2006 are expected to generate an addirional gross 
margin ofS3.3 million above and beyond 2006 gross margins. .An increase of $416.000 in other operating expenses 
partially offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing to the increased expenses are as Foliow 

* Payroll costs and incentive compensation increased $ 1  08.000 to serve the additional grou.th experienced i?! 
the operation. 
Higher depreciation and asset renioval costs of $ j j S , 0 0 @  and increased property taxes ofS109.000 due to 
an increase in the level of capital investment. 
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A reduction of $376.000 as a result of the operation receiving approval from the FERC to recover certain 
pre-service costs associated with the Bay Crossing Project. Please refer to the Regulatory Matters section 
under Other Matters within Item 2 of the Management's Discussion and Analysis for additional details. As 
a result of this approval, the Company is deferring the pre-service costs that it incurs. In 2006, the Company 
deferred $1 88,000 of costs previously incurred and expensed in 2005. As a result of this deferral. the 
amounts recognized in the Compan).'s income statement have declined from 2005 by $376.000. 
There was an increase of  approximately $ 1  7.000 in other operating expenses relating to various minor 
items. 

.!datura1 Gas Marketing 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation increased $75.000 for 2006 compared to 2005. The increase 
was attained primarily from an increase in the number of customers to which it provides supply management 
services. Other operating expenses decreased $78.000 for the operation due to lower levels of consulting sei-vices. 
paiiially offset by an increase in the allo\vance for uncollectible accounts. 

.I'arural Gas Distrihutioi7 
Gross margin for the Florida distribution operation increased by $395.000. The impact of an 8 percent groivth in 
residential customers contributed $230.000 to gross margin. in  addition to residential customer growth. nev, 
commercial and industrial customers contributed $9 1.000 to gross margin in 2006. The remaining $74.000 increase 
in gross margin is attributed to various factors, including turn-on revenue. 

The Deimarva distribution operations experienced a decrease of521 0,000 in gross margin. Weather significantl!, 
impacted gross margin in 2006 compared to 2005 as temperatures on the Deimaiva Peninsula were 18 percent 
warmer in 2006. The Company estimates that the warmer temperatures in 2006 led to a decrease in gross margin of 
approximate11 Si .7 million when compared to 2005. This decrease was partiall> offset by continued residenrial 
customer growth. The average number o;residentiaI customers on the Dclmarva Peninsula increased 3.1 89, or 9 
percent. for 2006 compared to 2005 and the Company estimates these additional residential customers contributed 
approximatel!. $1 .2 million to gross margin. The remaining $ I  90.000 increase in gross margin can be attributed to 
carious factors. including an increase in the  number of conimercial customers and decrease of interruptible sales. 

Other operating expense for the natural gas distribution operations decreased S8 14.000 in 2006 compared to 2005. 
Some of the  ke!. components of the  decrease in other operating expenses in 2006. compared to 2005. inciude the 
fo I i OM, i  ng : 

a I-Iealth care costs decreased b!, 53 i3.000 as a result of the Coinpan! changing health care senice providers in 
Novenibcr 2005 and has subsequenti!, experienced lower CCSIS related to claims. 
A l l o i w "  for uncollectibic accounts decreased b!, $289.000 in 2006 compared to 2005 due to / m e r  revenues 
and increased collection efforts. Revenues are down due to i o w r  prices and Lvariner temperatures. 
Incentive compensation decreased Si  77.000 in 2006 to refiect lower than expected earnings 
Lower corporate costs due to lowe:. payroll and related expenses. 
Depreciation and amortization expense and asset removal cost increaszd E!32. 000 and $ 1  86. 000. respecti! el!. 
as a result of the Coiiipaii!'s continued capital invesrments. 
Merchant payment fees increased S136.000 in 2006 compared to 2005 as the Company experienced more 
customers making pa!'ments with the use of credit cards. 
In addition. tnere is an increase ofapproximately $55.000 in other operaring expenses reiaring to various minor 
items. 

* 

e 

m 

ZOOS Compared to  ZOO4 
Gross margin forthe Conipanls's natural gas segment increased $3.6 million. or 8 percent, which was pai-tiall!/ offset 
by higher other operating expenses of $3.5 million in 2005 compared to 2004. Each of  the natural gas operations 
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experienced year-over-year increases in gross margin in 2005. priniaril? from customer growth. colder temperatures. 
and changes in rate design. 

Natural Gas Trausmission 
The natural gas transmission operation achieved gross margin growth of $1.4 million. or 9 percent, primarily due to 
additional contracts signed in November 2004 for transportation capacity provided to its firm customers. In addition. 
the Company's capital investments enabled the natural gas transmission operations to execute additional 
transportation capacity contracts in Kovember 2005. An increase of $980,000 in other operating expenses partiall> 
offset the increased gross margin. The factors contributing to the increased expenses were associated with continued 
economic growth. as well as higher depreciation and property taxes due to an increase in the level of capita! 
investments. 

Natura/ Gas Markeiing 
Gross margin for the natural gas marketing operation increased $506.000. or 39 percent. for 2005 compared to 2004 
as the number of customers to which it provides supply management services increased 100 percent. The increase iii 

gross margin was partially offset by an increase of$352.000 in other operating expenses due to higher levels of stafi 
and other operating costs necessar!' to support the increase in business. 

,2'atural Gas Distribuiio~i 
Gross margin for the Delaware and Mary!and distribution divisions increased S! .2 million. as temperatures in 2005 
were 5 percent colder than 2004 and the number of residential custoniers increased 8.7 percent. An increase in gross 
margin from the colder weather ofS534.000 \vas offset by a decrease of665 i .000 in gas deliveries 10 customers as a 
result of conservation effoi-rs i n  response to the higher gas prices. Gross margin for the Fiorida distribution 
operations increased $579.000. primarily due to changes in the customer rate design and a 7.4 percent increase in th: 
number of residential customers served. The Company estimates the rat: design changes contributed $322.000 iii 

additional gross margin and resulted in the Florida division collecting a greater percentage of revenues from fixed 
charges. rather than variable charges based upon consumptior,. Other operating expense for the narurai gas 
distribution operations increased $2.1 million in 2005. Some of the key components of' the increase in other 
operating expenses in 2005. compared tc 2004. inciude the foliowing: 

The incremental operating and maintenance cost of supporting tne residentiai customers added b: die 
Delmawa and Fiorida distribution operations uas  approximatel! $403.000. 
In response 10 higher natural gas prices. the CompanL- increased its allou.ance for uncollecrihle 
accounts b) $98.000. 
The cost of pro\ iding health care for our employees increased $ 1  80.000. 
Costs of iine iozation acti\,ities increased Si77.00(~. 
A'ith the additional capitai in\ estnients. depreciation expense. asset remo\,ai cos: and properr!. taxes 
increased E225.000. Si  30.000 and $3 19.000. respecti\ el;,,. 

e 

.I 

6 

* 

Propane 
The propan: segment experienced a decrease ofS675.0(10 in  operaring income in 2006 compared te 20C5. refiecring 
a gross margin decrease of SI. i million. ivhich was paniali? offset b!. a decrease in operating expenses ofS464.00ij. 
During 3005. the propane segment increased operating income b!, S845.000. or 36 percent. over 2004. Gross margin 
in 2005 increased 62.6 miliion over 2004. which more than offset the increase of$! .7 million ofoperating espe:ises. 
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Propane (in thousands) 

Increase Increase 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue $48,576 $48,976 ($400) $48,976 $41,500 $7,476 
Cost of sales 30,780 30.041 739 30.041 25.155 4.886 
Gross margin 17,796 18,935 (1,139) 18,935 16,345 2,590 

Operations & mmtenance  
Deoreciation & amortization 

12,823 13.355 (532) 13,355 11,718 1,637 
1,659 1.574 85 1.574 1.524 50 

Other taxes 780 197 (17) 791 139 58 
Other ooeraing expenses 15,262 15,726 (464) 15 726 13 981 1,745 

Total Operating Income $2.534 $3.209 ($675) $3.209 $2.364 $845 

Propane Heating Degree-Day (HDD) Analysis - Delmarva 

increase Increase 
For theyears Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Heannp degree-davs 

Acrua! 
I G-year avaage 

3,931 4,797 (861 I 4.797 4,553 239 
1,372 436 (64)  4.436 4 383 5 ;  

Estimaed gross marpn  per Hi)D s 1.743 $1.743 $0 $ 1  743 S1.691 $52 

2006 Compared to 2005 
Operating income for the propane segment decreased $675.000. or 21 percent. to $2.5 million for 2006 compared to 
2005. This decrease was due primaril). to warmer weather on the Delmanta Peninsula in 2006. which resulted in 
reduced customer c ~ n ~ ~ ~ m p r i ~ n  Gross margin i n  the Deiniarva propane distribution operations was lo~~ver when 
compared to 2005 b!, $834.000. primaril? due IC warmer weather. Gross margin also decreased in the Fiorida 
propane distribution operation and the Compan!.'s \vholesale propane marketing operation b) S 146,000 and 
S 159.000. respectivet! . 

Deirnnrvo Propane Disriibuiiori 
The Delmarva propane distribution operation's decrease in gross margin of S834.000 resulled Crom (ne folio\?,ing 
items: 

* Volumes sold in 2006 decreased 1.9 niiliion gallons. or 8 percent. primaril! from temperaturss on the 
Delmanja Peninsula being 18  perceni warmer during 2006 when compared to 2005. The Companl 
estimates tilai the warnier temperatures resulted in a decrease in gross margin of approximatel! SI .: 
million when compared to 2005. 
Gross margin increased $956.000 from ar! iricrease of$0.0302 in the merage gross margin per retail gallon 
in 2006 compared io 7OC5, 
Gross margin for the Deimarva CGS increased S!55.000 when compared to the prior period. priniarii! 
from an increase in tne average number of customers. The ave:age number of customers increased h! 
apnroximatel! 1 .0OG t o  a total count of approximatel! 3.90C. or 2 34 percent increase. when compared to 

2005, The Conipan! expects the growtii of its CGS operation to continue as the number of systems 
currentiy under construction or under contract is anticipated tc uro\>ioe for an additional 7.700 customers. 
Gross margin was adversei!. impacted b: a $272.000 \\ rire-down of propane inventory to reflect the iower 
of cost or market. 
The remaining gross margin decrease of $79.000 is arrribured Drimaril! to customer conser\,ation and 
changes in tne timing of deiiveries 10 customers. 

* 

e 

e 

Other operating expenses decreased S335.000 for tne Delmawa operations in 2006. compared IO 20Ci5. The 
significant items contributing to the decrease are expiained beion 
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The Company recovered $387.000 in fixed costs from one of its propane suppliers in response to apropane 
contamination incident that occurred in March 2006. The Company identified that approximately 75.000 
gallons of propane that it purchased from the supplier contained above-normal levels of petroleum 
byproducts. 
Health care costs decreased by $324,000. The Company changed health care service providers in 
November 2005 and has subsequently experienced lower costs related to claims. 
In addition, there is a decrease of  approximately $39.000 i n  other operating expenses relating to various 
minor items. 
These lower costs were partially offset by increased costs of $I 76.000 for one of the Pennsylvania start- 
ups, which began operation in Juls' 2005. increased payroll costs of $1 65.000 and higher costs of  $74.000 
associated with vehicle fuel. 

Florida Protmie  Distyibution 
The Florida propane distribution operation experienced a decrease in gross margin of $146.000. or I2  percent. when 
compared to the same period in 2005. The lower gross margin reflects a decrease of $208.000 for in-house piping 
sales as the operation exited the house piping seitice. which "as partiall) offset b!, an increase in gross margin of 
$62.000 from propane sales. The increase in gross margin from propane saies was attained primarily from an 
increase in the average gross margin per retail gallon; partiall!, offset by a 1 percent decrease in the voiunies sold in 
2006. Florida propane experienced a decrease in other operating expenses ir, 2006 compared to 2005 of  $49,000 
attributed to lower payroll and benefits costs due to vacant positions during the year. partiall! offset b?. higher 
expenses related to leak testing and depreciation espense. 

Proaane Wholesuie and ,ir(urkering 
Gross margin for the Company's propane wholesale marketing operation decreased by $159.000 in  2006 compared 
to 2005. This decrease from the 2005 results reflects the increased market opponunities that rose in 2005 due to the 
estrenie price volarilir! i n  the propane wholesale niarke! from rising propane prices following tne hurricanes in the 
Gulf of Melico area. The same le\ el of price fluctuations \?'as iiot experienced in 2006. Tiit decrease in gross 
margin M ~ S  partiail\. offser by lower other operating expenses of $79.000 attribuled primaril! io ioner iiicenli\ e 
compensation as a resuh o f the  Imver earnings in 2006. 

ZOOS Compared to ZOO4 
Operating income for the propane segment increased $846.000, or 36 percent. to $3.2 million for 2005 compared to 
2004. Gross margin in the Deiman8a propane distri bution operations \vas higher when compared to 2004 by $1.8 
miiiion. primarill due IO colder weather. Gross margin also increased in the Florida propane distribution operation 
and the Compan] 's wholesale propane marketing operation b! S385.000 and 5445.000. respectii'el! 

Driniarim P ro,aune D rsrr ib ziiion 

The gross margin increase for the propane segnieni \vas due priniaril: to an increase of 51.8 million for the 
Delmalvi disrriburion operations. L'oiunies sold in 2005 increased I ,  l million gallons or 5 percent. Temperatures i n  
2005 were 5 percent coider than 2004. causing an estimated gross margin increase of ,R4i 7.000, Additionall!. the 
gross margin per retail gallon improyed by S0.0342 in 2005 compared 10 2004. Gross margin per galion increased as 
2 result of marke: prices rising greater thar? the Compan), 's inventor! price per galion. This trend reverses when 
market prices decrease and move closer to the C o m p a q ' s  inventory price per gallon. The gross margin increase was 
partiall!, offser h> increased other operating expenses of $ 1  . 5  million. The higher other operating cosrs i w e  
attributable to the Pennsylvania start-up costs and espenses related to higher earnings. such as incentive 
compensation and other taxes. employee benefirs. insurance. vehicle fuel and maintenance expenses. and a non- 
recurring credit of 5 100.000 for vehicie insurance audits in 2004. The Penns! lvania start-up c o s ~ s  accounted for 
$722.000. or approximatel!, 49 percent. of the increase in operating expenses. 
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Florida Propane Distribution 
Gross margin for the Florida propane distribution operations increased $385,000, or 45 percent, in 2005 compared to 
2004. The increase in gross margin was attained from an increase of27% in the average number of customers. which 
contributed to the $267.000 in propane sales gross margin. and an increase of $1 18.000 in house-piping sales. 
Florida propane also experienced an increase in other operating expenses of $147,000 attributed to business growth, 
such as payroll, vehicie fuel and maintenance. insurance, and depreciation expense. 

Propane Wholesale and Marketing 
The Company's propane wholesale marketing operation experienced an increase in gross margin of $445.000 and an 
increase of  E12 1 :000 in other operating expenses. leading to an improvement of $323.000 in operating income over 
2004. Wholesale price volatility created trading opportunities during the third and fourth quarters of the year: 
however. these were partially offset by reduced trading activities particularly in the first half of the year u.hen the 
wholesale marketing operation followed a conservative marketing strateg).. which lowered risk and earnings. in light 
of continued high wholesale price levels. 

Advanced Information Services 
The advanced information seiliices segment provides domestic and internationai clients with infomiation technolog! 
related business services and solutions for both enterprise and e-business applications. The advanced information 
services business contributed operating income of $767.000 for 2006. $1.2 million for 2005. and $387.000 for 2004. 

Advanced Information Services (in thousands) 
!_"I increese I, 1 1 1  ease 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue S12,568 S14.140 ($!.577) SII.l4(1 $12.427 g l , 7 : 3  
Cost oisales 7,082 7.181 199) 7.181 7.0 I5 I66 
Gross mar@]; 5.486 6.959 1 I .473) 6.959 5.4 I 2  ! ,547 

Operations & iiirutitenaiice 
Depreciation & amonaarion 

3.1 I9 5. I74 1I.OlOl .. 5 129 4.405 'la 
I13 123 (101 i 13 I38 I !j; 

Other taxes 487 5 I 0 ( 1 3  i 5lC 4x2 28  
Otiier opercniiig expenses 4,719 5.763 i i ,043 j 5.762 5.025 I )  i 

- ? -  

Total Operating Income $765 %!.!97 ($430, s I .  I 9: $ 3 8 -  $8 I i; 

2006 Comuared to  2005 
Operating income for advanced information services business decreased $430.000 to S767.000 for 2006 compared io 

$1.2 million in 2005. The operating income for 2005 included operating income of $993.000 ib:. LAblPS'b". 
inclusive of a S924.000 pre-tax gain on tile sale oftlie product. The LAMPSTh' produc: \vas sold to Fidelit!. kational 
Information Solutions. inc.. a suhsidiar) of  Fidelit: hational Financial. inc.. in Octooe: 2005. 

Revenues for the period decreased SI .6 miliion compared to 2005. due primarii!. to eliniinaiion oi$I.si million oI' 
revenue generated the LAMPST" product in 2005. Consulting revenues increased $749.000 i n  2006 whei: 
compared to 2005. priniaril! from offering a ne\r. ser\,ice. Managed Database Administration "'MDBA"j. to its 
customers in 2006 and an increase of 7.6 percent in the average hourl! biliing rate. Lvhiie the numher or jillabie 
hours remained at the same levei of2005. The MDBA service provides third parties M,ith professionai database 
monitoring and s u p p o ~  solutions during business hours or around the cioci.;. The MDBA service conrributed 
S470.000 to consulting revenues. Par-tiaiiy offsetting the increase in consuiting revenues were decreases of Sl28.OOO 
and $244.000 from training and product saies ana other revenues. respective11 . 

Cost of sales for 2006 decreased S99.000 to $7.08 miliion. compared to 2005. The 2005 cost of saies of $7.18 
million inciuded $401 .000 related to LAMPSTh'. Absent the cost of saies associated with the LAMPSTA' product. 
cost ofsaies increased in 2006 compared to 2005 to support the higher revenues. 
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Other operating expenses decreased $1 .0 million in 2006 to $4.7 million. when compared to 2005. Thereduction in 
espenses primarily reflects expenses of $554,000 in 2005 associated with LAMPSTM and lower benefits costs. rent 
expense and consulting costs. 

2005 Compared to 2004 
The advanced information services segment had operating income of $1.2 million and $387.000 for years 2005 and 
2004, respectively. The results for 2005 and 2004 include revenues and costs related to the LAMPSTM product that 
was sold in October 2005, which resulted in a $924,000 pre-tax gain. 

Revenues for 2005 increased $1.7 million to $14.1 million compared to revenues of $12.4 million for 2004. The 
2005 and 2004 revenue figures include $2.4 million and $149.000 ofrevenue relating to the LAMPSTM product for 
those respective years. Decreases in consulring revenues for the eBusiness group of $793.000 and lower sales of 
Progress software licenses of $285.000 accounted for the decrease in revenue when compared to 2004. Tnis decrease 
was partiall), offset by the performance revenue of $238.000 received in the third quarter 2005 and an increase of 
$3 17,000 in consulting revenues for the Enterprise Solutions group. The performance revenue was related to the sale 
of the webproEX software that took place in 2003. As part ofthe sale agreement. Chesapeake received aperceiitage 
of revenues after certain annual revenue and performance targets were reached. 

Cost ofsales for 2005 increased $ 1  65.000 to $7.2 million. compared io $7.0 million for 2004. The increase in cost ot 
sales was attributed to the LAMPST" product. The 2005 and 2004 cost of sales figures included $51 1,000 and 
$345.000 of cost for the LAMPST" product. Other operaring expenses increased $738.000 in 2005 to $3.8 million. 
compared to $5.0 million in 1004. The increase in other operating cost was attributed to the increase ofcosts relating 
to tine LAMPS'" producr. The costs associated with the LAMPS'" product for 2005 arid 2004 were $ I .2niiiIion and 
$575.000 respectively. The remaining increase was primaril), due to health care claims and office rent. which were 
offset b!! cost containment measures implemented in the second quarter of 2005 to reduce operating expenses. 

Other Operations and Eliminations 
Other operations consist primarily of subsidiaries that own real estate leased to other Conipan!, subsidiaries and the 
results oi'operations for OnSight E n e r g .  LLC ("Or,Sighl"'). Eliminations are entries required to eiiniinate activities 
between business segments from the consolidated results. Other operations and eliminating enrries generated ai: 
operaring loss of$103.000 for 2006 compared to an operating loss of Si i 2.000 for 2005. The operating loss in bod1 
2006 and 2005 is attributed to results oi'OnSight. 

The Company formed OiiSight in 2004 to provide distributed energ!) services. Disriihured energ!' rerers to n \ ai-ist! 
of small. modular power generating iechnologies inat ma) be combined with heating and/or cooling s!'stems. Fcv 
2006. OnSight had ail operating ioss of  $401 .000 compared to an operaring less ofS390.000 for 2005 The !higher 
operating loss in 2006 when compared to 2005 is rne result of: 

* I n  the third quarter of 2006. actions were taken to reduce operaring expenses going fonvarl. wnich rewired 
in a charge ofS65.000 to other operating expenses associated with staff reducrions. 
The 2005 resulrs ofoperation includes the impact o fons igh t  completing its first and onl> contract to date. 
Lvhicli occurred in the second quarter oi '2005. 

c 
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Other Operations & Eliminations (in thousands) 

Increase Increase 
For theyears Ended December 31, 2006 2005 (decrease) 2005 2004 (decrease) 
Revenue $620 $763 ($143) $763 $647 $!I6 
Cost of sales 1 1 I6  (115) 116 I16 
Gross maran 619 641 (28) 641  647 

Operations & mantenance 
Depreciation& amortimion 

479 472 I 472 278 I94 
163 220 (57) 220 210 10 

Other taxa 83 97 114) 97 63 34 
Other operzing expenses 725 789 (64) 789 551 238 

Operatingincome - Other ($106) ($142) $36 ($142) $96 ($238) 
Operating Income - Eliminations s 3  $30 ($27) $30 $32 ( $ 2 )  

Total Operating Income (Loss) 6103)  ( $ 1  12) $9 ( $ 1  12) $128 ($240) 

Discontinued Operations 

In 2003. Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business. Six of seven water dealerships were sold during 2003 
and the remaining operation was sold in October 2004. The results of the water companies' operations. for all periods 
presented in the consolidated income statements. have been reclassified to discontinued operations and shown net of tas. 
For 2004. the discontinued operations experienced a net loss of$121.000. The Company did not have any discontinued 
operations in 2006 and 2005. 

income Taxes 

income tax espense for 2006 was $6.8 milliotl compared 10 $6.: nii!lion for 2005. !ncome taxes increased in 2006 
compared IG 2005. due priniaril!, to increased taxable income. Income taxes increased in 2005 compared to 2004. due to 
increased income. The effecti\,e current federal income tax rate for 2006 and 2005 was 35 percent. whereas the rate for 
2004 was 34 percent. During 2006.2005. and 2004. the Compan! realized benefit of $220.000. $223.000. and $205.000. 
respectivel!. from a change in the rax laiv that a l i o w  tax deducrions for dividends paid on Compan!, stock held i n  
Employee Stock Ownership Dlans ("ESOP";. 

Other income 
Other inconie was $ 1  89.000. $383.000. and $549.000 ibr the years 2006.2005. and 2004. respectively. The other income 
amounts forthe years 2006 and 2005 consist o f  interest income. compared to interest income and gains from the sale 0:' 
assets for the > ear 2004. 

interest Expense 

Total interest expense for 2006 increased approximatell S644.000. or  12.5 percent. compared to 2005. The increast 
reflects the increase in the average short-term debt balance and nigher shofl-term interest rates in 2006 compared to 2005. 
i ne a\'erage short-term borrowing baiancs. increased 521 .2 million in 2006 to $26.5 million compared to $5.7 million in 
2005. Tne large ys.ar-over->'ear increase in ths. average shoi-r-term borrowing baiance was priniaril!, to finance the $39.3 
million of net propert!, piant. and equipment added in  2006. Thz weignted average interest rate for short-term borrowing 
increased from 4.47 percen! for 2005 to 5.47 percen; Eo; 2006. Tne average long-term debt halance during 2006 was 
$67.3 million with a weighted average inwes t  rate of 6.98 perceni. compared to $67.4 million with a weighted average 
interest rate o f7 . i  8 percen: for 2005. The Cornpan!, aiso capitaiized $586.00(~ of interest as pan o f  capital projeci costs 
during 2006. 

-. 

Total interest expense for 2005 decreased approximatel! S135.000. or 2.6 percenr. compared to 2004. The decrease 
reflects the decrease in the average long-term debt balance. The a\'erage long-term debt baiance during 2005 was S67.4 
million with a weighted average interest rate o f  7.1 8 percent. compared IO 571.3 miliion with a weighted average interes 
rate o f7 .17  percent in 2004. The aL.erage shon-rerm borrowing baiance in  2005 was $5.7  million. an increase from 
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$S70.000 in 2004. The weighted average interest rate for short-term borrowing increased from 3.72 percent for 2004 to 
4.47 percent for 2005. The Company also capitalized $136.000 of interest as part of capital project costs during 2005. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
Chesapeake's capital requirements reflect the capital-intensive nature of its business and are principally attributable to its 
investment in new plant and equipment and the retirement of outstanding debt. The Company relies on cash generated 
from operations. short-term borrowing, and other sources to meet normal working capital requirements and to finance 
capital expenditures. During 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $30.1 million, cash used by investing 
activities was $48.9 million and cash provided by financing activities \vias $20.7 million. 

During 2005. net cash provided by operating activities was $13.6 million, cash used by investing activities was $33.1 
million and cash provided by financing activities was $20.4 million. 

As of December 3 1 ~ 2006, the Board of Directors ("Board") has authorized the Compan!, to borrow up to $55.0 million 
of short-term debt from various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of credit. During 2006. the Board 
authorized increases in the Coinpan),'s borrowing authority up to $75 million to fund the 2006 capital budge; and 
working capital. The $75 million limit was subsequently reduced to its current level b>* the Board on November 7.2006. 
follou'ing the placement on October 12. 2006 of $20 million 5.50 percent Senior Notes. 

On December 3 1 .  2006. the Company had four unsecured bank lines of  credit witii nvo financial institutions. totaling 
$80.0 million. none of which required compensating balances. These bank lines provide funds ror the Company's short- 
term cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of its capital 
expenditures. Two of the bank lines. totaling $! 5.0 million. are committed. The other two lines are subject to the Sank '  
availability ot'funds. The outstanding balances of short-term debt at December 3 1.2006 and 2005 were $25.6 million and 
$35.5 million. respectivel!,. The level of short-term debt was reduced with funds provided from the placement of $20 
million of 5.5 percent Senior Notes in October 2006 and from <he proceeds ofthe issuance of 600.300 shares ofcommon 
stock in h'oveniber 2006. 

Chesapeake has budgeted $45.5 million for capital expenditures during 7007. This amount includes S;20.2 million for, 
natural gas distribution. $ 1  6.5 million for natural gas traiismissior.. $7.5 million for propane distriburion and wholesale 
marketing, $154.000 for advanced information sewices and $91 5.000 million for other operations. Tne natural gas 
distribution and transmission expenditures are for expansion and improvement offacilities. The propane expenditures are 
to support customer growth and for the repiacemenr of equipment. The advanced information services expenditures are 
for computer hardware. software and related equipment. The other categor! includes general plant. computer softuare 
and hardware. Financing for the 2007 capital expenditure program is expected from slion-tern? borrowing cash provided 
b! onerating acti\!ities. and other sources. The capital expenditure program is sub,iec: ro conhuous re\ i e ~  an6 
modification. Actuai capital requirements ma!. \ai? from the above estimares due to a number 0:' facrors. including 
acquisition opportuniries. changing economic conditions. customer gro\?-th in esisting areas. reguiation. new gron ti7 
opportunities and a\ ailabilil! of capital. 

Chesapeake expects 10 incur approsimatej!, $75.000 in 2007 and 2008 for en\ ironmentai-related espendirures. Additional 
expenditures ma> be required in future years (see Koote :vl to rhe Consolidated Financial S1atemen:s). Managenienr does 
not expect financing o!' future em ironmental-related expenditures LO have a material adverse effect on the riiiancia' 
position o r  capital resources of the Company. 

Cash Fiows Provided by  Operating Activities 
Our cash flows provided by (used in) operating acti\.ities were as foliows: 
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Net income $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,428,767 
Non-cash adjustments to net income 11 ,I 86,418 13,059,678 16,342,116 
Changes in working capital 8,424,055 (9 927,351) (3,767,730) 

Net cash from operating activties $30,116,998 913,599,941 922.003 153 

Year-over-year changes in our cash flows from operating activities are attributable primarily to net income. 
depreciation and working capital changes. The changes in working capita! are impacted by weather, the price of 
natural gas and propane, the timing of customer collections. payments of natural gas and propane purchases. and 
deferred gas cost recoveries. 

The Company generates a large portion of its annual net income and subsequent increases in our accounts receivable 
in the first and fourth quarters of each year due to significant volumes of natural gas and propane delivered by our 
Delmarva natural gas and propane distribution operations to our customers during the peak heating season. i n  
addition. our natural gas and propane inventories. which usually peak in the fall months. are largely drawn down i n  
the heating season and provide a source of cash as the inventory is used to satisfy winter sales demand. 

During this period. our  accounts pa!,able increased to reflect payments due to providers of the natural gas, propane 
commodities and pipeline capacity. The value of the natural gas and propane can vary signifcantll, from one period 
to the next as a result of volatility in the prices ofthese commodities. Our natural gas costs and deferred purchased 
natural gas costs due from. or to. our customers represent the difference between natural gas costs that we have paid 
to suppliers in the past and amounts that we ha\,e collected from customers. These natural gas costs can cause 
significant variations in cash flows from period to period. 

In 2006. our net cash flow provided by operating activities was $30. I inillion. an increase of  $ 1  6.5 million from the 
same period of2005. The increase was primarily a result of the recover? of working capital during 2006 that was 
deployed i i i  2005 due to the significantl!, higher commodity prices and the amount ofworking capitai required fo: 
operations. Contributing to this increas: was a decrease in the amount of natural gas and propane purchased To: 
invcntoi? ofR6.1 million as a resuh of mild weather in the prior heating season and therefore higher inienior!' 
balances for the current heating season. 

I n  2005. our net cash f l o ~ .  provided by operating activities was $13.6 million. a decrease of S8.4 million from the 
same period of 1004. The decrease was primarill a result of increased working capital requirements including 
increased spending o f s5 .7  million for seasonal nazural gas and propane inventories in advance of the winter sales 
demand. We spent more on these inventories in 2005 primarily because ofhigher natural gas and propane prices due 
to the effects of the hurricanes in the Gulf Coast region. The Compan!, also used $1.2 million of cash to purchase 
investments for the Rabbi Trusi. associated with the Compan! ' s  Supplemental Executi\,e Retirement Sa\ ings Pian. 
See Note E on In1,estments i n  item S under the heading "Financial Statements and Supplemental Data." 

Cash Flows Used in investing Activities 
Ne: cash flows used i n  in\,esting activities totaled $48.9 miliion. S 3 . l  million, and 515.5 million during fiscai years 
2006. 2005. and 2004. respecti\,el!,. in fisca! years 2006. 2005. and 2004. $48.8 million. $33.3 million. and $16.1 
million. respectivet! . of cash were utiiized for capitai expenditures. Additions to propert!, plant and equipnienr ir. 
2006 were primarii!, for natura! gas transmission (528.0 miliion). naturai gas distribution (S i  6. I miilion! and 
propane distribution ($4.3 million I .  in both 2006 and 2005. the natural gas distribution expenditures were used 
primarii:, to fund expansion and faciiiries improvements. Natural gas transmission capital expendirures reiated 
primaril! to  expanding the Compan!,'s transmission systeni. 
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Cash Flows Provided by  Financing Activities 
Cash flows provided by financing activities totaled $20.7 niillion during 2006. $20.4 million during 2005 and cash 
flows used by financing activities was $8.0 million for 2004. Our significant financing activities for the years 2006, 
2005. and 2004 are summarized as follow: 

I n  November 2006. the Company sold 600,300 shares of common stock. including the underwriter's exercise of 
their over-allotment option of 90,045 shares. pursuant to a shelf registration statement declared effective in 
November 2006. generating net proceeds of $1 9.7 million. 

In October 2006, the Company placed $20 million of 5 . 5  percent Senior Notes ("Notes") to three institutional 
investors (The Prudential Insurance Company of America, Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuit! 
Company and Lnited Omaha Life Insurance Compan),). The original note agreement \&'as executed on October 
18: 2005 and provided for the Company to sell the Notes at any time prior to January 15 ,  2007. 

The Company repaid $4.9 million of long-term debt during 2006 compared with $4.8 million during 2005 and 
$3.7 million during 2004. 

During 2006. the Compan), reduced short-term debt by $8.0 million. During 2005 and 2004. net borrou.ing of 
shori-term debt increased b! $29.6 million and SI .2 million. respectivei) ~ primarii! to support our capiral 
investment. 

During 2006. the Conipan) paid $6.0 million in cash dividends compared with dividend payments of S 5 . S  
million and 55.6 million for years 2005 and 2004. respectivei) , The increase in dividends paid over prior 1 ear 
reflects the increase in tile dividend rate from $1.14 per share during 2005 to $ 1  . I  6 per share during 1006 and 
the issuance of  additional shares of common stock. 

In .August 2006. the Coinpan!, paid cash of $435.000. in lieu of issuing shares ofthe Compan? ' s  common stock 
for- the 30.000 stock Marrants outstanding at December- 3 I. 2005. 

Capital Structure 
The follo\i ing presents our  capitaiization as of ilecember 3 : .  2006 and 2005: 

Decemher31, 
2006 200s 
(In thousands. except percenlagesi 

Long-term deb;. net ofcurrznt tnaiuiities S71,050 39% $5'8.990 4l'!o 
Sha;eholders' eauit! S111,152 61% $84 l 5 '  5950 
Total capitalization. eucluding snoii-tenn debt $182.202 l0OX $143.'4' 1000/0 

The Conipany increased its capitalization by 938.5 miliion in 2006 compared to 2005, The increased capitalization 
was primarill. used to fund the $30.3 million of net propert!'. plan!. and equipment added in 1006 and for working 
zapita!. 

As of Dzceniher 3 i .  2006. common equity represented G I  percent oftotai capitalization. compared to 59 percent ii: 

2005. 
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The following presents our capitalization as of  December 3 1, 2006 and 2005 if short-term borrowing and current 
portion of long-term debt were included in capitalization: 

December31,  
2006 2005 
(In thousands, except percentages) 

Short-term debt 527,554 13% $35,482 19% 
Long-term debt. including current maturities $78,706 36% $63,919 35% 

I - 
Shareholders' eauie $111,152 51% $84.757 46% 
Total capitalization. including short-term debt $217,412 100% $ 1  84.158 10046 

If short-term borrowing and current portion of long-term debt were included in capitalization. total capitalization 
increased b], 533.3 million in 2006 compared to 2005. The increased capitalization was primaril). used to fund a 
portion of the $39.3 million of net propert)'. plant. and equipment added in 2006 and for other general working 
capital. In addition. if short-term borrowing and the current portion of long-term debt were included in total 
capitalization. the equit?, component ofthe Company's capitalization would have been j! percent and 46 percent for 
2006 and 2005. respectivel!. 

Total debt as a percentage of total capitalizaiion. including short-term debt. \vas 49 percent and 54 percent at  
December 3 I .  2006 and 2005. respectivel>, The decrease in the debt-to-capitalization ratio in 2006 was primaril? 
attributed to the following: 

* The Compan), sold 600.300 additional shares of common stock pursuant to a shelf registration declared 
effective b!. the SEC in hovember 2006. The sale of these additional shares increased Iota! shareholder's 
equity by approximatel! $19.7 million. 

The outstanding long-term debt balance increased $ 1  4.8 million. Contributing to the increase Mas the 
placement of $20 million of 5 . 5  percent Senior Notes ii: October 2006. partiall! of'fset ti! scneduied 
principal payments. 

The outstanding shol?-terin debt balance decreased $7.9 million. The Compan!, reduced its oursmiding 
shoi?-term debi ivith funds received from tne saie of additional shares ofcommoii stock and the placenieii; 
of the Senior ho tes .  

Chesapeake remains committed to maintaining a sound capital structure and strong credit ratings to provide the 
financial flexibility needed to access the capital markets when required. This commitnienlL. along with adequate and 
rimel! rate reiief for the Comoan!,'s regulated operations. is intended to ensure that Chesapeake \vi11 be ab le  to 
attraci capital from ourside sources at 5 reasonabie cost. The Compan! beiie\,es tila: rhe aciiievenieni of these 
ob.iecti\,es will provide benefits tc customers and credi1ors. as weli as to the Compan! 's  iin'estors. 

Shelf Registration 
ir. Jul! 2006. the Compan! f i i e c  a registration staiement on Form S-3 w i t h  tne SEC io issue up to F40.!1 million ii: 
new common stock and/or debt securities. Thc registration statement was declared effectiw b! the SEC ir 
kovenibe: 2006. 111 Yo\,ember 2006. we sold 600.300 shares of common stock. inciuding the under\+~iter's exercise 
oitlieir over-allotment option of90.045 s h a m .  under this registration staremenr. generating net proceeds of $19.7 
million. The net proceeds from the sale were used for general corporate purposes. including financing of capital 
eupenditures. repa!'ment of short-term debt. and general woriting capiral purposes. A! December 3 ! ,  2006. tile 
Coinpan! had approximatel!, $20.0 million remaining under this registration statemen:. 
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Contractual Obligations 

We have the following contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of December 31. 2006: 
Payments Due by Period 

Less than 1 More than 5 
Contractual Obligations year 1 - 3 years 3 - 5 years years Total 

Long-term debt 'I) $7,656,364 $14,312,727 $14,403,636 $42333,636 $78,706,363 

Operating leases "! 649.659 919.216 652.026 3.769.640 5.990.541 

Purchase obligations 
Transmission capacity 7,182,746 12,4!3.145 8.154.556 23.523.355 51.273.802 
Storage -Natural Gas 1.363.488 2.698.742 2.666.955 5.163.488 1 !,892.673 
Commodities 17.862.123 17.862.123 

13.868.391 Forward purchase contracts - Propane 1 4 '  

Unfunded benefits ' ' I  292.445 588.705 614.043 1.710.528 4.205.721 
13.868.391 

Funded benefits 323.500 148.364 117.732 1.419.046 2.008.642 
'I otal Contractual Obligations $49.198,716 $31,080.899 $26,608,948 $78.919.693 $185.808.256 

Principal payments on long-tenn debt. see Note H. "Long-Term Debt." in tile Notes to tlie Consoiidated Financial Statements 
for additional discussion of th is item The expected interest payments on lonp-renn debt are $ 5 . 2  miliion. S 8  8 iiiillion, 
$6 9 mil l ioi i  and $10 0 million. respectivel!, fo: file periods indicated above Expected interesr payments for ali periods 
total $ 30 9 ini l l ioi i 

1 1 ,  

' - '  See Kote I, "Lease Obligations." in the bores to tlie Consolidated Fiiiaiicial Statements for additional discussion of this i t e m  

" See Note N. "Other Coinmirinents and Contingencies." in  t l i e  Notes ro tlie Consolidated Financial Statenients for Iiiniier 
i nformati on 

Tlie Company lias also entered i i i fo forward sale contracts See "Market Risk' of tlie Manapemen!'s Discussion and Ana! ysis 
for iunher iii ionn at ioii 

Tile Company lias recorded long-tenn liabilities o f$4  2 niillion at December 3 1 .  2006 for iinfunded post-retireinen: beiieftt 
plans Tlie ainoiints specified i n  the table are based on expected payments to cun-ent retirees and  assiiines a retireinenf age 
or65 for currently active employees Tiler: are inaii) factors that w,ould cause actlia! paymet i ts  to differ from these ainoiiiits. 

iiicluding earl! retirement. hitiire iiealtli care costs tiial differ from past esperience aiid discounr rates iinplicii i n  calculations 
"' Tlie Coiiipaii) lias recorded long-tenn liabilities ofS2 0 inillioii a! December 31 .  20Ou for fiinded benefits Tiiese l i ab i l i t i es  I i w e  

been fiiiided iising a Rabbi Trust and an asset in tlie same amouiit is recorded iinder lnvestinerlts oil t t i e  Balance Sl ieei  
Tile aefined oeiiefit pensioti plan \vas closed to new participants on J a n u a n  I .  !09'i and panicipants ill tile plan on tha t  date 
were given tile optioii to Ieax  liie pian See Note K. "Employee Beiiefit Piaiis " i n  the Notes to tlie Coiisol idated Financial 
Statements for further infonnation on tlie pian Since the plan modification. n o  additional f i ind ing  has been reouired froin ttir 
Campan) and iioiie i s  expected for t l i e  next five years. based on factors i n  effect 
siibiect to cliange based on the acriial refilm earned n? tlie pian assets and otiier aciiiarial assumptions. siicll as  t l i e  discount 
rate aiid iong-tenn exoected rate of retiini 011 plan assets 

1 4 ,  

. 5 ,  

Deceriiher 3 ; .  2006 Howeve!. tiiis is 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
Tne Compan!, has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors ol'its propane wholesale niarketing subsidiar!. 115 

natural gas suppi!' and management subsidiar!. and propane disrribution subsidiai? , Tines: corporate guaranre-s 
pro\ ide for the payment of propane and natural gas purcnases in tne e x n t  oftlie subsidiaries' default. Tile liabiiiriei 
for these purchases are recorded in the Consoiidared Financiai Statements. The aggregate amount guaranteed a: 
December 3!. 7006. totaled S7I .4 million. \vitil the guarantees expiring on \.arious dates in 2007. 

ir, addirion io the corporate guarantees. the Compan! has issued a 1et:er of credit to i!s primary insurance conipan! 
for S775.000. which expires on Ma! 3 I ,  1007. The letter of credii is pro\-ided as securit! To; claims amounrs tc 
satisf!. the deductibles on the Compan! 's  policies. The current ietter oicredit was renewed during the second quarter 
of2006 when Ihe insurance policies were renewed. 

Regulatory Activities 

The Compan!,'s natural gas distribution operations are subject to regulation b) the Dela\vare. Maryland and Florida 
Pubiic Service Commissions. Eastern Shore Natural Gas ("Eastern Shore"). The Company's natural gas rransmission 
operation is sub$ect to regulation b!, the FERC. 
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Delaware. On September 1, 2006. the Delaware division filed its annual Gas Sales Service Rates ("GSR") application 
that was effective for service rendered on and after November 1. 2006 with the Delaware Public Service Commission 
("Delaware PSC"). On October 3, 2006, the Delaware PSC approved the GSR charges, subject to full evidentiary 
hearings and a final decision. The Delaware division expects a final decision during the first half of 2007. 

On September 2, 2005. the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval of an 
alternative rate design and rate structure in order to provide natural gas service to prospective customers in eastern 
Sussex County. While Chesapeake does provide natural gas service to residents and businesses in portions of Sussex 
County. under the Company's current tariff, natural gas distribution lines have not been extended to a large portion ofthe 
State of Delaware's recently targeted growth areas in eastern Sussex County. I n  April 2002. Governor Ruth Ann Minner 
established the Delaware Energy Task Force ("Task Force"). whose mission was to address h e  State of Delaware's long- 
term and short-term energq challenges. Ir, September 2003. the Task Force issued its final report to the Governor that 
included a strategy related to enhancing the availability of natural gas within the State by evaluating possible incentives 
for expanding residential and commercial natural gas service. Chesapeake believes its current proposal to implement a 
rate design that will enable the Company to provide natural gas as a viable energy choice to a broad number of 
prospective customers within eastern Susses County is consistent with the Task Force recommendation. While the 
Company cannot predict the outcome of its application at this time. the Company anticipates a final decision from the 
Delaware PSC regarding its application ir, 2007. 

On October 16. 2006, the Delaware division filed an application with the Delaware PSC requesting approval for the 
issuance o f  up to $40.000.000 of common stock andior debt securities as contained in the shelf registration statement 
filed with the SEC in .iul! 2006. The Delaware PSC granted approval ofthe issuance at its regularly scheduled meeting 
on October 3 1 .  2006. 

On Notmihe r  i. 2006. tne Delaware di\,ision filed with the fielaware PSC iis annual Environmental Rider I"ER"r rate 
application to become effective for service rendered on and after Deceniher I .  2006. The Delaware PSC granted approvai 
ofthe ER rate at its reguiarl!, scheduled meeting on l\;ovembe;. 21. 2006. sub,iect to full  evidentiar), hearings and a final 
decision. The Delamare PSC graiiied final approval of the ER rate at its regulatoi? scheduled meeting on lanuail 23 .  
2007. 

On Novenihe: 9. 2006. the Delaware division filed two applications with the Delaware PSC requesting approval for a 
Toujn of Millshoro Franchise Fee Rider and a Town of Georgetown Franchist Fee Rider. These Riders will allom, the 
Delaware division to charge all respective natural gas customers within town limits the franchise fee paid hy the 
Delaware division to the Towns of Milisboro and Georgetown as a condiiion 10 providing natural gas serljice. Tiic 
Delaware PSC granted approval of both of the  Riders ar its reguiarl!' scnedulea meeting on Januar? 23.  1005. 

On December 14. 2006. the Delaware division filed an application i\ , i th the Dtiaware PSC requesting approyal to change 
its base deiivery service rates i n  order to recover a ! mil! increase in the assessment factor. which liad beer, approved b!, 
the state legislature. The Delaware PSC granted approval of the application a; its regularl!, scheduled meeting or, 
Decem her ! 9. 3006. 

Man,land. On Ma! I .  2006. the TLiar!,land di\-ision filed z base rate application n,ith the Maryland Public S e n  ice 
Commission ("Mar!,iand PSC", requesting an overall increase in base rates of approximatel!, SI .137.000 annually. based 
on a proposed overall rate of return o f 9 . 7  percent and a return on eauity of 1 I . j  percent. On September 26. 2006. the 
M a p  land PSC apprmed a base rate increase of approximatel! S780.000 annuall! , based on an overall raie of return o!' 
9.03 percen: and a return on equit! of 10.75 percent. This increase will result in an average increase in revenues of 
approximatel! 4.5 percenr for the b la~yiand  dikzision's firm residenrial, commercial and indusrrial customers. The PSC 
aiso approved the Company's proposal to implement a revenue normalization mechanism for its residential heating and 
smaller conimercial hearing customers. reducing the Company's risk due to weather and  usage changes. 

Page 38 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2006 Form 10% 



On December 14.2006, the Maryland PSC held an evidentiary hearing to determine the reasonableness ofthe Mac land 
division's four quarterly gas cost recovery filings during the twelve months ended September 30.2006. On December 1 5 .  
2006. the Hearing Examiner issued proposed findings approving the quarterly gas cost recover). rates as filed b!! the 
Maryland division. permitting complete recovery of its purchased gas costs for the period under revieii No appeals or 
written exceptions to the proposed findings were made and a final order approving the quarterly gas cost recoverq rates 
as filed was issued by the Maryland PSC on Januan 17. 2007. 

Florida. On March 22. 2006, the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida Public Service Commission (,"Florida 
PSC"] seeking approval of special contracts to provide Delivery Point Operator ("DPO") services. Under the proposed 
contracts. the DPO services would be provided to an affiliate company: Peninsula Energy Services Company, Inc. ?he 
Florida PSC approved the petition on July 7 .  2006. ordering that the special contracts be effective June 20.2006. 

O n  May 16. 2005. the Florida division filed a request with the Fiorida PSC for approbal o f a  Special Contract with the 
Depanment of Management Services. an agency of the State of Florida, for sewico to the Washington Correction 
Institution ('.WCT"). The Florida PSC approved the Compan! 's request on Jul> 19.2005. and seri  ice to the exisring WCI 
facilit) began in Februar!, 2006. WCI is located in Washington C o u n ~  in the Florida paniiandle and is tile thirteenti-. 
county served by the Company's Florida division. 

On September 1. 2005. the Florida division filed a petition for a Declaratory Statemenr Lvith the Florida PSC for a 
determination that Peninsula Pipeline Compan!.. Inc. (.'PPC''). a wholly owned subsidiav of the  Compan).. qualifies as a 
natural gas transmission company under the Natural Gas Transmission Pipeline Intrastate Regulatory Act. ?he Florida 
PSC approved this Petition at its December 20.2005 agenda conference. and a final order was issued on January 9.2006. 
I ne determination thar PPC qualifies as a naturai gas transmission compan)' provides opportunities for invesrmenr b! 
PPC to provide naturai gas transmission service to industrial customers in Florida b) an intrastate pipeline. 

-. 

On Septem her ! 5.2006. the Florida division f i ed  a petition u.ith the Fiorida PSC for approval of its Energy Conservarior! 
Cost Rsco\,ei? Factors ror the year 2OC7. Approved on November 30L" b!, the Fiorida PSC. the ne\< factors v ' en t  into 
effect on Januar? I .  2007. 

On Ocrober IO. 2006. the Florida division filed a petition with the Florida PSC for authorit! to implement phase ~ w o  01 

its experimental transitional transpoi-tation service ("?TS"J pilot program. and for approvai o f a  new tariff to reilect 111: 
division's transportatiori service environment. When approved. the implementation of phase two ofthe TTS program fo- 
residential and certain small commercial consumers will expand the number of pool managers from one to trio. and 
increase the gas suppl! pricing options aiJailab1e to these consumers. A decision is expected from the Florida PSC i i -  

Varch 1005. 

3 n  Soveniber 29. 2006. the Florida d i l  ision filed a perition \\!it11 the Florida PSC for authorit!, to modif!, i1.s energ! 
conservation programs. I n  this petition the Florida division is seeking approval to increase the caw aliov<aiices paid 
\\,ithip the Residentia! Homebuilder Program and the Residential Appliance Replacement Program. and to expand the 
scope of  rhe Residential A.ater Heater Retention Prograni to add iiatural gas heating systems. cooking and clotlies dying 
appliances. A decision is expected from the Florida PSC in March 2007. 

Eastern Shore. During Ocrober 7007. Easrern Shore filed for recovei? of gas suppl>, reaiignmen! costs. which rotaled 
S! 96.000 (including interest). associated with the implementation of FERC Order No.  636. At that t ime. the FERC 
deferred review of the filing pending settlement of a related matter concerning another transmission compan! , Ilpor 
resolution of the issue with the other transmission company. Eastern Shore resubmitted its filing to the FERC. requesting 
authorization to recover a total of $223 .000 (including interest) of gas suppi!, realignment costs. FERC approved Easteni 
Shore's filing by letter order dated .July 14. 2006. 

Svsteni Expansion 2006 - 2008. On January 20. 2006. Eastern Shore filed ar, application for a Certificate o!' 
Public Convenience and Necessit!, for its 2006-2008 system expansion project (the "2006 - 2008 Prqiect'? with 
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Additional firm capacity per day 26 200 10 300 
Capital investment $17 million $8 million 
Annualized gross margin contribution $3 670 000 $1 484 000 

the FERC. The application requested authority to construct and operate approximately 55  miles ofnew pipeline 
facilities and two new metering and regulating station facilities to provide an additional 47.3 50 dekatherms per 
day ("dtid") of firm transportation service in accordance with the phased-in customer requests of26,200 dtid in 
2006, 10,300 dtid in 2007: and 10,850 dt/d in 2008, at a total estimated cost o f  approximately $33.6 million. 
The following table provides a breakdown for the additional amounts of firm capacity per da)?. the estimated 
capital investment required. and the estimated annual gross margin contribution for the new services that will 
become effective November 1 for each of the respective years of the project: 

10 850 
$8 million 

$1 595 000 

A Scoping Meeting M'as held on March 29. 2006 at which the public and all other interested stakeholders were 
invited to attend to review the pro,iect. KO opposition to the project was received. On June 13, 2006. the FERC 
issued acertificate to Eastern Shore authorizing it to construct and operate the 2006-2008 Prqject as proposed. 
Eastern Shore has completed and placed in service the authorized Phase I facilities. Phase I1 and Phase 111 
facilities are expected to be constructed in 2007 and 2008. respectivel! . 

Bav CrossinE Dro/ect. On Ma> 3 1 .  2006. Eastern Shore exered in13 Precedent Agreements with Dcinia;;,a 
Power & Light Company (Tjelmarva") and Chesapeake. through its Delaware and Maryland Di\,isions LO 
pro\-ide additionai firm transportation services upon completion of  its latest proposed pipeline prqject. 

Under the Ba!. Crossing Prqject. Eastern Shore has proposed to de\,elop. construct and operate approsimatei! 
63 miles of neM pipeiine facilities that would transport natural gas from Calvert Count?,  Mar!.iand, crossing 
under the Chesapeake Ba! into Dorchester and Caroline Counties. Maryland. to points on the Delmann 
Peninsula uhere such facilities wouid interconnect with its existing facilities in Susses Count). Delaware. 

Chesapeake and Delmawa are current11 parties to esisting firm natural gas transportation s e n  ice agreements 
with Eastern Shore and each desires firm transportation senices under the Bay Crossing Pro-iect. as eijidencec! 
by the Mal, 3 I Precedent Agreements. Pursuant to these Precedent Agreements. the parties have agreed to 
proceed \vith the required initiatives to obtain the governmenmi and regulatory authorizations that are necessar! 
for Eastern Shore to nro\,ioe. and [or Chesaoeake and Deimarya 10 utilize. such firm transportation s w i c e s  
under the Ba! Crossing Project. 

During the negotiations oi'the Precedent Agreemen1.s. Eastern Snore and each of  the participating customers 
entered into Letter Agreements \vhich provide that. in the event that the Ba!. Crossing Prqiec: is not ccrtifiea 
and piaced in service. the participating customers m i l l  each pa) their proportionate share of ceimin pre- 
ceriiiication costs h! means o f a  negotiated surcnarge of up to $7 million. over a period oCno iess than 10 years. 

i n  connection with the Bay Crossing Prqiecr. on June 2;. 2006 Eastern Shore submitted a petitior, 10 thc FERC 
for approval ofthe uncontested Settlement Agreement. The Settlement Agreement provides Eastern Shore and 
all cusromers utilizing Eastern Shore's system M ' i t h  benefits. including but not liniited to the folio\\ ing: i 1 1 

advancement of a necessary infrastructurc project to meet the growing demand for natural gas on  the Delniar\,a 
Peninsula: 12') sharing ofprqject development costs by the participating customers in the prqiecr: and ( 3 )  n o  
deveiopment cost risk for non-participating customers. On August 1 .  2006. the FERC granted approvai ofthe 
uncontested Settiement Agreement. On September 6. 2006. Eastern Shore submitted to FERC proposed tariff 
sheets to inipiement the provisions of the above-referenced Settlement Agreement. B\ Letter Order dated 
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October 6 .  2006. the  FERC accepted the tariff sheets effective September 7. 2006. Eastern Shore anticipates 
entering into a pie-filing process at the FERC during the first half of 2007 with the ultimate goal of obtaining 
FERC approval to construct the Proposed Project. Eastern Shore will also be required to obtain permits from 
other federal: state and local agencies prior to proceeding with construction. It is not until the Company obtains 
the appropriate approvals and permits that a majority of  the total estimated cost of $93 million for the Bay 
Crossing Project is estimated to be spent. This estimated cost will depend upon the final size and route of the 
pipeline. as well as construction materials and labor costs. 

Rate Matters. On September 19, 2006. Eastern Shore submitted its Annual Charge Adjustment ("ACA") 
compliance filing to reflect the most current ACA surcharge rate as established by the FERC. The compliance 
filing was accepted b! the FERC and the rebised ACA surcharge rate became effective on October 1. 2006. 

On October 3 1 ,  2006 Eastern Shore filed a Section 4 base rate proceeding in compliance with Article IX of the 
Stipulation & Agreement approved in its prior base rate proceeding in Docket Ko.W02-?4-000. Eastern 
Shore's filed rates, proposed to be effective November 1.2006. reflect an annual increase of $5.589.OOG over its 
current rates. The proposed rate increase reflects increases in operating ana maintenance expenses. depreciation 
expense. taxes other than income taxes. and return on new gas plant facilities that are expected to be placed into 
service before March 3 I ~ 2007. Eastern Shore proposed a return on equity of 14.875 percent utilizing a capital 
structure o f 3 9  percent debt and hlpercent equiry. 

On November 30. 2006 the FERC issued its Cira'er ,4CC2pfii?p andSirspending 7hrlJf;CSiieers Subject i o  Nejiu7d 
and Esrubiisi7ir7g a Hearing. The FERC accepted and suspended the effectiveness of Eastern Shore's rate 
increase until Ivia) i .  2007. sub.ieci io relunu and the outcome o f the  hearing esiabiished i n  tlie ordei-. 

On December 5. 2006 the FERC's Chief Judge issued an order stating this proceeding is sub,iect to a Track 
Three procedural schedule. Track Three denotes an exceprionall!, complex case and provides for a toral o f63  
weeks within whicn a formal hearing will be conducted ana an Initial Decision issued. The Chief.ludge's order 
also designated the Presiding Adminisvative Laih. Judge i"ALJ",. 

On Decem her 19, 2006 the AL.i issued an Order Es/abiishii~p Procea'irrai Scizediiie as agreed upon b!, the 
participants and the .iudge at a pre-hearing conference held that same da;,. The procedura! schedule specifies 
that an Initial Decision shall be issued on Februar!, I ? .  2008. The AL.I also strongl? encouraged theparticipanrc 
in this proceeding to pursue a negotiated settlement through the Commission's settlement process. thus 
eiiminating the need for a formal hearing. 

Environmental Matters 

The Compan) continues to work with federal and state en\ ironmenrai agencies 10 assess the en\ ironinenlai impacr and 
euplcre correcti\ e action at three en\,ironmeiital sires (see Nore M to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The 
Compan! belieijes that future costs associated with these sites \? i l i  b- iecoverabie ir r-ares o: through sharing 
arrangements ivith.  or conrrjbutions b!,. other- responsibie parties 

Market Risk 

Marker risk rcpresents the potential ioss arising from ad\ erse changes in market rates and prices. Long-icrm debt is 
subject tc potential losses based on the change in interest rates. The Company's iong-term debt consists ofsenior nores 
and convertible debentures (see S o t e  H to the Consolidated Financial Statements for annuai maruriries ofconsolidated 
long-term debt). All of Chesapeake's long-term debt is fixed-rare deb:. The carrying value of the Company's long-term 
debt, including current maturities. was S 7 8 . i  million at December 3 1. 2006 as compared to a fair \ - d u e  of $8 1.4 million. 
based mainly on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar terms 
and remaining maturities. The Company evaluates whether to refinance existing debt or permanenti!, finance existing 
short-tern1 borrowing based in pan on the fiuctuation in interest rates. 
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The Company's propane distribution business is exposed to market risk as a result of propane storage activities and 
entering into fixed price contracts for supply. The Company can store up to approximatel) four million gallons of 
propane (including leased storage and rail cars) during the winter season to meet its customers' peak requirements and tc 
serve metered customers. Decreases in the wholesale price of propane may cause the value of stored propane to decline 
To mitigate the impact of price fluctuations. the Company has adopted a Risk Management Polic) that allows the 
propane distribution operation to enter into fair value hedges of its inventory. At December 3 I .  2006. the propane 
distribution operation had entered into a swap agreement to protect the Company from the impact of price increases on 
our price-cap plan that w e  offer to customers. The Company considers this agreement to be an economic hedge and does 
not qualify for hedge accounting as described in SFAS 133. At the end of the period, the market price of propane dropped 
below the unit price within the swap agreement. As a result of the price drop, the Company marked the agreement to 
market. which resulted in an unrealized loss of $84.000. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation is a party to natural gas liquids ("NGL") fonvard contracts. primaril! 
propane contracts. with various third parties. These contracts require that the propane wholesale marketing operatior. 
purchase or sell NGL at a fixed price at fixed future dates. At expiration. the contracts are settled b!, the deiiveiy o fUGL 
to the Company or the counterpan? or hooking out the transaction (booking out is a procedure for financiall~~ settling a 
contract in lieu of the physical deliverq ofenergy). The propane wholesale marketing operation also enters into futures 
contracts that are traded on the New York Mercantile Exchange. In cenain cases. the futures contracts are settled by the 
payment of a net amount equal to the difference between the current market price of the futures contract and the original 
contract price. 

The forward and futures contracts are entered into for trading ana wholesale marketing purposes. The propane whoiesaie 
marketing operation is subject io commodit) price risk on its open positions to the extent rnat niarkei prices [or NGL 
deviate from fixed contract settlement amounts. Market risk associated with the trading of futures and forward contracts 
are monitored dail), for compliance with Chesapeake's Risk Management Policy. which includes volumetric limiis for 
open positions. To manage exposures to changing market prices. open positions are marked up or down to market prices 
and re\.iewed b! oversight officials on a daily basis. Additionally. the Risk Management Committee reviews periodic 
reports or. market and credi! risk. approves an!' exceptions to the Risk Management Polic!, (within the limits estabiished 
b! tne Board of Directorsi a n a  authorizes the use of an!' n e u  types of contracts. Quaniitativt information on tne forward 
and futures contracts at December 3 1 .  9006 and 2005 I S  shown in the following charts. 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 31. 2006 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Contracts 

Sale 
Purchase 

13797000 $09250-$1 2100 $1 0107 
A , .  71 Sl 0098 J " 3  800 $0 9250 - $: 2200 

Esumareo marKer prices and weighted average contract prices are in aoliars per gailofi 
A// conrracfs exme in 2007 

Quantity Estimated Weighted Average 
At December 3t .  2006 in gallons Market Prices Contract Prices 
Forward Con tracts 

Sate 20'94200 $' 035O-Sl  1013 $1 0718 
Purcnase 2 C  202 000 $1 0100 - $1 0450 $1 0703 

Estimated market prices and weighted average contract prices are in dollars per galion 
A/ /  conrracts expired in 2006 

The Compan!.'s natural gas distribution and marketing operations have entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers 
to purchase narural gas for resale to their customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not meet the definition of 
aeri\,atives in SFAS ho. ! 33 or are considered "norma! purchases and sales" under SFAS No. 138 and are not marked LO 
ni arke t. 
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Competition 
The Company's natural gas operations compete with other forms of energy including electricity. oil and propane, The 
principal competitive factors are price, and to a lesser extent. accessibility. The Company's natural gas distribution 
operations have several large volume industrial customers that have the capacity to use fuel oil as an alternative to natural 
gas. When oil prices decline. these interruptible customers convert to oil to satisfy their fuel requirements. Lower levels 
in interruptible sales occur when oil prices are lower relative to the price of natural gas. Oil prices. as well as the prices of 
electricity and other fuels. are sub.iect to fluctuation for a variety of reasons; therefore. future competitive conditions are 
not predictable. To address this uncertainty. the Company uses flexible pricing arrangements on both the supply and sales 
side of this business to maximize sales volumes. As a result of the transmission business' conversion to open access and 
the Florida division's restructuring of  its services. their businesses have shifted from providing competitive sales service 
to providing transportation and contract storage services. 

The Company's natural gas distribution operations located in Delaware. Maryland and Florida offer transportation 
services to certain commercial and industrial customers. In 2002. the Florida operation extended transportation sen ice  to 
residential customers. LVith transportation service available on the Company's distribution systems. the Conipan) is 
competing mith third-palp suppliers to sell gas to industrial customers. As it relates to transportation services. the 
Company's competitors include the interstate transmission company ifthe distribution customer is located close enougi: 
to the transmission company's pipeline to make a connection economically feasible. The customers at risk are usuall! 
large volume commercial and industrial customers with the financial resources and capability to bypass the distribution 
operations in this manner. In  certain situations. the distribution operations ma!' adjust services and rates for these 
customers to retain their business. The Coinpan!, expects to coniinue to expand the availability of transportation service 
to additional classes of distribution customers in the future. The Compan!, established a natural gas sales and suppl!' 
operation in Florida to compete for customers eligible for transportation services. The Coinpan) also provides sales 
sen,ice in Delaware. 

The Cornpan? 's  propane distribution operations compete with several other propane distributors in their seivict 
territories. primarii! 011 the basis of senrice and price. emphasizing reliabilit!, oi'seiv ice and responsi\:eness. C.ompetition 
is generally from local outlets o f  national distribution companies and local businesses. because disrributors located ii: 

close proximity to customers incur lower costs of prokiding service. Propane competes with electricit!, as an energ! 
source. because it is typically less expensive than electricit), based on equivalenl BTU \,slue. Propane also competes 
ivith home heating oil as an energy source. Since natural gas has historically been less zspensive than propane. proDane 
is generail!, not distributed i n  geographic areas serviced h!. natural gas pipeline or distribution systems. 

The propane wholesale marketing operation competes against irarious markerers. man! of which h v e  significant\> 
greater resources and are able 10 obtain price or \ ,ohmetric ackantages. 

The advanced information services business faces significant competition from a nun-iber of larger comperitors Iia\,ing 
substantially greater resources available to them than does the Company. In addition. changes in tile ad\,anced 
information services business are occurring rapid11 . which could adverse11 impact the markets for the products and 
senJices offzred b\' these businesses. This segment competes on the basis oftecnnoiogicai espei-rise. reputatlor; and price. 

inflation 
inflation affects the cost of labor. products and services required for operation. maintenance and capital impro\,einents. 
U'hile the impact of inflation has remained ]OM in recent years. natural gas and propane prices are subjec: to rauid 
fluctuations. Fluctuations in natural pas prices are passed on to customers through the gas cost recove? mechanism in t h t  
Company's tariffs. To help cope with the effects of inflation on its capital investments and returns. the Campan!, seeiis 
rate relief from regulator! commissions for regulated operations while monitoring the returns of its unregulated business 
operations. To compensate for fluctuations in propane gas prices. Chesapeake adjusts its propane selling prices to the 
extent allowed b!. the market. 
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Cautionary Statement 

Chesapeake has made statements in this report that are considered to be forward-looking statements. These statements are 
not matters of historical fact. Sometimes they contain words such as "believes," "expects." "intends," "plans," "will" or 
"may," and other similar words of a predictive nature. These statements relate to matters such as customer growth. 
changes in revenues or gross margin, capital expenditures. environmental remediation costs, regulatory approvals, market 
risks associared with the Company's propane wholesale marketing operation, competition, inflation and other matters. It  
is important to understand that these forward-looking statements are not guarantees but are sub,ject to certain risks and 
uncertainties and other important factors that could cause actuai results to differ materially from those in the forward- 
iooking statements. These factors include. among other things: 

o 

9 

the temperature sensitivity of the naturai gas and propane businesses: 

the effect of spot, forward and futures market prices on the Company's distribution. whoiesale marketing and 
energy trading businesses: 

amount and avaiiabiIi5 ofnaturai gas and propane supplies and the access to interstate pipelines' transporration 
and storage capacity: 

the effects of natural gas and propane commodity price changes m a l  affect the operating costs and competitive 
positions of  our natural gas and propane distribution operations; 

the effects of competition on the Company's unregulated and regulated businesses: 

the effecl o f  changes ir. federai. stale or local regulatory and tax requirements. including deregulation: 

the effect of  changes in technolog!. 011 the Compan!,'s advanced information services segment: 

the effects of credit risk ana credit requirements on the Compan! ' s  energy marketing subsidiaries: 

G 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o [he effect ofaccounting changes: 

3 

o 

o 

o 

3 

the effect of changes i n  oenefit plan assumptions: 

the effececr of  compliance with en\ ironmental Yeguiations or the remediation ofen\,ironmentai damage: 

the effects oi general economic conditions and inciuding interest rates on the Conipan! and its customers: 

the abilit!, of the Compan>.'s ne\&, and planned facilities and acquisitions to generate expected rwenues: 

the Compan! 's  abiiit!. to obtain the rate relief and cost reco\'en requested from utiiit!! regulators and the timing 
o f t h e  requesLed repiator? actions: and 

the Compan>'s abiiit! to ontain necessan appro\,ais and  permits b!, reguiaio? agzncies on  a timel) basis o 
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK. 

Information concerning quantitative and qualitative disclosure about market risk is included in ltem 7 under the heading 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis - Market Risk." 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. as such 
term is defined in Exchange .4ct Rules 13a-15(0. A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonabie assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A compan!,'s internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that. 
in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the compan)'; i i i j  

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with general 1)' accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the compan).: and iiii) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use. or disposition of the compan! 's 
assets that could have a material efi'ect on the financial statements. 

Under the supenis ion and with the participation of management. including the principal executive officer and principa! 
financial officer, Chesapeake's management conducted an e\,aluation of the effectiveness of ils internal conrroi o\er 
financial repoi-ting based on the criteria established in a reporr entitled "Internal Contro! - Integrated Framework" issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission. Because of its inherent iimitations. internal 
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also. prqiections of an)' evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are sub.iect to the  risk that controis may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the poiicies or procedures ma! dereriorate. Chesapeake's managemen! 
has e\,aluatec! and concluded that Chesapeake's inrernai control over financial reponing !!as effecti\,e as ofDecember ? ! ,  
2006. 

Manageinent's assessment ofrhe efYecriveiiess ofrZhesapeake's internai controi over financial reponing as of December 
3 I .  2006 has becn audited b> PiicewaterhouseCoopers LLP. an independenL regisrered public accounting firm. as stated 
in their repor! \vhich is included herein. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 
of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

We  have completed integrated audits of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation's consolidated financial statements and of its 
internal control over financial reponing as of December 31. 2006. in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions. based on our audits. are presented belou, 

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule 

In  our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15ia)( 1 )  present fairl!,. in all 
material respects, the financial position of Chesapeake Ut es Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 3 1 .  2006 
and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years i n  the period ended 
December 3 1 ~ 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generall), accepted in the Unired States of America. In  
addition. in our opinion. the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index appearing under Item i j (a ) (2)  
presents fairl!.. in all material respects. the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related 
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibilit!, of 
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial 
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits ofthese statements in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free ofmaterial misstatement. .An audit of 
financial statements includes examining. on a test basis. evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. and evaiuating tne 
overall financial statement presentation. W e  believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As discussed in Note I( to the consolidated financial statements. the Compan!, changed the manner in whicii it accounts 
for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. effective Decem her 3 I ,  2006. 

Internal conrroi over financial reporting 

Also. i n  our opinior,. management's assessment. inciuded in Managenlent's Report on internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting appearing under Item 8. that the Conipan!, maintained effective internal control over financiai reporting as of' 
Decem her 3 ! .  2006. based on criteria esrablished in i tuertid Control - Integraied Frumeu,orl: issued IJ!' the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadwa! Commission (COSO). is fairi), stated. in all material respects. based on 
those criteria. Furthermore. in our opinion. the Compan! maintained. in all material respects. effectiije internal control 
over financial reponing as of December 31. 2006. based on criteria estabiished in ii7terizu: Cormol - iizregraiec' 
Franzewoilr issued b! the COSO. The Compan! 's  management is responsible for maintaining effective internal controi 
over financial reponing and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our 
responsibilit!, is to express opinions on managemenx's assessment and on the effectkeness of the  Compan!.'s internal 
control over financial reponing based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financiai reporting 
in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Compan), Accounting Oversight Board (United States;. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over 
financiai reponing was maintained in all materiai respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes 
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reponing. evaluating management's assessment, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internai control. and performing such other procedures as we 
consider necessar)' in the circumstances. LL'e belie\ e that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

A compan>,'s internal control over financial reponing is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding t h e  
reliability of financial reponing and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. .4 compan!,'s internal control over financial reporting includes those poiicies 
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and procedures that ( i )  pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; ( i i )  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations. internal conrrol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness ro future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures ma) 
deteriorate. 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 
Bosron. M A  
Varch 13. 2007 
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Consolidated Statements of income 

~~ ~ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Operating Revenues %231,200,591 $229.629.736 $177.955.441 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of sales, excluding costs below 155,810,622 153,514.739 109,626,377 
Operations 37,053.223 40.1 81>648 35,146,595 
Maintenance 2,103,562 1.8 18.98 1 I .5 18.774 
Depreciation and amortization 8,243,715 7.568.209 7.257.538 
Other taxes 5,058,158 5.01 5.660 4.436.41 1 

Total operating expenses 208.269.280 208,099.237 157,985.695 
Operating Income 22,931,311 21.530.499 19.969.746 

Other income net of other expenses 189,112 382.626 549.!56 

Interest charges 5,777.336 5.133.495 5268.1 45 

Income Before income Taxes 17,343,087 16.779.630 15.250.757 

Income taxes 6 . 8 3 6 5 6 2  6.3 12.01 6 5.701 .O90 

Net Income from Continuing Operations 10,506,525 10.467.6 I4 9.549.661 

Loss from discontinued operations. net of 
tax benefit of $0. $0 and $59.75 1 i 120.900) 

Net Income SI0.506,525 $10.467.614 $9.428.767 
p-. - 

Earnings Per Share of Common Stock: 
Basii 

From continuine operations S1.14 s i .79  61.66 - .  
From discontinued operations ( 0.0 2'1 

Net Income S1.74 SI.?', $ I  .64 

D i iu ted 
Froni continuing operaions s 1 .72 $1,:- e; I .64 
Froni discontinued onerations 10.01!  

Net income s1.72 $1.77 S; 1.67 

The accompanying nofes are an inregrai part of the financial statements 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Opernting Activities 
Net income 
Ad.justments to reconcile net income to net operating cash, 

Depreciation and amortization 
Depreciatioii and accretion included in other costs 
Deferred income taxes, net  
Unrealized gain (loss) o n  commodity contracts 
Unrealized loss on investments 
Employee benefits and compensation 
Other, net 

Sale (purchase) o f  investments 
.Accounts receivabie and accrued revenue 
Propane inventory. storage gas and other inventor) 
Regulatory assets 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Other deferred charges 
Long-term receivables 
Accounts payable and other accrued iiabilities 
Income taxes receivable (pavable'i 
Accrued interest 
Customer deposits and refunds 
Accrued compensation 
Regui atory iiabiii ties 

Changes in assets and iiabiiities' 

$10,506,525 

8,243,715 
3,102.066 
(408,533) 

37,110 
( I  51,952) 
382.608 
(18.596) 

( 1  77.990) 
9,705.860 

354,764 
2,498.954 
(271.438) 
(231.822) 
137,101 

( 1  1.434.370) 
1.800.913 

273.672 
2,361.265 
(542.512) 

2,824,068 

E 10.467.6 14 

7.568.209 
2,705,620 
1,510,737 
(227,193) 

(56.650) 
1.62 1.607 

(62.692, 

(1,242,5633 
( I  6.83 1,75 I :I 

!5.704.040) 
(!.7!9.184) 

36,704 
iiO1.56li 
247.600 

! 5,569,924 
(2.006.762) 
(41.376) 
467,781 
875.342 
144,501 

$9.428.767 

7 .257 .538  
2.61 1.779 
4,559,207 

353.383 
(4:.256) 

1.536.586 
6!,079 

43.354 
( 1  l.723,505;1 

( I  ,741.94ii 
428.516 

1168.898\ 
428.964 

(3.73 1.360 
(229.237) 

( 5  1,272) 
605.544 
(794.194, 
i 191.266) 

122!.137i 

Other liabiliries 1,125590 385.034 55.977 
Net cash provided by operating activities 30,136,998 13399.94 1 ?2.003.153 

investing A cliuiries 
,333  19.6 I3 I ( 1  0.435.938: Property, plant and eqt i ipmen~ expenditures 

135. i 70 Sale of investinents 
Sale of discontinued operations l l j . 7 0 7  

(48.845.828) 

Environmental recoveries (expendi~ures;  (15.549) 240.336 369.719 

(48.861.377) (33.079.277 1 ii5.515.3121 K e t  cash used by investing activities 

Finr iming Activities 
Common stock di\ idends !5.982,5311 15.789.180~ !5.560.535, 

Isstiaiice of stock for Dividend Reinvestment Plan 321,865 458.75- 200.55 i 
Stock issuance 19.698.50') 

Set  borrowing (repayment') tinder iine o f  credii at oreenieiits (7.977.3471 29.606.40(; !. 184.742 

Cash settieinen! oiu'arrants (434,7821 

Change in cash overdrafis due in outstanding checks 49.047 S74.0S? i l 43 .2 .~ l l  

Proceeds froix issuance o f  long-term deb! 20.000,000 

20.745.087 20.355.233 :7.9x4.55 1 

ReDayITIent o f  long-term debt (4,929,6741 (4.794.827't (3.665389: 

h e r  cash provided (used; b> financing activities 

,Vet Increase (Decreusej in  Cush and Cnsh Equit'iiienI.~ 2.000.708 S'5.897 l1.190.74(; 
Cash mid Cush Equivaierzfs - Beginning of Period 2.487.658 !.61:.76i 3.108.5Oi 

Cash and Crish Equivalents - End of Period S4.488.366 32.487.658 $ I . i i I i . 7 h i  

Supplemental  Disclosures of Non-cash Investing Activities: 
Capital propen! and equipnlen: acotiired on account 
but no1 paid as ofDecember 3 I 

Supplemental  Disclosure of Cash F l o ~  iiiformatioii 
Cash paid for interest 
Cask paid for iiicoms taxes 

S1.490.890 $1.36'.348 $I .57S.'24 

S5.334.47" $5,052,013 $5280.299 
$6,285,272 SO.342.476 SI , 9 7 7 . 2 3  

The accompanying notes are an integra/ mrf of the fjnanciai sfaiemenis 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

Assets 
At December 31, 2006 2005 

P r o p e m ,  Plant and Equipment 
Katural gas distribution and transimssion $269,012,516 $220.685,461 
Propane 44,791,552 41.563.810 
Advanced information services 1,054,368 1.221.177 
Other plant 9,147,500 9.275.729 

Total propert). plant and equipment 324,005,936 2’2.146.177 

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization f85,010,472) (78.840.41 3) 
Plus Construction work i n  progress 1,829,948 7.598.53 1 

’vet pioperty, plant and equipment 240.825,412 201 304.295 

Investments 2,015577 I .685.635 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,488,366 2.487.658 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for uncollectible 

accounts of $661.597 and $861.378. respectiwlyj 44,969,182 54.284.01 I 
Accrued revenue 4,325,351 4.716.383 
Propane inventory. at average cost 7.187.035, 6.332.956 
Other inventory. at average cost 1,564,937 1.538.936 
Regulatory assers 1,275,653 4.434.828 
Storage gas prepayments 7,393,335 8.628.179 

Deferred income taxes 1,365.316 
Prepaid expenses 2.280,900 2.02 1. I64 
Other current assets 1.553.284 1.596.707 

Tomi current assets 77,482,241 88.766.757 

Incoine taws receivable 1,078,882 - 7 . - ? i  , _ _ .  840 

Deferred Charges and Other 4ssets 
Goooulll 674.451 673.45 1 
Other intangible assets. iiei 191.878 205.683 
Long-tenn recei~ abies 824.333 961 434 
Otner reguiatoi? assets 1.765,088 !.i78.232 
Otner aeierred charges 1,215.004 1.003.393 

Total aefened charges and oiiier assets 4.670.751 ‘I 023 !9? 

Total Assets 5324,993.984 5295.979.875 

The accompanying notes are an integraiparl of the financial sfafements. 
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Capitalization and Liabilities 
At December 31, 2006 2005 

Capitalization 
Stockholders' equit) 

Common Stock, par value $0 4867 per share 
iauthorlzed 12.000.000 shares) (1) $3,254,998 $2.863.212 

Additional paid-in capital 61,960,220 39.619.849 
Retained earnings 46,270,884 42.854,894 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (334,550) (578.15 1 )  
Deferred compensation obligation 1,118.509 794.535 
Treasuq stock f l , l 1 8 . 5 0 9 )  1797.156) 

Total stockholders equit) 111.151.552 84.75:.183 

Long-tenn debt. net ofcurrent maturities 71,050,000 5 8.990.363 

Total capitalization 182,201,552 143.747.546 

Current Liabilities 
Current portion of long-term debt 7.656.364 4.929.091 
Short-term borrowing 27,553,941 35.482.241 

33,87ii,552 45.645.228 Accounts payable 
Customer deposits and refunds 7,502.265 5.140.999 
,4ccmed interest 832,392 558.73 9 
Dividends payable 1,939,482 i ,676.398 
income taxes payable 

i.150.826 Deferred income taxes 

Reguiatoiy iiabiiities 4.1 99,147 550.546 
Other accrued liabilities 4,005,795 3.560.055 

Total current iiabiiities 90,460,991 102,487,349 

Accrued compensation 2,901,053 3.793.244 

Deferred Credits and Other Liahiiities 
Deferred income taxes 26.51 7,098 24248.624 
Deferred investment tax credirs 328.27- 367.085 

En\ ironmental iiabilities 21 1 .581 352.504 
Accrued pension costs 1,608,31 i 3,099.8 8 2 
Accived asset removal cos; 18,410,992 16.727.268 
Other liabilities 4,018,928 2.940.838 

Total deferrec! credits and other iiabiiities 52.331.441 49.744.980 

Other regulator!. liabilities 1236.254 2.008.779 

Other Commitments and Contingencies (Kate U! 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities 6324,993.984 $295,979,815 

( I )  Shares issued Mere 6.688.084 and 5.883.099 for 2006 and 2005. respectivel) 
Shares outstanding were 6.688.084 and 5.883.002 for 2006 and 2005, respectiveil 

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of the financial srafemenrs 
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

C o m m o n  Stock 
Balance -beginning of  year $2,863,212 $2,812.538 $2,754,748 

Dividend Reinvzstment Plan 18,685 20,038 20,125 
Retirement Savings Plan 14.457 10.255 19.058 
Conversion of debentures 8,117 11,004 9.060 

Stock issuance 335,991 
Performance shares and options exercised ( I '  14,536 9.377 9.547 

Balance -end of year 3,254,998 2,863.21 2 2.8 12.538 

Additional Paid-in Capital  
Balance -beginning of year 39.619.849 36.854.717 34.176.361 

Dividend Reinvzstment Plan 1,148,100 I .224,874 996.71 5 
Retirement Savings Plan 900354 682.829 946.3 I 9  
Conversion of debentures 275,300 373.259 307.940 
Performance shares and options exercised ' I '  887,426 484, I 7 0  327.382 
Stock issuance 19,362.51 8 
Exercise warrants. ne1 of tax (2333271 

Balance -end of year 61,960,220 35.6 19.849 36.854.7 17 

Retained Earnings 
Balance -beginning of year 42.854894 39.015.087 36.008.246 

Ke: income 10.506.525 10.467.614 9.428.767 

Cash dividends " '  (7.090535) i 6.627.807) (6.403.45 0) 

Balance -end of vear 46.270.884 42.854.894 39.01 5,087 
it iss on issiiancc oi:reasuv sii jcl  iiE.476j 

,&ccumulated Othe r  Comprehensive income 
Balance -beginning of year (578,151) (527.246) 

Minimuni pensioii liabilin, adjlstinent. ne: of ras  74.036 :50.905) (597.246: 
Gain on funded s t a m  of Employee Benefit Plans. net of tax 

Balance -end of vear (334.550) 1578.151 I I 527.2461 
169.565 

Deferred Compensation Obllgatlon 
Balance -beginning of \ear  794,535 8 16 044 913 689 

h e w  deferrais 323.974 130426  296 790 
Paboui of deferred comoensarior 1151 935 (394 435 

Balance -end of vear 1.118509 1 9 ~ 1  j 3 i  816 044 

Treasury Stock 
Balance -beginning of yea: P 9 5 , 1 5 6 )  i 1.008.696; 19 13.689 j 

Purchase of m a s u n .  stock (51.572) ( IS'292i ,'344.753\ 
Sale and distribution of treasun, srocI( 54.193 524.258 546.536 

Balance -end of year (1,118.509) (797.1 56) (1.008.696 1 

Kew deferrals reiated to compensation obiigarioii !323,974) ii3O.4261 :296.790, 

Total  Stockholders '  Equit! 5111,151,552 384.757.3 83 $7.962.444 

' 

'' Cash dividends declared per snare for 2006. 3005 and 2004 were $ 1  16. SI I 4  and S I  I?. resDecriveiy 
Iiicliides amounts for shares issued for Direcrors' compensation 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income 
Net inconie %10.506.525 Sl(i46'  614 $ 9  428,767 
Pension liabiiitq adlustment net of tax of 

74,036 (50 905 I I 52- 246, $48 889 $33 6 I 5  and $34' '26 respecribel\ 

Comprehensive income $10.580.561 $ l 0 4 1 6 7 @  $ 8 9 0 1  511 

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial sfafements 
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Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes 

For the Years Ended December 31,  2006 2005 2004 

Current Income Tax Expense 
Federal 
State 

$5,994,296 $3,687,800 $1.221.155 
1,424,485 789.233 618.916 

Investment tax credit adjustments. net (54,816) (54,816) i 54.8 1 6) 
Total current income tax expense 7,363,965 4,422,217 1.785.255 

Deferred Income Tax Expense ('I 
Property, plant and equipment 1,697,024 1.380.628 4.230.650 
Deferred gas costs (2,085,066) 1.064.3 10 283.547 
Pensions and other employee benefits (97,436) 1340.987) (49.620) 
Environmental expenditures (5,580) (98.229) i 150.864) 
Other (36,345) 11 15.923) (397.878) 

Total deferred income tax expense (527,403) 1.889.799 3.915.835 
Total Income Tax Expense $6.836.562 $6.312.016 $5.701.090 

Reconciliation of  Effective Income Tax Rates 
Federal income tax expense ''I 56,070,080 $5.872.871 $5.185.257 
State income taxes. net of federal benefit 804,988 708. I92 736.116 
Other (38,506) (269.047) 1220.343) 

Total Income Tax Expense 56336 .562  $6.312.016 $5.701.090 

Effective income tax rate 39.4 (Yo 37.6Yo 37,490 

At December 31, 2006 2005 

Deferred Income Taxes 
Deferred income tax liabiiities: 

Property, plant and equipment 527,997,744 S26.795.152 
En\ ironmentd costs 204,149 
Deferred gas costs 1.664.251 
Other 870.424 6 12.943 

Total deferred income tax iiabilities 29.072,317 79.072.547 

Deferred income tax assets: 
Pension and other- emploqee benefits 2,225.944 2289.370 
Self insurance 468,922 575.30: 

Deferred %as costs 528,814 
Other 696.855 626.788 

Total deferred income ta\t assets 3.920.535 j.673. I95 
Deferred Income Taxes Per Consoiidared Balance Sheet 525.151.782 $35.399.452 

j 1 i lncliides (%Si.OOO;. $146.000 and $386 000 o f d e f m e a  s t a t  income taxes for in: years 2006. 2005 and 200:. respectrv?l! 
(1) Fed-ral ~l lco~ne taxes were recorded a1 3 io!b io: the years 2006 and 2005 Tim \\'ere record% a1 3.190 I!'. 2@()1 

Environmentd costs 181.731 

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of the financial statements. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

A. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Business 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation ("Chesapeake" or "the Company"j is engaged in natural gas distribution to 
approximately 59,100 customers located in central and southern Delaware, Maryland's Eastern Shore and Florida. The 
Companp's natural gas transmission subsidiary operates an intrastate pipeline from various points in Pennsylvania and 
northern Delaware to the Company's Delaware and Maryland distribution divisions, as well as other utility and industrial 
customers in Pennsylvania. Delaware and the Eastern Shore of Maryland. The Company's propane distribution and 
wholesale marketing segment provides distribution service to approximately 33.300 customers in central and southern 
Delaware. the Eastern Shore of  Maryland. southeastern Pennsylvania, central Florida and the Eastern Shore of\'irginia. 
and markets propane to wholesale customers including large independent oil and petrochemical companies, resellers and 
propane distribution companies in the southeastern United States. The advanced information services segment provides 
domestic and intemational clients with information technology related business services and solutions for both enterprise 
and e-business applications. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The Consolidated Financia! Statements include the accounts of the Compan!, and its wlioIl>~ owned subsidiaries. The 
Company does not have any ownership interests in investments accounted for using the equit), method or an)' variable 
interests in a variable interest entit!.. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated i n  consolidation. 

System of Accounts 
The natural gas distribution divisions of the Compan! located in Delalvare. Maryland and Florida are sub,ject to 
regulation b!, their respective Public Service Commissions with respect to their rates for service. maintenance oftheir 
accounting records and various other matters. Eastern Shore Natural Gas C o m p a q  is an open access pipeline and is 
subject to regulation by the Federal Energ!< Regulator!, Commission I-FERC"). Our financial statements are prepared i n  
accordance with generali!, accepted accounting principies. which give appropriate recognition to the ratemaking and 
accounting practices and policies of the \,arious commissions. The propane. advanced information services and other 
business segments are no: sub,iect to regulation witn respec: to rates or maintenance of accounting records. 

Property, Piant, Equipment and 5epreciafion 
Vtilit? and non-utilit! property is stated at original cos{. The costs ofrepairs and ininor replacements are charged against 
income as incurred and the costs of major renem,als and betterments are capitalized. Upon retirement 0:' dispositioi; or 
non-utiiir!, propen!'. the gain or loss. net of salvage vaiue. is charged to income. Lpon retiremeni or disposition of uriiir! 
propert) the gain or loss. net ofsal\,age valuz. is charged to accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation i:, 
computed using the straight-line method at rates that amortize the unrecovered cost of depreciable propert) over the 
esrimared yemaining usefui life o i t h e  asset. Depreciatioii and amortization exDenses are provided at ar; annual rate for 
each segment. The three-year a\'-*. -,age rates were 3 percent for natural gas distribution and transniission. 5 percen: i'or 
propane, 1 1 percent for advanced inforniation sensices and 7 percent for generai plant. 
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At December 31, 2006 2005 Useful Life ''I 
Plant in service 

Mains 
Services - utility 
Compressor station equipment 
Liquefied petroleum gas equipment 
Meters and meter installations 
Measuring and regulating station equipmer 
Office furniture and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Structures and improvements 
Land and land rights 
Propane bulk plants and tanks 

5151.890.304 
32,334;145 
24,92 1,916 
24.6?7,398 
16,093.737 
13,272.201 
I O .  114.101 
10.686.259 
9,538.345 
7,386,268 
5.301.457 

$ 1  l3 , l  11,408 
29,010.008 
13,853,871 
22,162,867 
15,165,212 
12,219.964 
9,572,926 
9.822.272 
9;i 61,696 
5.646.852 
6,097.036 

24-31 years 
14-28 years 
28 years 
30-39 years 
Propane 15-3 3 years, Natural gas 17-49 years 
17-37 years 
Non-regulated 3- 10 years. Regulated 3-20 years 
2-1 I vears 
5-44 years 
Kot depreciable, except ce-tain regulated assets 
15 - 40 years 

Various i 7.839.745 16.922.065 Various 
Total plant in service 324.005,936 272.746. I77 
Plus construction work i n  progress 1.829.948 7.598.53 I 
Less accumuhted depreciation 185.010.472) (78.840.41 3 )  
Net property, plant and equipmen 5240.825.412 5201.504.295 

"'C eriain immaterial account balances inay fall outside this range 

The regulated operations computedepreciation in accordance uith rares approved by either the state Public Service Cominission 
or the FERC These rates are based on depreciation studies and inay change periodicallv upoil receiving approval f rom the 
appropriate reguiator): body The depreciation rates shown above are based oil the remaining u s e h  lives of the assets at the 
tiine of the depreciation study. rather than their original lives. The depreciation rares are composite. straight-line rates applied 
to the average investment for each class of depreciable property and are adjusted for aiticipated cost ofrenioval less saivag: 
value 

The non-regulated operations comoute depreciation s i n g  the straight-line method over the estimated useiul life of the asset 

1 includes buildiiigs, structures used i n  connection with natural gas and propane operations. improvements to those facilities f ? ,  

and leasehold imnrovements 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Compan!.'~ polic! is to invest cash in excess oi" operating requirements ir, overnighf. income producing accounts. 
Such amounts are stated at cost, which approximates market value. investments with an original marurit!, of three months 
or less whei: purchased are considered cash equivalents. 

inventories 
The Compan! uses the a\'erage cost method to value propane ana materials and suppiies inventor!, l f the  marker prices 
drop beiow cost. inventon balances that are sub.ject to pricc risk are ad-iusted to market \'aiues. 

Regulatory Assets, Liabilities and Expendifures 
The Company accounts for its regulated operalions in accordance wirn  SC.-",S h o ,  7'1 ".4ccounting for the Effects 0;' 

Cei-tain Types ofReguiation." This standard includes accounting principies for companies whose rates are determined h! 
independent third-paig, regulators. W'hen setring rates. regulators often niake decisions, the economics o1'which require 
companies to defer costs 0:' revenues in different periods than ma! be aporopriate for unregulated entemrises. \?'her. tn i s  
situation occurs. the regulated utilir! defers the associated costs as assets (regularory assets) on the balanc: siiee!. and 
records them as expense on the income statement as i: collects revenues. Further .  regulators can also impose liabilities 
upoii a compan! for amounts pre\3iousl> coliected from customers. and for reco\'er\. of COSTS tha: are expected to be 
incurred in the future rreguiarop liabiliriesi. 

At December 3!. 2006 and 2005. the regulated utility operations had recorded the following regulatoc assets and 
liabilities on the Baiance Sheets. These assets and liabilities will be recognized as revenues and expenses ii: future 
periods as the!, are reflected in customers' rates. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

At December 31, 2006 2005 

Regulatory Assets 
Current 
Underrecovered purchased gas costs %1,076,921 $4.016.522 
Conservation cost recovery 51,408 303,930 
Swing transportation imbaiances 454 
PSC Assessment 22,290 
Flex rate asset 81.926 113.922 
Other 43,108 
Totai current 1,275,653 4 434.828 

Non-Current 

Deferred regulatory and other expenses 188.686 89.158 

Deferred post retirement benefits 138,949 i 66.739 
Environmentai regulatory assets and expenditures 121.708 ! 95.073 
Torai non-current 1,765.088 1.i78.232 

Income tax reiated amounts due from customers 1,300,544 7i 1.961 

Deferred gas suppi!, 15,201 15.201 

Total Reeuiatorv Assets $3.040.741 $5.613.060 

Regulatory Liabilities 
Current 
Self insurance - current $568.897 $44.22 i 
Overrecovered purchased gas costs 2.351.553 
Shared inrerruptibie margiiis 100.355 3.039 

Swing transuortation imbalances 1.170.511 195.455 
Tota; current 4.1 99,147 550.516 

Ouerationai flow order penalties 7,831 7.831 

Non-Current 

Income tax reiated amounts due to ctisiomers 285.819 327,893 
Self insurance - long-rsmm 600.787 1,362,247 

Environmeiiral overcoiiections 349.648 197 639 
Total non-curreni 1.236.254 2.008.779 

Accrued asset removal cost 18.410.992 i6.727 268 

Totai Reeulatorv Liabiiities S23.846.393 S; I9.286.593 

Included in the regulator! assets listed above are $ i  33,000 of which is accruing interes:. Ofthe remaining regulator!' 
assets. $1.4 million will be collected in approximatel). one to two years. $3 10.000 will be collecred within approximatel! 
3 to i C years. and S! . 4  million are aivaiting reguiator! apprmd  for  rsco\.ei? I but  once appro\ ed are t x p x r e d  to be 
collected within 12 months. 

.is required b!. SFAS Eo. 71. the Compan). monitors irs regulator! and competitive environment to determine whether 
tne recovep ofits  regulator! assets continues to be probable. I f t h e  Coinpan!, \yere to determine that recover! ofthese 
assets is no longer probable. it Lhouid write off the assets against earnings. The Coinpan!, belie\,es that SF.4S N o .  ?! 
continues to appl), ro its regulated operarions. and tnar tile recoi'er!, of its reguiatop assers is probable. 

Goodwill and Other intangibie Assets 
The Compan! accounts for its goodwill and other inrangibles under SFAS 740. 142. "Goodwill and Other lntangibie 
Asseis." Under SFAS No. 132. goodwill is not anmrtized. bur i t  is rested for impairment ar least an nu all^. In additior., 
goodwill of a reporting unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an even1 occurs or  circumstances change that 
would more likel!) than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit belou. its carv ing  value. Other intangible assets are 
amonized on a straight-line basis o\'er their estimated economic useful iives. Piease refer to Nore F "Goodu,ill 2nd Othe; 
Inrangible Assets'' for additional discussions of this area. 
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Other Deferred Charges 
Other deferred charges include discount, premium and issuance costs associated w i t h  long-term debt. Debt costs are 
deferred and then are amortized to interest expense over the original lives of the respective debt issuances. Deferred post- 
employment benefits are adjusted based on current age, the present vaiue of the prqjected annual benefit received and 
estimated life expectancy. 

Income Taxes and investment Tax Credit Adjustments 
The Compan) files a consolidated federal income tax rerum. Income tax expense allocated to the Compan>,'s subsidiaries 
is based upon their respective taxable incomes and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the tax effect of temporary differences between the financial 
statements bases and tax bases o f  assets and iiabilities and are measured using current effective income tax rates. The 
portions of the Company's deferred tax liabilities applicable to utility operations. which have not been reflected in 
current service rates, represent income taxes recoverable through future rates. investment tax credits on utilit)' propert! 
have been deferred and are allocated to income ralabl! over the lives of the  subject propert!. 

Financial Instruments 
Xeron. inc. C'Xeron"), the Compan),'s propane wholesale marketing operation. engages in trading activities using 
forward and futures contracts which have been accounted for using the mark-to-market method of  accounting. Under 
mark-to-market accounting. the Company's trading contracts are recorded at fair value. net of future servicing costs. The 
changes in market price are recognized as gains or losses in revenues on the income statement in the period of change. 
Tne resulting unrealized gains and iosses are recorded as assets or iiabiliries. respectiveiy. There wcrt  unrealixd gains o r  
$8.500 and $46.000 at December 31. 2006 and 2005. respectively. Trading iiabilitics are recorded in other accrued 
liabilities. Trading assets are recorded in prepaid espenses and other current asseIs. 

The Conipan1,'s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into agreements with natural gas and 
propane suppliers to purchase gas for resaie to rheir customers. Purchases under these contracts either do not mzet the 
definition of derivatives in SFAS N o .  133 or are considered "normal purchases and sales" m d e r  SFAS N o .  ! 38 and are 
accounted for on an accrual basis. 

The propane distribution operation has entered into a fair \ 'due hedge of its inventor!,. in order IO mitigate the impacl oi' 
\inoiesale price fluctuations. A t  December 2 1. 2006. the propane disuibution operation had entered into a swap 
agreement to protect the Conipan!, from the impact of price increases on our price-cap pian thai we offer 10 customers. 
The Compan! considers this agreement to be an economic hedge and does not quaiif!, for hedge accounting as described 
in SFAS 133.  At the end o r  the period. the market price of propane dropped beiow the unit price withir; the swap 
agreement. .As a result o f tne  p r i x  drop. the Cornpan! marked the agreement to marice;. n.hic1-i resulted ir. an unr-aiized 
less 0fSW.OOG. 
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Earnings Per Share 
The  calculations of both basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations are presented in the following 
chart. 

For the Periods Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share: 
Net Income $10.506.525 S10.467.614 $9.549.667 
Weighted average shares outstanding 6,032,462 5,836,463 5,735,405 

Basic Earnings Per Share $1.74 $1.79 $1.66 

Calculation of Diluted Earnings Per Share: 
Reconciliation of Numerator: 

Net Income - Basic $10,506,525 $10,467,614 $9,549.667 
Effect of 8.25% Convertible debentures 105,024 123.559 139.097 

Adjusted numerator - Diluted $10,611,549 $10 59',173 $9 688,764 
Reconciliation of Denoninator: 

Weighted shares outstanding - Basic 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock options 
Warrants 

6,032,462 5,836,463 5,735.405 

1.784 
11,711 7,900 

8.25% Convertible debentures 122,669 144,378 162,466 
Adjusted denominator -Diluted 6,155,131 5.992.552 5.907.555 
Diluted Earnings Per Share $1.72 $1.77 $1.64 

Operating Revenues 
Revenues for the natural gas distribution operations of the Compan!, are based on rates approved by the various public 
service commissions. The natural gas transmissioii operation's re\'enues are based on rates appro\,ed by the FERC. 
Customers' base rates ma!' not be changed without formal approval by these commissions: lhowever. tile repiator! 
authorities have granted our regulated natural gas distribution operations the abilit! to negotiate rates with customers that 
have competitive alternatives using approved methodologies. In addition. the natural gas transmission operation car 
negotiate rates above or helou, the FERC-approved tariff rates. 

Chesapeake's Maryland and Deiaware natural gas distribution operations eacn have a pas cost rem\  er! mecnansm thai 
provides For the ad,iustment ofrates charged to customers as gas costs fluctuate. These amounts are collected or ret'unaecl 
through adjustments to rates in. subsequent periods. 

The CompanS charges flexible rates to the natural gas distribution's industrial interruptible customers to compete \vitkL 
alternative types of fuel. Based on pricing. these customers can choose natural pas or alternati\ e [!'pes of suppi! .Neither 
the ComDan!, nor the inter!uptibie custonie:. is contractuali! obligated to deiil er or receive naturai gas 

- 
! he propane whoiesaie marketing operation records trading acti\!it> ne1 on the Compan! ' s  income statemen:. on a inarh- 
to-market basis. for open contracts. The propane distribution. admnced information se:\ ices and othe:. segments record 
rex'enue in  the  period :he products are deli\ ered andior sen,ices are rendered. 

Certain Risks and Uncertainties 
The financial statements are prepared in conformit! with generali! accepted accounting principles that require 
management to make estimates in m-asuring assets and liabilities and reiateo revenues and expenses ( see  Notes M and 'i 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for significanr estimates). These estimates involve,iudgments with respect to. 
among other things. various future economic factors that are difficult to predict and are be!,ond the controi o f t h e  
Conipan!,: therefore. actual results couid differ from those estimates. 

The Compan! records certain assets and liabilities in accordance with SFAS No.  71. I f the  Compan!, were required to 
terminate application of SFAS No.  71 for its regulated operations. all such deferred amounts would be recognized in the 
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income statement at that time. This could result in a charge to earnings. net o f  applicable income taxes. which could be 
material. 

FASB Statements and Other Authoritative Pronouncements 
In December 2004. the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. I23 (Revised 2004j. "Share- 
Based Payment'' ("SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for annua! reporting periods beginning after 
June 15. 2005. The Company was required to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) in the first quarter of 2006. The Company is 
required to measure the cost  of all employee share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock 
options, using a fair-value-based method. The pro formadisciosures previously permitted under SFAS KO, 123 no longer 
wil! be an alternative to financial statement recognition. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not have a material 
impact on the financial statements 

I n  Ma)- 2005. the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections". This Statement appiies to 
all voluntary changes in accounting principle. It also applies to changes required b!, an accounting pronouncement in the 
unusual instance that the pronouncement does not include specific transition provisions. When a pronouncenienr includes 
specific transition provisions. those provisions should be followed. This statement requires retrospective application to 
prior periods' financial statements of changes in accounting principle. unless it is impracticable to determine either the 
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. This statement was effective for accounting changes and 
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15,2005. The Company was required to adopt SFAS 
KO, 154 in the first quarter o f  2006. The implementation of this statement did not ha\'e a material impact on 
Chesapeake's financial statemenrs. 

In  September 2006. the FASB issued SFAS Yo. 1 5 8 .  "Empioyers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans". This statemen! improves financial reporting by requiring an employer to recognize the over- 
funded or under-funded status o f a  defined benefit postretirement plan as an asset or iiabiiir!, in irs statement of financial 
position and 10 recognize changes in that funded stalus in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive 
income. The Company is required to mitiall!, recognize the funded status o f a  defined henetit postretirenienr plan and to 
provide the required disclosures as of the  en6 of the fiscal year ending after December ! 5.2006. The Company adopted 
SFAS ?do. 158 as of December 3 : .  2006. Based on the fair vaiue of pian assets and their related funded status a! 
December 3 I .  2006. the adoption of' SFAS ! 5 8  resulted in  an increase in tola1 assels Iy approximatel! $282,000. an 
increase i n  total liabilities b!, approximatel? $ I  12.000 and an increase ro total shareholders eauit) t7!' approuimatei! 
SI 70.OOO. Piease refer to Note K "Enipioyee Benefit Plans." for details of each of the Com.pany's benefit pians. 

In dune 2006. the FASB issued FASB interpretation (.'F'Ih''' I N o .  48. "Empinyers' Accounting for Uncertaint! in income 
Taxes" This interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncenainty in income Iaxes recognized in an enterprise's iinancial 
statements in  accordance \vith SFAS %o. i 09. "4ccounting for Income Tases". This interpretarior. prescribes a 
recognition tnreshold and mcasurenien; atrribure for tne financial statemen: recognition and measuremen: of a tax 
position taken or expected to be takei-, in c tax return. This interpretarior, also provides guidance on derecognitioi, 
classification. inreresi and penaities. accounting in interin: Derioos. disciosure. and [ransition. This inlerpretation is 
effecti\'e for fiscal years beginning after December 15. 1006. ChesapEake is required to adopt FIN No .  48 in tile firs: 
quarter of 2097. The Compan! is currentl! emluarinp til: impact thar this interpretation will have on our financial 
statemenrs. 

in September 1006. the FASB issued SFAS No.  157. .,Fair Value Measurements" This statement defines fair ialue. 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generail:, accepted accounting principles. and expands disclosures 
abou: fair value measurements. This statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permir fair 
value measurements. the FASB ha\;ing previousl! concluded in those accounting pronouncements f la t  fair value is the 
reievant measurement arrribute. Accordingi) . this statement does not require an! new fair value measurements. This 
statement is effective for financia! statements issued for fiscai years beginning after Xovember 15. 2007. and interim 
periods within those fiscal !'ears. Chesapeake will be required to adopt SFAS KO, 157 in the first quarter of2008.  The 
Compan! has not yet evaluated rhe impact that this statement w.ili have on our financiai statements. 
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In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, which expresses the SEC's views regarding the 
process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. The application of the  guidance in this bulletin is applicable at 
December 3 1,2006. The implementation ofthis bulletin did not have any impact on the Compan!,'s financial statements. 

Reclassification of Prior Years' Amounts 
Certain prior years' amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. 

B. BUSINESS DISPOSITIONS AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

During 2003. Chesapeake decided to exit the water services business and sold six of its seven operations. The 
remaining operation was sold in October 2004. At December 3 1.  2006, all property and assets of the water 
subsidiaty have been sold. The results of operations for all water service businesses have been reclassified to 
discontinued operations for all periods presented. Operating revenues for discontinued operations was % I ,  I inillion 
and operating losses for discontinued operations was $94.000 for 2004. A loss of $52.000. net of tax. was recorded 
for 2004 on the sale of the water operations. The Compan! did not have any discontinued operations in 2006 and 
2005. 
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C. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The following table presents information about the Companl ‘s reponable segments. The table excludes discontinued 
operations. 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Operating Revenues, Unaffiliated Customers 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and marketing $170,114,514 $166.388,562 $124.073,939 
Propane 48,575,976 48,975.349 41.499.687 
Pldvanced information services 12.509.077 14.121,441 12.38 1.81 5 
Other 1,024 144.384 

Total operating revenues. unaffiliated customers $231,200,591 $229,629,736 $177.955.441 

lntersegment Revenues (’I 
Natural gas distribution, transmission and  marketing S259,969 $193.404 $I ?2.427 
Propane 668 
Advanced information sen’ices 58.532 18.123 45.266 
Other 618.493 61 8.492 647.378 

Total intersegment revenues $936.994 5830.687 $865.071 

Operating Income 
Natural gas distribution. transmission and marketing $19,733.487 $ 1  7.235.8 IO $1 ?.09! .36O 
Propane 2,534,035 3.209.388 2.363.8 84 
Advanced information services 767.160 1.196.544 387.193 
Other aiid eliminations (103.371 ) 11 11.243) 127.309 

Total operating income $22,931.31 1 $2 1.530.499 $19,969,746 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Natural pas distribution. transinissioii and marketing $6.312.27: $5.682.137 $5.418.007 
Propane I .658.554 1,574,357 l.524.016 
Advanced 1 n formati on sew ices 112,729 122.569 ! 3 8.00’ 
Other and eliininations 160,155 189.146 I 11.508 

Total depreciation and amortization 98.243,715 $7.568.21!9 $7,157,538 

1 _1- 

Capital Expenditures 
Natural gas distribution. transmission and marketing $13,894,614 $28.433.67 1 $ 1  3.945.3!3 
Propane 4.778.891 3.955.799 3.395.1911 
Advanced information services 159.402 294,792 84.185 
Other 321.204 739.079 404.941 

Totai capitai expenditures $49.!54,111 S33,422.?4i $17.679.53C~ 
~ ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~~ 

” 411 significant intersegment re\enues arc hiliea ar market races and n a k e  been eliminared from consolidated revtnuzs 

~- ~ 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

identifiabie Assets 
Natural gas distributioi;. transmissioii and marketing S251.292,600 5225.667.049 $ 1  81.4:1.301 

Advanced information semlces ?,573,8 10 7.062.9C2 2.387 440 
Other 9.957.374 10,905,065 -.379.794 

Total identifiable assets $324.993.984 $295.979.875 $741 .71  o.61; 

Propane 60.170.200 57.344.859 -!-.53!.1cJ6 

Chesapeake uses the management approach to identify operating segments. Chesapeake organizes its business around 
differences in products or sei-vices and the operating results of each segment are regulail!. reviewed b!, th: Conipany‘s 
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chief operating decision maker in order to make decisions about resources and to assess performance. The segments are 
evaluated based on  their pre-tax operating income. 

The Company's operations are all domestic. The advanced information services segment has infrequent transactions with 
foreign companies, located primarily in Canada. which are denominated and paid in U.S. dollars. These transactions are 
immaterial to the consolidated revenues. 

D. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Various items within the balance sheet are considered to be financial instruments because the) are cash or are to be 
settled in cash. The carrying values ofthese items generally approximate their fair value (see h o t e  E to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for disclosure of fair value of investments). The Company's open forward and futures contracts at 
December 3 1. 2006 had a gain in fair value of  $8.500 and at December 3 1, 2005 had a gain in fair value of $46.000 based 
on market rates. The fair value of the Compan!,'s long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash flo" methodology 
The Company's long-term debt at December 3 1. 2006. including current maturities, had an estimated fair value ofS81.4 
million as compared to a ca rv ing  value of $78.7 million. .4t December 3!, 2005. the estimated fair value was 
approximately $68.5 million as compared to a carr!,ing value of $63.9 million. These estimates are based on published 
corporate borrom ing rates for debt instruments b i th  similar terms and average maturities. 

E. INVESTMENTS 

The investment balances at December 3!. 2006 and 2005 represent a Rabbi Trust (.'the trust") associated with the 
Compan! 's  Supplemental Executive Retirement Savings Plan. In accordance with SFAS ?io. I 15. ".iiccounting fo: 
Certain Investments in Debt and Equit!. Securities," the Compan! classifies these investments as trading securities. As a 
result of' classifying them as trading securities. we are required to report the securities at their fair value. with an! 
unrealized gains and losses included in other income. We also have an associated Iiabilin. that is recorded and ad.justed 
each month. along with other expense. for the gains and losses incurred b!, til: trust. At December 31. 7006 and 2005. 
totai investnienrs had a fair value ofS2.C million and $1.7 million. 

F. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

In  accordance with SFAS No .  142. goodwill is tested for inipairineii~ at leasi annuall!, In  addition. goodwill of' a 
reponing unit is tested for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more 
iikel!. than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit beiow its carr).ing vaiue, The propane unit liad $674.000 ir. 
goodwill for the two years ended December 3 I .  2006 and 2005. Testing for 3006 and 2005 has indicated that n o  
impairment has occurred. 
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The carrying value and accumulated amortization of  intangible assets subject to amortization for the two years ended 
December 3 1. 2006 are as follows: 

December 31, 2006 December 31,2005 

Gross Gross 
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization 

Customer lists $115.333 $75,057 $115,333 $67.845 
.4cquisition costs 263.659 112.057 263.659 105.465 

Total $378,992 $187,114 $378,992 $173.310 

Amortization 01" intangible assets was $14.000 for the years ended December 31. 2006 and 2005. respectively. The 
estimated annual amonization of intangibles IS $ 1  4.000 per year for each of the years 2007 through 20 1 1 .  respecti\ el! 

G. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
The changes i n  the common SIOCK shares issued and outstanding are shonn  in Ihe table belon 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 

Common Stock shares issued and outstanding ' I "  

Shares issued - beginning of period balance 
Dividend Reinvestment Plan 
Retirement Savings Plan 
Conversion of debentures 
Employee award plan 
Performance snares a n d  options exercised ' ' 

5383.099 5.778.976 5.660.594 
38.392 41,175 4Q.993 
29,705 2 1 .O 7 I 39.i-57 
16.67" 21.609 lS.616 

29.516 ! 9.268 !9.616 
350 

Public ofrering 690.345 
Shares issued -end 01 period balance '" 6,688,084 5.883.099 5 78 .976  

Treasur? shares - beginning of oeriod oaiance 
Purcnases 
Dii'ideiid Reinvestment Pian 
Reurenieni Saviiips Plan 

l5 .316)  

Other issuances 5.89s 
Treasury Shares - end of period oalaiic: !91j 19.418) 

Toral Shares Ourstandin. 6.688.084 5.883.002 5.769.558 

" 13,000.000 shares are authorized at a oar vaiae of SO 4667 oer sharc 

'' hiduaes shares purcnased i t i r n  reiniesiea diviaends and oorional cash pakmenrs 
" lnciuaes shares issued for Directors' compensation 
' - '  Includes ? S , l 5 i  37.518. and 46.1 7 5  snares a: 3ecember 3 : .  3006. 2005 and 2003. resoecrlvel!. held IP. B 

Rabbi Trus! established by the Comoany reiating to rile Executive Dekrred Compensarion Plan 

In  2000 and 200 ; .  the Company entered inro agreements with ai: iiives~ment ban1c-r 10 assist in identifying acquisirion 
candidates. Under the agreemen~s. the Cumpan!, issued i4'arranrs to the inves~ment banker IO purchase 15,000 shares of 
Chesapeake stock in 2000 at an exercise price of$18.00 per share and 15.000 in 2001 ar an exercise price of $ 1  8.25 per 
share, i n  .4ugust 2006. the investment banker exercised the 30.000 warrants pursuant to the Lerms of rile agreement ai 

$33.3657 per share. At the request o i t h e  investment banker. Chesapeake settled the warrants n ith a cash pah'ment oi' 
S435.000. in lieu of issuing shares ofthe Compan! 's common stock. .At December 3 I .  2006. Chesapeake does not have 
an! srock warrants outstanding. 
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On November 21, 2006 the Company completed a public offering of 600,300 shares of its common stock at a price per 
share of $30.1 0. On November 30, 2006, the Company compieted the sale of  90.045 additional shares of its common 
stock, pursuant to the over-allotment option granted to the Underwriters by the Company. The net proceeds from the sale 
of common stock, after deducting underwriting commissions and expenses, were approximateiy $19.8 million, which 
were added to the Company's general funds and used primarily to repay a portion of the Company's short-term debt 
under unsecured lines of credit. 

H. LONG-TERM DEBT 
The outstanding long-term debt, net of current maturities. is as shown belo&;. 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Uncollateralized senior notes 

7 97% note, due February I ,  2008 s 1 .000,000 $3.000.000 53.000.000 
6 9 1 YO note, due October I .  20 IO 2.727.273 3.636,363 4545.454 
6 85% note, due Januan, I ,  20 i 2 4.000,000 5,000.000 b.000.00C~ 
7 83% note. due Janua,! I .  20 I5  14.000,000 16.000.000 20.000.000 
6 64% note. due October 5 I. 20 I 7  27.272.721 30.000,000 30.000.00ir 
5 50% note, due October 12, 2320 20.000.000 

Convertible debentures 
8.2j04 due March I ,  2014 1,970.000 1,354,000 1.6A4.00(1 

Total Long-Term Debt 571,050.000 $58,990,363 $66.1 89.454 

d ,,mi Of in~,l,,r l l le$ ~ , f c ~ , ~ ~ , ~ l l d u l w l  l,,I>g-l 

Promissoy nnte 80,000 100.000 

j h  364 611 2llN 

36 364 j w  2 36 ,364  h ~ r  2 i i h  

The convertible debentures may be converted. at the option of the  holder. into shares ofthe Company's common stock ai 

a conversion price of$17.01 per share. During 2006 and 2005. debentures totaling $284.000 and S385.000. respectivel! , 

were conijerted to stock. The debentures are also redeemable for cash at the option of the  holder. suqiect to an annual 
non-cumulative maximum limitation of $200.000. I n  2006, no debentures were redeemed for cash. During 2005. 
debentures totaling $5.000 were redeemed for cash. At the Compan!,'s option. the debentures may be redeemed at stated 
amounts . 

On October 12.2006. the Compan! issued S20 million o f5 .5  percent Senior Notes to three institutional investors iTne 
Prudential Insurance Company of America. Prudential Retirement insurance and Annuity Company and United Omahe 
Life Insurance Companls. The original note agreement was executed on October 18.2005 and provided for the Compan! 
to sell (he ?votes at any time prior 10 .ianuar!, 15.2007. The ierms of the Xotes reauire annual principal repayments o f$?  
million beginning on the fifth anni\,ersap ofihe issuance of the Notes. The hotes  wil! mature on October i ? .  202cI. T n e  
proceeds from this issuance were used to reduce a portion o f the  Compan\, 's  outstanding short-term deh:. 

Indentures to the long-term deb: of the Compan! and its subsidiaries contain various restrictions. The mas: srringenf. 
restrictions state that the Cornpan!. must maintain ecuit? of at leasi 40 percent of total capitaiization and the pro-fornia 
fixed charge coverage ratio must be i . 5  times. The Compan?. is in compiiance wi th  all o f  its dehr cc7ienants. 

1. SHORT-TERM BORROWING 

,As of December 3 1.2006. the Board ofDirectors ("Board") has authorized the Compan! to borron up to $55.0 million 
from various banks and trust companies under short-term lines of credit. During 2006. the Board authorized increases ii: 

the Company's borrowing authorit? up to $ 7 5  million to fund the 2006 capital budge: and norking capital. The $75 
miliion iimit was subsequentl?, reduced to its current levei b!. the Board on November 7 .  2006. Foliowing the placement 
on October 12. 2006 o f  $20 million 5.50 percent Senior Notes. 
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As of  December 3 1 ,  2006, the Company had four unsecured bank lines of credit with two financial institutions. totaling 
$80.0 million. none of which required compensating balances. These bank lines provide funds for the Company's short- 
term cash needs to meet seasonal working capital requirements and to temporarily fund portions of its capital 
expenditures. Two of the  bank lines, totaling $15.0 million. are committed. The other two lines are subjectto the banks' 
availability of funds. Under these lines of credit, the outstanding balances of short-term debt at December 3 1.2006 and 
2005 were $27.6 million and $ 3 5 . 5  million, respectively. The annual weighted average interest rates on short-term debt 
were 5.47 percent and 4.47 percent for 2006 and 2005. respectively. The Company also had a letter of credit outstanding 
in the amount of $773,000 that reduced the amounts available under the lines of credit. 

J. LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
The Company has entered into several operating lease arrangements for office space at various locations, equipment and 
pipeline facilities. Rent expense related to these leases was S680.000, $837.000. and $934.000 for 2006.2005 and 2004. 
respectively. Future minimum payments under the Companlj's current lease agreements are $656.000. $496.000. 
5423.000. $33 1.000 and $321 .000 for the years 2007 through 201 I ,  respectiveiy: and $3.8 million thereafier. totaling 
$6.0 million. 

K. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 
Retirement Plans 
Before 1999, Company employees generail!, panicipated in both a defined benefit pension plan ("Defined Pension Plan"i 
and a Ketirement Savings Plan. Effective !anuay I ,  ! 999. <he Company restructured its retirement program To coniFete 
more effectively with similar businesses. As part of this restructuring. the Company closed the Defined Pension Plan io 

neu participants. Empioyees who participated in the Defined Pension Pian at that time were given the option of 
remaining in (and conrinuing to accrue benefits under) the Defined Pension Plan or receiving an enhanced matching 
contribution in the Retirement Sa\,ings Plan. 

Because th: Defined Pension Plan was not open to ne\< participants. the number of active participanrs in that plan 
decreased and is approaching the minimum number needed for tile Defined Pension Plan to maintain its tax-qualified 

amended the Defined Pension Pian on September 24. 2004. To ensure that the Company continues to provide appropriate 
ievels ofbenefits to the Compan! ' s  employees. the Board amended the Defined Pension Plan and the Retirement Sa\.ings 
Pian. effective January 1 .  2005. so that Defined Pension Plan particioants who were activel!, empioyed by the Company 
on thai date ( 1  ) receive two additional years ofbenefii service credit to be used in calcuiating their Defined Pension Plan 
benefit (sub-iect to the Defined Pension Pian's limit o f35  years of benefit service credit). 12) have the option to receive 
tfieir Defined Pension Plan benefi: [n the form of a iump sum at the time the! retire. and ( 3 ;  are eiigible to receive t h e  
enhanced matching contribution in the Retirement Sa\,ings Pian. I n  addition. effective Januar), I.  2005. the Board 
amended the Defined Pension Plan so tha: participants will not accrue an!' additional benefits under that plan. These 
changes were communicated to the Compan!.'s empioyees during the first week of November 1004. As a result ofthe 
anienanients to the Defined Pension Pian. a gain ofapproximatei! SI 72.000 1 after tas j  \vas recorded during 1004. 

status. To avoid jeopardizing the tax-qualified status of the Defined Pension Plan. the Compan) ' s  Board o f  Dir- bciors 

In  September 2006. the FASB issued SFAS 1 % ~ .  158. "Emplo! ers' Accounting for Defined Benefi! Pension and Other 
Postretirement Plans" (SFAS 158 i .  The Company adopted SFAS 158 prospectively on December 3 1 .  2006. SFAS 158 
requires that u'e recognize ail obiigarions related to defined benefit pensions and other postretirement benefits. This 
statement requires that we quanrif!, the pians' funded status as an asset or a liability on our consoiidated balance sheets. 

SFAS 158 requires that we measure the plans' assets and obiigations that determine our funded status as ofthe end ofthe 
fiscal yea:. The Company is also required to recognize as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income 
("AOCI") the changes in funded status that occurred during the year that are not recognized as part of net periodic benefit 
COS: as esplained in SFAS No.  87. "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," or SFAS No. 106. "Employers' Accounting 
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions." 
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Based on the funded status of the Company's defined benefit pension and postretirement benefit plans as of  December 
3 1. 2006. the effects of adopting SFAS 158 on the Company's financial statement is set forth in the following table. 

SFAS 158 
Adoation Post 

Pre-SFAS 158 Adjustments SFAS is8 
Asset (liability) for pension benefits ($3 741.054) $281.538 63 ,459  5 16) 
Deferred income tax asset (liability) 1,224 742 ( i l l  973) 1,112769 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 504, I i 5 (1695651 334 550 

The amounts recognized in AOCI as a result of the adoption of SFAS I58 consist of 

Defined Other 
Benefit Postretirement 
Pension Benefit Total 

Prior service cost [credit) ($29.560) ($29.5601 
Loss (gain) ( 1  .284.4001 1.032.422 125 1.978 1 

Total (1,313.9601 i.032.422 1281.5381 
Less:  Deferred tax asset iiiabilityi (522.5821 4 10.609 (I 11.9731 
Loss (gain)  iii C\OCl. net of tax ($79 1.378) $621.8 13 ( $ 1  69.5653 

The amounts in AOCI for the respecti\ e retirement pians thar are expected to be recognized as a componenr o i  net beneli! 
cost in 2007 is set forth in the following tab!e. 

Defined Executive Excess Other 
Benefit Defined Benefit Postretirement 
Pension Pension Benefit 

Prior ser\iLe cost (credit, 
Loss (ga l i l~  ( 6  8461 ? ; I  179 ! 36 978 

( S A  6991 

Defined Benefit Pension Pian 
A s  described abo\#e. effective .ianuap. I .  2005. the Defined Pension Plan was frozen with respec: to addirionai years of 
sewice or additional compensation. Benefits under the plan b'ere based on  each participant's years of seiiice and highes! 
a\ erage compensation. prior to the freeze. The Compan!,'s funding polic!, provides that paknienrs to the trustee shali be 
equal to the minimum funding requirements of the  Employee Retirement. income Securit! 4c1 ol' 1974. The Compan! 
does not expect to be required to make an)' funding payments toward the Defined Pensioi-: Pian in 2007. The 
iiieasurenieiit dates for the Pension Pian were December 3 ! .  2006 and 2005. respectivep . 

The following schedule summarizes the assets of thc Eeilned Pension Pian. b!, in\,estiiient type. a: Decembe:. 3 I .  2005. 
2005 and 2004: 

At December 3 2 .  2006 2005 2004 
4sset Categori 

Eouin securicie? ".3450 IC 174, 7 2  64"," 
DCD! securities 18.59% 2: 2850 12 9 1 " o  
Other 4.07"'o 0 60% 13 45% 

Total 1 00.00 Y o  100 005" IO0 00% 

The asset listed as "Other" in  the aoo\ e table represents monies teniporarii! neld in mone! market funas The nione) 
market Fund invests at least 80 percent o f  its total assets in 

United States Government. obligations: and 

Page 66 Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 2006 Form 10-K 



Repurchase agreements that are fully coliateralized b!, such obligations. 

The investment policy of the  Plan calls for an allocation of assets between equity and debt instruments with equity being 
60 percent and debt at 40 percent. but aliowing for a variance of 20 percent in either direction. Additionally. as changes 
are made to holdings, cash, money market funds or United States Treasury Bills may be held temporarily by the fund. 
Investments in the following are prohibited: options. guaranteed investment contracts, real estate, venture capital, private 
placements, futures, commodities: limited partnerships and Chesapeake stock. Additionally, short selling and margin 
transactions are prohibited. During 2004, Chesapeake modified its investment policy to allow the Ernpioyee Benefits 
CommiRee to reallocate investments to better match the expected life of  the plan, 

The foliowing schedule sets forth the funded status of the Defined Pension Plan at December 3 !. 2006.2005 and 2004: 

At D e c e m b e r  31, 2006 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obiigarion - beginning ofyear $12,399,621 S17.053.063 S! !.948.755 

interest cost 635,877 6 1 . 7 4 0  690.6X 
Change in assumptions (301.851) 388,979 573,639 
Acruariai loss 607 28,895 720.842 
Amendments 8S3.753 
Effect of cunai lmen~/settlemenc 12. i 71.289) 
Benefits oaid (1.284.529) i717.0561 143 1.6091 

Service COS: ;3s.352 

Benefit obligation -end of year 11,449,725 i 2.395.671 i 7.053.063 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of nlaii assets - beginning ofyear 1: ,780.865 12,097,248 11.301.548 

Actual return on pian assets I .s43.9s0 400.674 1.227.309 
Benefits paid (1.284,529) 171 7,056) I43 1.609) 

Fair value ofpian assets - end or'vear 12.040.2~7 11,780.866 13,097.248 

dP,i85 
Unrecognized prior service cost !34.1591 i38.958) 
Cnrecoanized net acruarial gain i iZY.739i (850.324) 

Reconciiiation of funded status: 'I ' 
Plan assets in excess ( less ihan) henefir oblifation a[ vex-end 590,560 

Net amount accrued $590.560 15782.753 I (S841.997) 

5 j0%, 
Assumptions: 

Discount rare 5.50'%1 5 35oe 
Exoected return on olan assets 6,OO'Xk 6 000," 7 88") 

(1, Ahe. the adoorlon of SFAS 158 or DecemDe. 3' 2006 'hese amounts are recoroed and tnis reconclllatlo~ I S  no ionQerreoulrel 

Tiel pe:iodic pension costs for the defined benefit Pension Pian for 2006. 7005. and 7004 include the components as 
sli own be I o n  : 

For t h e  Years  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  3?, 2006 2005 2004 
Components of net periodic pension cos:: 

Service cost %: (1 s c $ 3 3 8 . 3 5 2  
lnrerest cos: 635.S77 645.740 69C.63 
Expected return on assets 1690.533) i702.285 (869.336 J 

Amorrizarion of 
Transition assets , ! l .328 ;  
Prior senice cos! (4,699) (4.659 I t4.69cii 

%et periodic pension cost (benefit) ($59.3 55; 1S62.244' $143.609 

The following actuarial assumptions were used in calcuiatinz net periodic pension cost or benefit 

For  t h e  Yea r s  E n d e d  D e c e m b e r  31, 2006 2005 2004 
Assumptions: 

Discount ra:e 5.25'%, - 5 .. 50",b 5 88% 
Esoecred return on '3lan assets 6.00'%> 6 0O0/o 7 88% 
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The assumptions used for the discount rate of the plan were reviewed by the Company and increased from 5.25 percent to 
5.50 percent. reflecting an increase in the interest rates of high quality bonds and reflecting the expected life of the plan. 
due to the lump sum payment option. Additionally, the average expected return on plan assets for the qualified plan 
remained constant at 6 percent due to the adoption of a change in the investment policy that allows for a higher level of 
investment in bonds and a lower level of equity investments. Since the Plan is frozen in regards to additional years of 
service and compensation, the rate of assumed compensation rate increases is not applicable. The accumulated benefit 
obligation was $1 1.4 million and $12.4 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005. respectively. 

Executive Excess Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Company also sponsors an unfunded executive excess defined benefit pension plan. As noted above. this plan mas 
frozen with respect to additional years of service and additional compensation as of December 3 1,2004. Benefits under 
the plan were based on each participant's years of service and highest average compensation, prior to the freeze. The 
accumulated benefit obligation was $2.29 million and $ 2 . 3 2  million at December 31. 2006 and 2005. respecrivel! 

Ket periodic pension costs for the executive excess benefit pension plan for 2006. 2005. and 2004 include the 
components as shown below: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Components of  net periodic pension cost: 

Service cost $0 $0 $ l O 5 9 l 3  
interest cost 1 1  9.588 I I9  6 5 8  87 568 
Amortization of 

Prior service cost 3 090 
Actuarial loss 57.039 49.3!9 2 i.699 

Net periodic pension cost % I  76.627 5168.977 $21 7.270 

The following schedule sets forth the status ofthe executi\,e excess defined benefit plan: 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Change in benefit ohligation: 

Benefit obligation - beginning of year S2.322.471 $2,162,952 $i.406.I9C 
Service cost 105.913 
Interest cost 1 19,588 I !9.658 87.568 
Actuarial (gain1 loss (65.886) 1;; 839 713.225 
Amendments 60.00Cl 
Effect of cunaiimentsettlemen; 
Benefits paid m z a 3 1  193.978, f2i.100 I 

Eenefit obiigation -end ofvear 1.286.970 1 7 7 7  471 1.!6?.953 

I 184.844 i 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of pian assets - beginning of yea- 

Emplover conrributioiis 89.203 93,973 25. i oc 
Benefits paid (89.203) (93.978) P5. l0@l 

Fair vaiue of pian assets - ena of year 

Funded status 12.286.9701 (2 ,322,471 !3.161.952; 

Net amount accrued " 62.286.970)  ( 5  j .362 979 I ! S I  .2S7.98@ 

.Assumptions: 

Unrecognized ne; actuarial loss 959,492 814.971 

Discount rate 5.50 '%,  : ~ ~ ' ) "  5 5@",<> 

( 1 )  After tne anODtior o! SFAS 156 0'1 3ec"e:  31 2336 tnese amouns are remmw am this remnmaiion is  no l o n g s  
r e w m  

The assumptions used for the discount rate ofthe plan were reviewed by the Compan> ana increased froir. 5.75 percent tr 
5.50 percent. reflecting an increase in the interest rates of high quality bonds and a reduction in the expected life of  t h e  
pian. Since the Plan is frozen in regards to additional !ears of servke and compensation. the rate of assumed pa! rate 
increases is not applicable. The measurement dates for the executive excess benefit plan were December 31.7006 an? 
2005. respecrivel! . 
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Other Postretirement Benefits 

The Company sponsors a defined benefit postretirement health care and life insurance plan that covers substantially all 
employees. 

Net periodic postretirement costs for 2006. 2005 and 2004 include the following components: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2 0 0 5  2 0 0 4  
Components of net periodic postretirement cost: 

Service cost $9,194 $6.257 $5,354 
interest cost 93,924 77.872 86,883 
Amortization of. 

Transition obligation 22,282 27.859 77.859 
Actuarial loss 144,694 88.29 1 78,900 

\et  periodic postretirement cost 5270,094 5200.279 $198.996 

The ibllowing schedule sets forth the status of the postretirement heaith care and life insurance pian: 

At December 31, 2006 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obiigation: 

Benefit obiigation - beginning of year 51.534,684 s I S99.280 51,371,664 
Retirees 264.470 159,152) 9 1.747 
Fully-eligible active empioyees ( 1  14,082) (31,761 1 22.071 
Other acti ve 78.036 26.3 I 7 13.798 

Benefit obiigation - end o f  vea- 51,763,108 $1,534.684 $1,599.18(; 

Fundea status 
Unrecoenized transition obiieation 

($1,763,108) f%i.534.684) iS : .599 .280)  
22.782 50,111 

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 751 450 899 228 
h e t  amount accrued ($1.763.108) ($760.952 ($649 91 I J 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate 5 50s" 5 yo,;, 5 m",) 

11: After the adoption o'S-AS 155 On DecemDer 3: 2006 tnese amounts are recoraea and this reconcillalion is no longer 
required 

The health care inflation rate for 2006 is assumed to he 6 percent for medical and 8 percent for prescription drugs. Tiiese 
rates are projected to graduali!, decrease to ultimate rates of 5 and 6 percent. respecrivel! . b\, the year 2009. ,A one 
percentage point increase ir! the health care inflation rate from thc assumed rate would increase the accuniuiated 
postretirement benefir obligation by approximatel!, $250.000 as o f l a n u a i ~  1.2007. and would increase the aggregate oi' 
the ser\,ice cost and interest cost components of the ne1 periodic postretirement benefit cost for 2007 b> approsiniatel! 
Si 5.000. .A one percentage point decrease ir. the liealtii care inflation rate iron1 the assumed rate \youid decrease the 
accuniuiated postretirement benefit obligation b!' approxiniateiy P207.000 as of. ianuap 1.2007. and would decrease the  
aggregate of the  service cos! and interest cost components of the net periodic postretirement benefir cost for 2007 b! 
approxiniatei? $13.000. The measurement dates were Decembei 3 I .  1006 and 7005. respectibe\) , 
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments 

The schedule below shows the estimated future benefit payments for each of the years 2007 through 201 1 and the 
aggregate of the next five years for each of  the plans previously described. 

Defined Executive Excess Other Post- 
Benefit Defined Benefit Retiremnt 

Pension Plan ( I )  Pension Plan (' Benefits (') 

2007 $72 1.575 $88 096 $180,205 
2008 713 699 86,868 182.977 
2009 I 447.370 85.5 13 185.059 
2010 898,179 84.026 204,870 
201 I 460.335 82 41 1 194 448 
Years 2012 through 201 6 4 7 14,092 758.0!3 1 010 982 

" The pension pian is funded therefore, benefit payments are expected to De paid out of the pian assets 
'' Benefit pavments are expected to be paid out of the general runds of die Compan) 

Retirement Savings Plan 

The Cornpan!, sponsors a 401 i k )  Retirement Savings Plan. which provides participants s mechanism for making 
contributions for retirement savings. Each participant may make pre-tax contributions of up  to 15 percent ofeligible base 
compensation. sub.ject to Internal Revenue Service iimitations. These participants were eligible for the  enhanced 
matching described below) effective Januar) 1 .  2005. 

Effective l anuay  I .  1999. the Company began offering an ennanced 401!ki Plan to al! new en?p!yees. as 1.?:2!! as 
existing empioyees that elected to no longer participate in the Defined Benefit Plan. The Compan!. makes matching 
contributions on a basis of up to six percent of each employee's pre-tax compensation for the year fo: all of the 
Compan! 's  employees. except the empioyees for our Advanced Information Services segment. The match is between 100 
percent and 200 percent, based on a combination of the empioyee's age and years of sewice. The first 100 percent ofthe 
funds are matched with Chesapeake common stock. The remaining match is in\,esred i n  h e  Company's 4 0 l i k )  Phi; 
according to each emplo!.ee's election options. 

Effective Jul! !, 2006. the niaLching contribution made on benalfofAdvanced Information S e n  ices segment emnioyees. 
is a 50 percent matching contribution. up to six percent of the employee's annual compensation. The matching 
contribution is funded in Chesapeake common stock. The Plan was also amended at the same time to enable it to receiLc 
discretionan profit-sharing contributions in the form of employee pie-tax deferrals. The extent. to which the Advanced 
Information Services segment has any dollars available for profit-sharing. is dependent upon the extent to which actual 
earnings exceed budgeted eamings. An!, profit-sharing dollars made a\,ailable io employees can be deferred into tne Plan 
and/or oaid ou t  in the form of a bonus. 

On December !. 2001. the Conipan! coiwerted the 3Oi(k; fund hoiaing Chesapeake stock to an Employee Stoc;. 
Chvnersh ip Pian i "ESOP"'I, 

Effective Januai? I .  1999. the Company began offering a non-qualified supplemental employee retirement sa\':ngs pia;; 
oper, to Coinpan! execurives o\'er a specific income thresnoid. Parricipants recei-ve a cash oniy matching conrribution 
percenrage equimlent to their 4 0 l i k j  match le\.el. .4li contributions and matched funds cari be invesred among ins 
ru'ent). -one mutual funds availabie for investment. These same h n d s  are availabie for investmen?. of empiohee 
contributions within the Retirement Savings Pian. 

The Compan!,'s contributions to the 40 1 ik)  plans totaled F 1.6 12.000. $1.681 .000 and $1.497.000 for  the !'ears ended 
December 3 1. 2006.2005. and 2004. respectivei:, , As of December 3 1. 2006. there are 77.379 shares resen, ed to 
fund future contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan. 
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L. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 

Effective January 1,2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which establishes accounting 
for equity instruments exchanged for employee services. Prior to January 1.2006. the Company accounted for share- 
based compensation to employees in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion (*‘A“’‘) KO.  2 5 ,  
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. The Company also followed the disclosure 
requirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS No. 148. 
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation -Transition and Disclosure.” Commencing January 1,2006, the Company 
elected to adopt the modified prospective method as provided by SFAS KO. 123R and. accordingl) , financial statement 
amounts for the prior periods presented have not been retrospectively ad,justed to reflect the fair value of expensing 
stock-based compensation. 

Stock Oatioizs 
The Compaii) did not have an) stock options outstanding at December 3 1. 2006 or December 3 1. 2005. nor were an! 
stock options issued during 2006. 

. D D  
Under the Compan).‘s DSCP. each non-employee director receives an annual retainer of600 s h a m  of common stock and 
an additional 150 shares of common stock for services as a committee chairman, sub.ject to adjustment in future years 
consistent with the terms of the DSCP. Shares issued under the DSCP are full) vested as of the date ofthe grant. At the 
date of grant, the Company records a prepaid expense equal to the fair value of the shares issued and amorrizes the 
expense equail!, over the service period of one year. Compensation expense recorded by the Compan!, relating to the 
DSCP awards was  $1 65.000 end $!40.000 For 2006 and 2005. respecrive!;,,, 

.A summa!-!’ ofrestricted stock activity for the DSCP as of December 3 I. 2006 is presented beiow: 

Number of Weighted Average 
Restricted Shares Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31 2005 
Issued - May 2, 2006 5.850 530 02 
Vested 5.850 

As of Decenibe:. 3!. 2006. tnere mere 65.300 shares reserved for issuance uiider the terms o f the  Compan! ‘I .  

Director s Stock Compensation Plan 

Peiforiiiniice i i 7 c e i i i i x  Piniis f “?iiC ”, 
The Conipan! ‘ s  Compensation Committee of the Board of‘ Directors is author!zed 10 grant to ke) emplo! ees of the 
Conipan!, the rights to recei\)e awards of shares of the  Compan! ‘ s  common stock. contingent upon the achievement of 
es:ablished performance goals. These goals consist of annual or tnree-gear performance targets. The awards are maoe 
pursuant to the Compan\,’s Performance incenri\)e Plan. subject to certain post-vesting transfer restrictions. and are 
granted i n  the first quarter ofeach year and are issued based upon the perfoiinance achieved in the previous fiscal year or 
tnree-year a\Yard period. In the first quarter? of 2006 and 2005. the Compan) issued 13.666 and 10.13C shares. 
respectixi!.. to ke! employees as PIP stock awards for each of the preceding fiscal !‘ears. Piease note that 2005 
concluded the three-!,ear perforniaiice period and these awards were issued i n  the first quarter of2006 and included in the 
23.666 stock awards. 

The Compan! accrues an expense each month of the fiscal year representing an estimate of the  value of the stock awards 
granted for the current fiscal year. This accrual process matches the compensation expense with the employees’ service 
period rather than recognizing the expense on the issue date. which occurs in the first quarter ofthe subsequent?ear. The 
shares issued under the PIP are fuli?, vested and the fair value of each share is equal to the estimated market price of  the 
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Company‘s stock on the date issued. Compensation expense recorded by the Company in 2006 and 2005 relating to the 
PIP was $544.000 and $721 .OOO, respectively. 

.4 summary of restricted stock activity for the PIP for 2006 is presented below: 

Number of Weighted Average 
Restricted Shares Grant Date Fair Value 

Outstanding - December 31, 2005 
Issued - February 23,2006 23.666 $30.3999 
Vested 23,666 
Outstandino - December 31. 2006 

As of December 3 I ,  2006. there were 293,480 shares reserved for issuance under the terms of the Company‘s 
Performance Incentive Plan. 

M. ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Chesapeake is subject to federal. state and local laws and regulations governing en\’ironmental quaiit! and pollution 
control. These laws and reguiations require the Company to remove or remedy the effect on the en\)ironmenr of the  
disposal or release of specified substances at current and former operating sites. 

!n 2004. Chesapeake received a Certificate of Completion for the remedial work performed at a former gas 
manufacturing plant site localed in Dn?wr. Delaware. Chesapeake k e!so curre participatinz ir! the investigatioi:. 
assessment or remediation of two additional former gas manufacturing plant sites located in Maryland and Florida. The 
Company has accrued liabilities for the three siies referred to. respecti\,ely. as the Dover Gas Light. Salisbury Town Gas 
Light and the W-inter Haven Coal Gas sites. The Company has been in discussions with the Maryland Department ofthe 
Environment (“MDE“) regarding a fourth former gas nianufacturing plant site iocated i n  Cam bridge, Map land. Tnr 
following provides details o f  each site. 

Dover Gas  Light Site 
The Dover Gas Light site is a former manufactured gas plant site iocared in Dover. Delaware. On Januar!, ! 5 ,  2004. tne 
Compan) received a Certificate of Conipletion of Work from the bnited States Environmental Protection Agenz! 
I.’EPA” j regarding this site. This concluded Chesapeake’s remedial action obligation related to this site ana reliwes 
Chesapeake from liabilit!’ for future remediation at the site. unless previousiy unknown conditions are disco\ :red at t h e  
site, or information pre\/iousl!. unknown to the EPA is received that indicates tne reniedial action that has been taken is 
not sufficientl! protecti\e. These contingencies are standard and are required b! the United States i n  al: liabilir! 
setti enients. 

-. I ne Compan: has reviewed its remediation costs incurred to date for tne Dover Gas Light site and has concluded lhat ai’ 
costs incurred have been paid. The Conipan? does not expect an! future environmental expenditure for  this site. Throug!i 
December 31, 2006. the Compan!, has incurred approximatel!, $9.67 million in costs reiated to en1,ironmentai tesring and 
remedial action studies ai the site. Approximatel!, 59.96 million has been recovered through December 2006 from other 
parries or through rates. As of December 31. 2006. a regulator! liabiiit! oiapproximarely 5294.500. representing t h e  
ovei.-reco\’ery portion ofthe clean-up costs. has bcen recoraed. The over-recovei?. is tempora? and w i l l  be refunded h! 
the Company to customers in future rates. 

Salisbury Town Gas Light  Site 
In  cooperation with the MDE. the Company has completed remediation of the Saiisbur). Town Gas Light site. located in 
Salisbury. Mayland. where it was determined that a former manufactured gas plant had caused localized ground-ware:. 
contamination. During 1996. the Companl completed construction and began Air Sparging and Soil-Vapor Extraction 
(*.AS/SVE’”i remediation procedures. Chesapeake has been reporting the remediation and monitoring results to the MDE 
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on an ongoing basis since 1996. In February 2002, the MDE granted permission to permanently decommission the 
ASiSVE system and to discontinue all on-site and off-site well monitoring, except for one well that is being maintained 
for continued product monitoring and recovery. In November 2002. Chesapeake submitted a letter to the MDE requesting 
a No Further Action determination. The Company has been in discussions with the MDE regarding such request and is 
awaiting a determination from the MDE. 

Through December 31, 2006, the Company has incurred approximately $2.9 million for remedial actions and 
environmental studies at the Saiisbury Town Gas Light site. Of this amount, approximately $1.8 million has been 
recovered through insurance proceeds or in rates. On September 26. 2006. the Company received approval from the 
Maryland Public Service Commission to recover through its rates charged to customers the remaining $1. I million of the 
incurred environmental remediation costs. 

Winter Haven Coal Gas Site 
The Winter Haven Coal Gas site is located in \:inter Haven. Florida. Chesapeake has been working with the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection ('+FDEP") in assessing this coal gas site. I n  May 1996. the Compan), filed an 
ASiSVE Pilot Stud!, Work Plan (the "Work Pian") for the Winter Haven site with the FDEP. The Work Plan described 
the Company's proposai to undertake an ASEVE piiot stud!, to evaluate the site. After discussions with the FDEP. the 
Company filed a modified Work Plan, the description of the scope of work to complete the site assessment activities and 
a report describing a iimited sediment investigation performed in 1997. In  December 1998. the FDEP approved the 
modified Work Plan, which the Company completed during the third quarter of 1999. In February 2001, the Compan), 
filed a Remedial Action Plan ("RAP") with the FDEP to address the contamination of the subsurface soil and ground- 
water in a portion of the site. The FDEP approved the RAP on Ma! 4. 2001. Construction of the ASEVE system was 
completed in the foufii-I quai-iei- or2002 and the system remains fully operaiional. 

The Company has accrued a liabilit) of $21 2.000 as of December 3 1.2006 for the Winter Haven Coai Gas site. Through 
December 3 ! , 2006. the Compang, has incurred approximatel!, $1.7 million of environmental costs associated with this 
sire. A t  December 3 1 .  2006. the Company had coliected $90.000 through rates in excess of costs incurred. A regulatoi? 
asset of approximatel! $122.000. representing the uncollected portion of the estimated clean-up costs. has also been 
recorded. The Cornpan!, expects to recover the remaining costs through rates. 

The FDEP has indicated that the Compan!, may be required to remediate sediments along the shoreline o i ' l ake  Shipp. 
jmmediatelh west of the Winter Haven site. Based on studies performed to date, the Company objects to the FDEP's 
suggestion that the sediments have been contaminated and will require remediation. The Conipan! ' s  earl! estimates 
indicate that some of the correcti\,e measures discussed b! the FDEP ma! c o s  as much as SI million. Given the 
Compan! ' s  \>ieu as to the absence of ecological effects. the Compan! believes that cost expenditures oithis magnitude 
are unwarranted and pians :o oppose any requirements that it undei-taic corrective measures in the offshore sediments. 
Chesapeake anticipates that it will be se\,erai !'ears before this issue is resolved. .kt this time. <ne Compan! has not  
recorded a liabilit! for sedimen! remediaiion. The outcome of this matter cannot be predicted ar this rime. 

Other 
The Conipan!, is in discussions with the MDE regarding a gas manufacturing plant site iocated in Cambridge. Claryianc. 
The outcome of this matter cannot be determined at this time: therefore, the Company has not recorded an en\,ironnientai 
liabilit) for  this location. 

N. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Natural Gas and Propane Supply 

The Compan>,'s natural gas and propane distribution operations have entered into contractual commitments for gas from 
\/arious suppiiers. The contracts have various espirarion dates. In November 2004, the Compan!. renewed its contract 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

with an energy marketing and risk inanagement company to manage a portion of the Company's natural gas 
transportation and storage capacity. The contract expires March 3 1, 2007. 

Corporate Guarantees 
The Company has issued corporate guarantees to certain vendors of its propane wholesale marketing subsidiary, its 
Florida natural gas supply and management subsidiary. and Delmarva propane distribution subsidiary. These corporate 
guarantees provide for the payment of propane and natural gas purchases in the event of the subsidiaries' default. The 
liabilities for these purchases are recorded in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The aggregate amount guaranteed at 
December 31, 2006 totaled $21.4 million, with the guarantees expiring on various dates in 2007. 

In  addition to the corporate guarantees, the Company has issued a letter of credit to its primary insurance compan) for 
$775.000. which expires on May 3 1 .  2007. The letter of credit is provided as securit!, for claims amounts to satisfy the 
deductibles on the Company 's policies. The current letter of credit was renewed during the second quarter of 2006 when 
the insurance policies were renewed. 

Other 
The Company is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the normal course of business. The Compan! is 
also involved in certain legal and adminisrrative proceedings before \ arious governmental agencies concerning rates. I n  
the opinion of management. the ultimate disposition of these proceedings will not have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial position. results of operations or cash flows of the Compan! . 

0. QUARTERLY FiNANCiAL DATA (hgNAUDiTED) 

In the opinion of the Conipan),. the quarterly financial information shown below includes all ad.iustments necessar! Cor il 

fair presentation of the operations for such periods. Due to the seasonal nature o f t h e  Companj, 's business. there ar? 
substaniial \)ariatiom i n  operations reported on a quarterlb basis. 

For the Quarters Ended March 31 June 30 SepteInDer 30 DecemDer 31 

2006 
Ooerari i ig Reveii tie $90.950.672 J44,303,'52 S35.141.531 %60.804.636 

%8.126,578 Operating income $1 1.43".228 $3.205.368 $162.13' 
Ye1 income (LOSS, $6,096.416 SI,I32,509 ($656.5191 $3,934.1 79 
Earnings ne' vhare 

Basic S1.03 so. 19 (SO. I 1 1 90.63 
Diluted $1.01 $0.19 ($0.1 l i  StI.62 

2005 
Operating Revenue S42.320.377 $35.155.12; 5371 408.99 

her income (Loss) $ 6 2 3 2 . 7  s795.924 ($69:.7il l  P.! 22.66, 
Earnings per share 

Operating incoine i l o s s !  532.324.945 i%O'J.! 491 57.800.36 

Basic %': OR $0 il ($0 : 2 ;  S;C :rl 
Di i uted $: c5 $0 14 : ? I  $0 64 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE. 

None 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES. 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, with the participation of other Company 
officials, have evaluated the Company's "disclosure controls and procedures" (as such term is defined under Rule 13a- 
15(e) and 15d - 15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of  1934, as amended) as of December 3 1.2006. 
Based upon their evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 3 1. 2006. 

Changes in Internal Controls 
During the quarter ended December 31, 2006. there was no change in the C o m p a n ) ' ~  internal control over financial 
reporting that has materiall! affected. or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Compan! '~ internal control ovei 
financial reporting. 

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
See Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting in Item 8. "Financial Statements and 
Supplemental Data." 

CEO and CFO Certifications 
The Companq 's  ChiefExecurive Officer as well as the Scniur Vice President and Chief Fiiiancial Officer have flied M.iti-1 
the Securities and Exchange Commission the certifications required b!, Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of2002 as 
Exhibits 3 1 , I  and 3 1.2 to the Compan1,'s Annual Report on Form 10-I( for the fiscal year ended December 3 1.2006. i n  
addition. on Ma! 16.2006 the Compan!,'s CEO certified to the Ne\?, York Stock Exchange that he was not aware of an) 
violation b! the Company of the YYSE corporate go\'ernance listing standards. 

ITEM 96.  OTHER INFORMATION. 

The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K. dated November 79.2006. discussing the Compensation Committee's 
ithe '*Committee"i actions on that date. inciuding their approval of the compensation arrangements relating 10 the 
executive officers of the Coinpan!, for 2007. 

On biovemher 29. 2006. the Committee approved awards under the Company's Performance 1ncentij.e Pian to John R. 
Schimkaitis, Presideni and Chief Executive Officer and Michael P. McMasters. Senior Vice President anc Chief 
Financia! Officer. According to the terms of the awards. each executive officer is entitled to earn up to a specified 
number ofshares ofthe Compan! 's common stock ("Contingent Performance Shares") depending on the extent IO which 
pre-establisned performance goals i the "Performance Goals"! are achieved during the year ended December 3 I .  200: 
( t h e  -200: Aw!ard Year" ) .  

On KO\ ember. 29. 2006. the Compensation Commitree also approved awards under the Company's Performance 
incentive Pian to i i i Stephen C. Thompson. Senior Vice President. and iiii S. Robert Zoia. President of Sharp Energ!, 
inc.. a Compan! subsidiar) ~ for the three-year. period ending Decem her 3 I .  2008. For a performance period beginning 
lanuan/ !~ 2007 and ending December 31. 2007. each esecutive officer is entitled to earn. in the form of snares of 
restricted stock. up to 30 percent ofthe annual award ofContiiigent Performance Shares ifthe Company achieves cer-tair: 
Performance Goals. The second component consists of performance awards pursuant to which the remaining 70 percent 
of the annual award of Contingent Performance Shares wil! be earned. if certain Performance Goals for the three-year 
period ending Decemher 3 1 .  2008 for each ofthe respectkc business units for which the)' are individuali! responsibie. 
are achieved. 
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PART Ill 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANACE. 

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portions of the Proxy Statement. 
captioned "Proposal I - Election of Directors," "Information Regarding the Board of Directors and Nominees." 
"Corporate Governance Practices and Stockholder Communications - Nomination of  Directors." "Committees of the 
Board - Audit Committee" and "Section 16ia) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" to be filed not later than 
March 3 I .  2007 in connection with the Company's Annual Meeting to be held on May 2, 2007. 

The information required by this Item with respect to executive officers is. pursuant to instruction 3 of paragraph ib) of 
Item 401 of  Regulation S-K. set forth in Part I ofthis Form 10-K under "Executive Officers of  the Registrant.'' 

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics for Financial Officers. which applies to its principal executive officer. 
principal financia! officer. principal accounting officer or controller. or persons performing similar functions. The 
information set forth under Item 1 hereof concerning the Code of Ethics for Financial Officers is incorporated herein b! 
reference. 

ITEM :2. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS. 

The information required b!, this Item is incorporated herein 0)' reference to the portion ofthe Prox!, Statement captioned 
'.Beneficial Ownership of Chesapeake's SzcuriLies" to be hied iioi imer than March 3 ! . 2007 in connection with tlit 

Compan! ' s  Annual  Vleeting to be held 01-1 Ma! 2. 2007. 
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The following table sets forth information as of December 3 1, 2006, with respect to compensation plans of Chesapeake 
and its subsidiaries under which shares o f  Chesapeake common stock are authorized for issuance: 

( a) (b) (C) 
Number of  securities 

remaining available for future 
Tiumber of  securities to Weighted-average issuance under equity 
be issued upon exercise exercise price compensation plans 
of outstanding options, of outstanding options. (excluding securities 

warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a)) 
Equity compensation 
plans approved b), 
security holders 0 ( 1 )  NiA 381,431 (2) 

Equity compensation 
plans not approved by 
security holders 0 ( 3 )  NIA 0 

38 I ,43 I Total 0 

( I  j All omions to purchase shares under the 1992 Performance incentive Pian. as amended. were exercised 
as of 12,’: I ‘05 

( 2 )  Includes 293,48 I shares under tne 2005 Performance Incentwe Pian, 63.300 shares available under [he 2005 
Directors Stock Compensation Plan, and 24.650 shares available under tne 2005 Employee Stock Awards Pian 

( 3 )  All warrants were exercised in 2006 

lTEM $3 .  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE. 

None 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES. 

Tile information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the portion ofthe Pros!, Stnteiiient captioned 
“Fees and Sewices of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP” to be filed not later than March 3 I .  2007. in connection with the 
Conipan!.’s .i\nnual Meeting to be lield on Ma!, 3. 2007. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES. 

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: 
1. 
b 

b 

b 

b 

b 

2. 

3. 
e 

c 

0 

5 

c 

Financial Statements: 
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of  the tnree years ended December 3 1. 2006.2005 and 2004 

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31. 2006 and December 3 1. 2005 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 3 I .  2006.2005 and 2004 

Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders' Equit), for each of the three years ended December 2 1 .  
2006.2005 and 2004 

Consolidated Statements ofComprehensive Income for each ofthe three years ended December 2 I ,  2006.2005 
and 2004 

Consolidated Statements of Income Taxes for each ofthe tnree >ears ended December 3 !. 2006.2005 and 2004 

Xotes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

.All other schedules are omitted because the!, are not required. are inapplicable 0:- the information I S  otherwise 
shown in the financial statements o r  notes thereto. 

Exhibits 
Exhibit I 

Lxhibir 3 . l  

Sshibir ? , 2  

Eynibii 4, 

Exhibir 4.2 

Gnderwriting Agreement entered into b! Cnesapeake Utilities CorporaLion and Ronert Lj . 
Baird B Co. Incorporated and A.G. Edwards B Sons. Iiic.. on November i5.200-. relating 10 
the sale and issuance of 600.300 shares of the Cotnpan),'s common stock. is iiicornoraled 
nerein ty reference to Exhibit 1 . 1  o f t n e  Compan>.'s Current Report on Form 8-I(. filea 
Kovembsr 16. 2007. Fiie No .  001-1 !590. 

Amended Certificate of lncorporarion of Chesapeake L r i i i t i e s  Corporation is incornorated 
hereir. h! reference to Eshibit 2.1 of the Compan! 's  QuanerIS Report on Form i0-Q for tne 
period ended :lune 30. 1998. Fiie N o .  001-1 1590. 

Amenaed B > . l a w  of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. efi'ectixje Fewuat? 24. 2005 .  ij 

incorporated herein b!, reference to Eshibit 3 ofthe Compan!.'s Annual Repol; on Form IO- 
K for the year ended December 31 .  2004. Fiie V o .  001-1 I59C. 

Forn  of indenture between tne Conipan? and Boatnien's Trus; Compan! , Trustee. witk 
respect to the 8 1 :19'0 Convertible Debenrures is incorporated herein b!, reference to Eyhibii 
4.2 of the Compan?'s Registration Starenien: on Form S-2. Reg. No.  33-265S2.  fiied 0:- 

.ianuav 13. 1989. 

Note Agremen t  dated February 9 .  1993. b! and between the Companb. and !ViassachusetIs 
Mutual Life Insurance Compan!. and MML Pension insurance Compan),. with respecr 10 S 1 0  
million of 7.979b Unsecured Senior Notes due February !, 2008. is incorporated nereir, b: 
reference to Exhibit 4 to the Compan! 's  Annual Report on Form 10-E: for the yea:. ended 
December 3 I. 1992. File N o ,  0-593. 
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L 

c 

Q 

Exhibit 4.3 

Exhibit 4.4 

Exhibit 4.5 

Exhibit 4 .6  

Exhibit 4.7 

Exhibit 4.8 

Exhibit 4.9 

Exhibit 4.1 Ci 

Exhibit 5.1 

Exhibit 5.2 

Exhibit I O . !  * 

Exhibit 10.2* 

Exhibit 10.3" 

Exhibit IC.4" 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on October 2, 1995. pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $10 million of  its 6.91 % Senior Notes due in 201 0. is 
not being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of  that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 15. 1997, pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $10 million of its 6.85% Senior Notes due 2012, is not 
being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601 (b)(4)(iii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request, 

Note Purchase Agreement entered into by the Company on December 27, 2000, pursuant to 
which the Company privately placed $20 million of  its 7.83% Senior Xotes due 201 5 .  is not 
being filed herewith, in accordance with Item 601 (b)(4)iiii) of Regulation S-K. The 
Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of that agreement to the SEC upon request. 

Note Agreement entered into by the Company on October 3 I .  2002, pursuant to  which the 
Company privately placed $30 million of its 6.64% Senior Notes due 20 17. is incorporated 
herein by reference to Exhibit 2 of the Compan! ' s  Current Report on Form 8-K. fiied 
November 6. 2002. File No. 001-1 1590. 

Iiote Agreement entered inro by the Compan), on October 18. 2005. pursuant to  which the 
Company. on October 12. 2006. privarel!, placed $20 million ofits  5.5% Senior kotes. due 
2020. with Prudential Investment Management. Inc.. is incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 4.1 ofthe Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 3 I .  
2005. File No. 001-1 1590. 
E I ut  - ..- , I ,  of Senior GeLt Trust Indei1tui-e between Chesapeake U~iiiries Zorporarion and ~ h e  
trustee for the debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3.1 of the 
Compan!.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3A. Reg. No.  333-1 35602. dated November 6. 
2006. 

Foim of Subordinated Debt Trust Indenture between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and 
the trustee for the debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3.2 of the 
Conipan>.'s Registration Statement on Form S-3.4, Reg. No. 333-1 35602. dated hoveniber 6. 
2006. 

Form of debt securities is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 ofthe Compan! ' s  
Registration Statement on Form S-3A. Reg. No. 333-135602. dated No\,ember 6. 2006. 

Opinion of Baker Br Hosretler LLP is incorporared herein b!, reference io Exhibit 5.1 ofth: 
Compaiy 's  Registratior. Statement on Form S - 3 ,  Reg. No.  333-135602. dated .hi> 5 .  21306. 

Opinion of Baker & Hostetler U P  is incorporated herein b!, reference to Exhibit 5.1 o f t h e  
Compan!,'s Registration Statement on Form S-3A. Reg. N o .  333- 135602. dated Uovember 6. 
2006. 

Yon-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements. incorporated nereir; 17) reference to 
Exhibit 10.5 of the Compan!,'s PInnual Report on Form 10-K for the !ea: ended December 
3 1 .  2004. File h o .  001 - 1  1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Cash Bonus Incentive Plan dated .ianuar! !. 2005. is 
incorporated herein b! reference to Exhibit 10.3 ofthe Compan!,'~ Annuai Repoi? on Form 
1 O-K for the year ended December 3 1 .  2004. File No. 00 1 - 1  1590. 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Directors Stock Compensation Pian. adopted in 2005, is 
incorporared herein h!, reference to the Compan\.'s Proxy Sratement dated March 28.2005 in 
connection with the Company's Annual Meeting held on M a )  5 .  2005. File No.  001-1 1590. 

es Corporation Employee Stock Award Plan. adopted ir! 2005. is 
incorporated herein b! reference to the Company's Prox). Statement dated h4arch 28.2005 i n  
connecrion m-ith the Company's Annual Meeting held on Ma! 5 .  2005. File No. 001 - 1  1590. 
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Exhibit 10.5* 

Exhibit 10.6* 

* Exhibit 10.7* 

Exhibit 10.8* 

* Exhibit 10.9' 

Exhibit 10.1 0* 

* Exhibit !0.1!* 

* Exhibit 10.12' 

Exhibit ici.13* 

e Esnibit I C .  1 1 *  

e Exhibit i0.16" 

Exhibit 23.2 

* Exhibit 23.3 

Exhibit 23.1 

e Exhibit 23.5 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation Performance Incentive Plan. adopted in 2005, is 
incorporated herein by reference to the Company's Proxy Statement dated March 28.2005 in 
connection with the Company's Annual Meeting held on May 5 ,  2005, FileNo. 001-1 1590. 

Deferred Compensation Program (as amended and restated as of December 7:  2006j is 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Company's Current Report on Form S- 
K: filed December 13, 2006, File No. 001-1 1590. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006, by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and S. Robert Zoia: is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29,2006. by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Stephen C. Thompson. is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29.2006. by and between Chesapeake 
Utilities Corporation and Beth M'. Cooper. is filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29. 2006. b\ and between Chesapeake 
Utiliiies Corporation and Michael P. McMasters. is  filed herewith. 

Executive Employment Agreement dated December 29. 2006. b) and between Chesapealc: 
Utiiiries Corporation and Jonn R. Schimkaitis. is flied herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dared December 15.  2006. pursuant to Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation Performance Incentive Plan by and between Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
and S. Roberi Zola. is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dared December 23. 2006. pursuant 10 Chesapeake [Utiiiries 
Corporation Perforniance Incentive Plan b!, and beween Chesapeake Utiliries Corporatior. 
and Stephen C. Tnompson. is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 2 7 .  2006. pursuant to Chesapeake Uriiities 
Corporation Performance incentive Pian b! and between Znesapealce L'tiliries Corporatioil 
and Beth \V. Cooper. is filed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dared December 29. 2006. pursuant to Chesapeake lirilities 
Corporation Perforniance incentive Plan h! and between Chesapeake L'tiliries Corporatior, 
and Michael P. McMasrers. I S  ill ed herewith. 

Performance Share Agreement dated December 29.2006. pursuant to Chesapeake i'tiliries 
Corporation Performance Incentive Pian by and between Chesapeake Utiliries Coiporatioi: 
and John R.  Schimkaitis. is fiiea hereu,itii. 

Compumtion of Ratio o l  Earning 10 Fixed Charges. iiied here\? i th. 

Code of Etnics for Financial Officers. iiied herev;ith. 

Subsidiaries o f th t  Registran;. f i led ne:-wi:i:. 

Consent of Indeoendent Regisrered Pubiic Accounting Firn: is incorporated ne:'ein n!, 
reference to Exhibit 23.1 IO the Compan>.'s Registrztion Statement on Form S-3. Reg. ho 
233-13560:. dared .iui! 5 .  2006. 

Consent of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is incorporated !ierein h! 
reference to Exhibit 23.  I to the Company's Registration Statement on Fori:: S-3F.. Reg. No. 
333-135602. dated November 6. 2006. 

Consent of Baker & Hosretler LLP finciuoed ir, Evhibii 5 , !  ;. 

Consent of Baker & Hostetler LLP (inciuded in Exhibit 5.21. 

Consent o f  independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. filed hereu-ith. 

. .  , 
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Exhibit 24 Power of Attorney is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 24.1 of the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-3, Reg. No. 333-135602. dated July 5 .  2006. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 
Exchange Act Rule 13a-l4(a), dated March 13: 2007, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 
Exchange Act Rule 13a-l4(a), dated March 13 ,  2007, filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Executive Office of  Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18 
U.S.C. Section 1350. dated March 13. 2007. filed herewith. 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation pursuant to 18  
U.S.C. Section 1350, dated March 13, 2007. filed herewith. 

Exhibit 31.1 

0 Exhibit 3 1.2 

Exhibit 3 2 , l  

Exhibit 32.2 

* Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of  Section 13 or 15  (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

CHESAPEAKE UTILITIES CORPORATION 

By: i s /  JOHN R. SCHIMELAITIS 
John R. Schimkaitis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 13. 2007 

Pursuant to the requirements ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934. this report has been signed belo\?! by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

/ S I  RALPH J ,  ADKINS 
Ralph 1. Adkins. Chairman of tne Board 
and Director 
Date: Februar!, 21. 2007 

IS! JOHN R. SCHlMKAlTIS 
John R. Schinikaitis. President. 
Chief Executive Officer and Direcior 
Date: March 13% 2007 

is: MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
T"fichaei I> ,  i ,vlc!dasteis. Seiiioi. 'Act Presideiii 
and Chief Financial Officer Dare: February 21. 2007 
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer1 
Date: March 13. 2007 

IS! RICHARD BERNSTEIN 
Klciiard Beinstein. Direcior _ .  

J S  EUGENE E!. BAY'ARD 
Eugene FI. Ba? ara. Director 
Date: Februar! 21. 200- 

'S THOMASP HILL..IR 
Thomas P H i l l .  .i:.. Direcro- 
Date. Februai? 21. 20C' 

.!S ~ 1 ,  PETER bIARTIK 

.:, Peter Manin. Director 
Date: Februay, 21. 200' 

/ S  CALVER? .A. MORG.4N.  JR. 
Cal\,er: A.  Morgar.. J:... Direcror 
Date: Februan 2 : .  2007 

1s; THOMAS .?. BRESNAN 
Thomas .I, Bresnan. Director 
Date: I\?arch i 3 .  2007 

s \ A A ~ T E R . ~  COLEMAN 
VI altev .I Coleman. Direcio. 
Date Feoruar! 2 I .  2007 

S IOSEPHE MOORE.ESQ 
Joseon E Moore. Esc.. Eirecto: 
Date Februai? 2 ' .  20C7 
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Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Schedule I I  

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

Additions 
Balance at  

Beginning of Charged to Other Balance at End 
For the Year Ended December 31, Year income Accounts (" Deductions ( 2 )  of Year 
Reserve Deducted From Related Assets 

Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts 

$381,424 $65,519 6646,724) I_ ...... ~ $661,597 
"- .."..". " ....................... " " ......... " ...... " .......... "" ....... " ...... I" ......................... ".. " ............. I" ............................... ." ... ...".....".. " ............... ......... $86 1,378 2006 

2005 $610.819 

2004 $682.002 $505.595 $ 1  03,020 ($679,798) 

........ " .......... ".." .................... ~ .................................. """" ................. ^" .. ".".."............"..".".........................".........."..".."................I ................... ".. 
$61 0.81 9 ......................... ............................ .. " ................. " ...... "" ............ " ................... I"........... .................. .................... "" ..................... " ........................ " ........................ " .................. ." ......................... .................... ........... 

Recoveries 

I;ncollectible accoims charged off 

( i J  



EXHIBIT 12 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

~~ 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Income from continuing operations $10,506,525 $ 1  0.467.6 14 $9.549.667 $i 0,079,483 $7,535,009 
Add 

Income taxes 6.836.562 6.312.016 5.701.090 6.032.445 4,609,552 
Portion of rents representative of interest factor 226,583 278.846 309.446 35! ,445 41 1.461 
lnterest on indebtedness 5,725.228 5.077.693 5.206.723 5.61 6.756 4.867 520 
Amortization of debt discount and expense 52,108 55,802 61.422 89.155 87,502 

Earnings as adjusted $23,347.006 $22; I 9  i ,971 $20.828.348 $22,169.284 % i  !.5 I 1.044 

Fired Charges 
Portion of  rents representaave of interest factor $226.583 $278.846 $309.446 S35i ,445 $41 i.461 
interest 011 iiIdCDtCaneSS 5,725,228 5,077,693 5.206.723 5.61 6.756 4.867.520 
Aniortizatioii of debt discount and expense 52,108 55.802 6 i ,422 89, I55 87.502 

Fired Charges $6.003.919 $5.412.341 $5.577.591 $6.057.356 $5,366,483 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 3.89 I O  2 I., 3 66 3 16 7 -9 



EXHIBIT 21 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 
Subsidiaries of the Registrant 

Subsidiaries 
Eastern Shore Natural Gas Company 

Sharp Energ), Inc. 
Chesapeake Service Compan) 

Xeron. Inc 
Sam Shannahan Well Compan!. Inc 

Sharp I4 ater. Inc 
OnSight Energq. LLC 

Peninsula Energq Services CompanL. Inc 
Peninsula Pipeline Compan) ~ Inc 

Subsidiaries of Sharp Enerev. Inc. 
Sharpgas. Inc. 

Tri-County Gas Co.. Incorporated 

Subsidiaries of Chesapeake Service Company 
Skipjack. Inc. 

Brakepoint. Inc. 
Chesapeak: Investment Coinpan! 

Eastern Shore Real Estate. Inc. 

Subsidiaries of Sharp \? ater, Inc. 
Snarp U ater of Idaho. lnc 

State Incorporated 
Delaware 
Delaware 
Delaware 

Mississippi 
Maryland 
Delaware 
De law are 
De I aw ar e 
Delaware 

State Incorporated 
De I aw ar e 
M a c  land 

State Incorporated 
De I aware 
Georgia 

Dela\liare 
Mar! land 

State hcorporated 
Delaware 

Sharp 'A ater o f  Minnesota. Inc Deiau are 



EXHIBIT 23.5 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Kos. 333-63381.333- 
121524 and 333-135602) and Form S-8 (Nos. 3 3 - 0 1  175. 333-94159. 333-124646, 333-124694 and 333-124717) of 
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation of our report dated March 13. 2007 relating to the consolidated financial statements, 
financial statement schedule. management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reponing 
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reponing. Mjhich appears in this Form IO-K. 

PRIZEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP 
Boston. I\4assact1usetts 
Marcn 1 3 .  2007 



EXHIBIT 31 .I 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I ,  John R. Schimkaitis, certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form IO-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation; 

Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of  a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessap to make the statements made. in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made. not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on tn) knowiedge, the financial statements. and other financial information included in this report. fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of. and for. the 
periods presented in this report: 

The registrant's other certifying officerisi and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 %e) and l jd-lj(e1) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 1 Sd-lj(f)) for the registrant and we have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision. to ensure that material information relating to the registrant\ including its 
consolidated subsidiaries. is made known to us by others within those entities. particuiari!. during the 
period in which this report is being prepared: 

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financiai 
reporting to be designed under our supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilit! of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepred accounting principles: 

evaluated the effectkeness of  the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this 
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures. as of the end oi' 
the period covered by this report based on  such evaluations: and 

disclosed in this report an). change in the registrant's internal control over financial reponing that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourti: fiscai quarter in the case of an 
annual report) that has materially affected. or is reasonably likel! to materially affec:. the registran: ' 5  

inrernai control over financial reporting: and 

a) 

5) 

c )  

3) 

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed. based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over financiai reporting. to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of direclors (o r  
persons performing the equkaient functions): 

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internai conrrol o i w  
financial reporting which are reasonabi! likely to adversely affect the registrant's abiliry to record. process. 
summarize and report financial informarion: and 

an!' fraud, whether or not material. that involves management or other employees who nave a signiiicanr 
role in the registran:'s internal control over financial reporting. 

a i  

b j  

Date: March 13. 2007 

!S! JOHN R. SCHIMKAITIS 
John R. Schimkairis 
President and Chief Executive Officer 



EXHIBIT 31.2 

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-I4(A) 
UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

I ,  Michael P.  McMasters. certify that: 

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation: 

Based on my knowledge. this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made. in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made. not 
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

Based on m!' knowledge. the financial statements. and other financial information included in this report, fairl) present in 
all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of. and for. the 
periods presented in this report: 

Th-, registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange .Act Rules 13a-ljie) and I jd-1 Ye) )  and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules !3a-! 5if) and ! 5d-15i f ) )  for the registrant and w e  have: 

designed such disclosure controls and procedures. or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision. to ensure that material information relating to the registrant. including its 
consolidated subsidiaries. is made known to us h> others within those entities. particularly during the 
period in which this repon is being prepared; 

designed such internal controi over financial reporting. or caused such inrernal control over financia! 
reporting to be designed under our supervision. to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability oi' 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generall!' accepted accounting principles: 

e\,aluaied the effectiveness of the registrant's disciosure controis and procedures and presented i i i  this 
report our conclusions about the effectixness of the disciosure controls and procedures, as of tne end o i '  

the period co\ ered b) this report based or. such evaiuations: and 

disciosed in this repon any change in the registrant's internai control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscai quarter (the registrant's roui-tii fiscal quanei- iii the case of an 
annua! report) that has materialijj affected. or is reasonabl) likei!, io materiall), affect. the registrant 's 
internal control over financial reporting: and 

a )  

b )  

c !  

d i 

The registrant's other certif! ing officeris j and 1 ha\,e aisciosed. based on our most recent evaiuatmn ofinternai conrroi 
o\Ter financial reporting. to rhe registranl's auditors and the audi? committee of the registrant's noard of directors 10; 
persons performing the q u i \  aienl functions !: 

a i  ali significant deficiencies and material \n,eaknesses i n  the aesigr. or operatior of internal control o\ :i' 
financial reporting wnich are reasonabl! likel!. to ad\,ersel\, affect <he registrant's abilit? IO record. process. 
summarize and repoi? financial informatior.: and 

an! fraud. uhether or not material. ma! in\,oives management or other enipio! ees wno ha\': a signiiican: 
role in the rzgisrrant's internal conirol m e r  financial renorring. 

i? i 

Date: Vlarci; 13.  2007 

S MICHAEL? MCMASTERS 
Michael P McMasters 
Senioi Vice Presiaent and Cnief Financial Officer 



EXHIBIT 32.1 

Certificate of Chief Executive Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I ,  John R. Schimkaitis. President and Chief Executive Officer of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation. certi@ that, 
to the best of m] knowledge, the PInnuaI Report on Form 10-K of Chesapeake Utilities Corporation (“Chcsapeake”j for 
the year ended December 31. 2006, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (i) fully 
complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. and iii) the 
information contained therein fairly presents. in all material respects. the financial condition and results of operations of 
Chesapeake. 

’ S !  JOHK R. S C H I M U I T I S  
John R Schimkaitis 
March 13. 2007 

A signed original ofthis written statement required by Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of2001. or other document 
authenticating. acknowledging. or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic 
\ ersion ofthis written statement required b> Section 906. has been provided to Chesapeake Ltiiities Corporation and will 
be retained by Chesapeake Utilities Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafi 
upon requosi. 



EXHIBIT 32.2 

Certificate of Chief Financial Officer 

of 

Chesapeake Utilities Corporation 

(pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350) 

I. Michael P.  McMasters. Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation. certify that. 10 the best of my knowledge. the .4nnual Report on Form 10-I( of Chesapeake Utilities 
Corporation ("Chesapeake") for the year ended December 3 1 ~ 2006. filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
on the date hereof ( i )  full) complies with the requirements of section 13ia) or 1 3 d )  of the Securities Exchange Act of 
!934. as amended, and iiii the information contained therein fairly presents. in all material respects. the financial 
condirion and results of operations of  Chesapeake. 

/S',MICHAEL P. MCMASTERS 
Michael P. McMasters 
March 13. 2007 

,A. signed origina! oftnis written statement required h!. Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Osle!, Act of2002. or other aocumen! 
authenticating. acknowiedging. or otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the electronic 
\,ersion of this written statement required by Section 906. has been pro\Jided to Chesapeake 'Lltililies Corporation and \ 4 , i l !  
bc retained b> Cnesapeaie L'rilities Corporation and furnished tcl the Securities and Escliange Commission or its staff 
upon request. 



Gpon written request, 
Chesapeake will provide, free of 
charge, a copy of any exhibit to 

the 2006 Annual Report on 
Form 10-K not included 

in this docunient. 




